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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

Summary of the Group’s results, assets, liabilities and equity AEERBERETBFEEMNELSL  BE AE
for the last five financial years is set out below: REREENT
RESULTS E4
For the year ended 31 December
BEt+t-A=+—HLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—ECIEF —ZT-NF ZEB-N\F ZT—tF ZT—KF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR%®Tr ARBTT AR®TRT ARBTT
Turnover EERE 2,247,363 2,799,520 3,652,869 3,005,671 716,187
Gross profit EF 355,315 406,558 390,674 686,628 36,503
Results from operating #& & B 248

activities (3,946,158) 287,071 2,024,200 5,065,153 319,922
(Loss)/profit before BREL AT (E518), @ F

taxation (4,312,998) (4,506) 1,759,082 4,686,441 (127,033)
Income tax credit/ FTssiEe,/ (FAxX)

(expense) 876,128 85,229 (75,614)  (962,091)  (189,694)
(Loss)/profit for the year &R (E518) & F (3,436,870) 80,723 1,683,468 3,724,350 (316,727)
(Loss)/profit attributable f&{5 (E518) /% F| :

to:

Equity shareholders PAYNGIL SRESY SN

of the Company (2,901,499) 81,421 1,504,509 3,158,349 (330,542)

Non-controlling B

interests (535,371) (698) 178,959 566,001 13,815
(3,436,870) 80,723 1,683,468 3,724,350 (316,727)
Coal handling and HREERhE5E

trading volume (FH8)

(’000 tonnes) 5,964 7,602 10,167 7,062 2,123
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY aE  BERER

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—EIERF ZT-NF ZE-N\F ZT—tF ZT—KF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR%®T ARBTT AR®ETRT ARBTT
Total assets BERE 5,297,925 0,354,633 9,874,769 10,298,242 5,662,432
Total liabilities BfERE (8,194,009) (8,789,369) (9,391,923) (11,502,859) (10,583,739)
Total (deficit)/equity (B4t) /#4858 (2,896,084) 565,264 482846 (1,204,617) (4,921,307)
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Directors” or the
“Board”) of China Qinfa Group Limited (the “Company”),
| hereby present the annual result of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2020.

2020 is undoubtedly a year full of severe challenges with the
global economy overshadowed by the COVID-19 pandemic.
In view of the macroeconomic situation, companies across the
globe are inevitably facing a difficult business environment,
while we believe that this is the moment when efficient
management strategies will make a difference, for which the
management has set clear and precise targets, in an attempt
to lead the team to create opportunities for the Group.

In 2020, the Group concentrated its resources on the coal mine
project in Indonesia, which will be the key to our expansion
in overseas markets in the future. Over the past year, our
technical team in Indonesia has been very enthusiastic in
advancing the construction of the coal mine there, with the
acquisition of the Indonesian coal mine continuing to make
significant progress. In addition, the Group managed to
maintain an agreeable growth in the domestic coal market,
securing new contracts with new customers and partners that
aimed for long-term relationships.

Looking forward, to ensure the sustainable development of our
business, we will steer the Group towards a new direction of
development. In the face of the macroeconomic uncertainties
and volatility of the coal market, the management will adjust
its strategies in a prudent and flexible manner to take on
the current and future challenges with enhanced financial
flexibility, which will be the key concern of the Board.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETEHRES

EHASAIRR

AANBERRTPBERBZEEEGRAFATARF])
EEe(EFIREFED)MAREARRRE
MBAR(AKRENDBE_T-_Z2F+_-_A=+
—HIEFREZEFRE -

EEEEME  —ToETFERAMEKBN—F - 2R
RERFEIZRERY - REBKBELE R
B ERNNCERNETHCERHBRANEHR
% BAKEHEEERS RN EE R EER
RIFAMBEZ - FTAEEE QIR SRR B M
ZHITER BREFERBEBZLSKEAIER

&
&
=

E-ZT_ZTF  AEESHRNEREENERK
BERL  EHERFRKEINTIHERNE
#eEBRE—F  BRMAESHORMEGRESE
EREEZERTE - AR - ARHEREZ W
AERETEARENER - 2 AKEER
NRKE SMEMREMBRE - KNEHFNE
FMEEBHRAR @Y RASERE -

REFHK  RE— P REAEEEBHO AR
R ROAGHEENBRRSREHNEL - $H8
REEBENTREERRRTSNRBE - B1E
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

IFRRES

“Integrity and Diligence” has been the management principle
of the Group, pursuant to which we will continue to closely
monitor the operational details of our businesses and review
its effectiveness from time to time. In addition to actively
extending our business reach into new areas, the Group will
focus on maintaining its leading position with sustainable
growth in its core business, the coal market, and strive to
become an industry leader.

Finally, | would like to thank all our staff and the Board
members for their invaluable efforts, contributions and
dedication in the past year. Most importantly, on behalf of
the Group, | would like to take this opportunity to thank our
trustable shareholders, customers and partners for their
continued support. The Group has been committed to creating
significant value for our shareholders, and | look forward to
reporting to you again on the Group’s latest development and
sharing with you the results we have achieved in our future
reports.

Xu Da
Chairman
31 March 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group is a leading non-state owned thermal coal supplier
in China, and it operates an integrated coal supply chain,
including coal mining, purchase and sales, filtering, storage,
blending of coal in the PRC and shipping transportation
business. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group continued to focus on these business activities and
expanded its integrated coal supply chain through upward
vertical integration.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In early 2020, in response to the coronavirus disease 2019
("COVID-19”) outbreak, the Chinese government actively took a
number of measures since late January. In line with the national
epidemic prevention policy, the Group briefly suspended coal
mine operations in February; however, with due regard to
the safety of employees and as far as practicable, the Group
gradually resumed coal mine production and coal sales in
March and resumed work sooner than expected. For the year
ended 31 December 2020, the production volumes of raw
coal and commercial coal were 8.78 million tonnes and 5.71
million tonnes respectively, representing a decrease of 12.4%
as compared with the Group’s production volumes in 2019, but
still at a relatively high level.

Coal price had a low start followed by an upward trend
throughout the year

Overall, coal price had a drop in the first half of year 2020
followed by an upward trend for the most part of the year
2020. The average coal selling prices and the coal industry’s
earnings continued the upward trend in last year. During the
first quarter, the coal industry was affected by the COVID-19
pandemic and various industries continued to shut down,
resulting in generally low coal consumption and weak support
from demands of coal downstream industries. In addition, the
completion of the de-capacity task and the gradual release of
advanced capacity contributed to the overall easing of supply
and demand in the coal industry, resulting in a significant
downward trend in coal prices. However, with the pandemic
under control, the domestic economy improved and coal
downstream enterprises resumed work and production. As a
result, raw coal prices picked up in the third quarter and rose
to a high level for the year in the fourth quarter.

EEENWEDTN

PR

AEBERTEALENFEEH NRMER @ L&
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e el
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REIZ2MATERLT  SER=AHEHEHRK
ERBEENMBEREEE - ETEERANTER - &
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NMEEREENH AL 7T8SEEMMS.7T1IHEN -
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HIFE K o

2ERAREREAEERS

B B
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWED N

Indonesia coal mine project

The acquisition of the coal mine of PT Sumber Daya Energi
(“SDE") in Indonesia will be one of the most important
investment project of the Group. The Group’s coal mine
acquisition project with parties in Indonesia is progressing the
various government approvals for the acquisition of the SDE.
The Group has dispatched its domestic experts and technical
team to Indonesia to carry out preliminary exploration work and
plan the implementation of the project.

In addition, pursuant to the conditional sale and purchase
agreement dated 7 August 2020 (the “CSPA”), the closing
date between the Group and the vendor shall be before
31 December 2020. Given the current circumstances and
since additional time is required to satisfy certain conditions
precedent in the revised provisions, the vendor and the
purchaser have agreed in writing to further extend the closing
date to 30 June 2021. On 31 March 2021, the Group made a
disclosure announcement to update the market and the Board
seeks to complete each process in full compliance with the
regulations and with minimum risk.

8 CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF
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As of 31 December 2020, the Group owned and operated five
coal mines in the PRC. The table sets forth certain information

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWED N

RZZ-ZFF+-_A=+—H A&EETEHE
BRELERERE - TREBVEBAZERBNE

about these coal mines. FEH -
Production
Location Ownership Site area capacity Operation status
2]
b B BOL EE EERD EEKRR
(million
(sq. km) tonnes)
(FARE) (A&mR)
Huameiao Energy Shuozhou Shanxi 80% 4.25 1.5 Under operation
— Xingtao Coal
EXRpR - EFHEE WLEHIM BE
Huameiao Energy Shuozhou Shanxi 80% 2.43 0.9 Under operation
— Fengxi Coal
FEXBRER -BEKE LEEEM EER
Huameiao Energy Shuozhou Shanxi 80% 2.88 0.9 Under operation
— Chongsheng Coal
EXRER -SAEE WWAEHEMN EER
Shenda Energy Xinzhou Shanxi 100% 4.01 0.9 Under development
— Xinglong Coal (Temporarily
suspended)
FpERLIR - HPELE S LR AT M FEE S (E1E)
Shenda Energy Xinzhou Shanxi 100% 1.32 0.9 Under development

— Hongyuan Coal

HEREIR —

B

M

L AT

(Temporarily
suspended)
FEH (EE)

The Group engaged an independent mineral industry
consultant to estimate the total coal reserves and resources as

of 31 December 2020 in accordance with the JORC Code.

45 B2 98 — 8 L RO R IRJORCE Bl f
HHE-F-EFT A=t BMEAREE

RERE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBWED N

COAL CHARACTERISTICS B RSE
Characteristics and typical commercial coal quality of the NS K IE & FHEFT 4 2= 09 7 35 0 00 B e e s Ay
commercial coal produced by the Group’s operating mines are MBS 0T -
as follows:
Huameiao Shenda Shenda
Huameiao  Huameiao Energy — Energy - Energy —
Energy - Energy — Chongsheng Xinglong  Hongyuan
Xingtao Coal  Fengxi Coal Coal Coal Coal
EXRWR- EXRWR- EXRER-  MERR-  BERR-
Coal Quality Characteristic RERR FR BREE RAKEE FEHE RREE
Coal Seam KE 4,8,9,10, 11 4,9, 11 4,9, 11 2,5 2,5,6
Moisture (%) KA (%) 7-10 8-12 8-12 85 8.5
Ash (db, %) W (db %) 20-28 20-28 20-28 21.45 30-72
Sulfur (db, %) ERE(do * %) 14-19 1.2-16 1625 1.52 1.45
Calorific Value (average, BERETY - TR/ TR
kcal/kg, net, ar) F1E - ar) 4,650-5,200  4,600-5,150  4,600-5,150 4,838 4,187
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENRED T
OPERATING DATA BELEHE
Reserves and Resources RERERE
Huameiao ~ Huameiao ~ Huameiao Shenda Shenda
Energy - Energy - Energy - Energy - Energy -
Xingtao Fengxi Chongsheng Xinglong  Hongyuan
Coal Coal Coal Coal Coal Total
EXR EXR EXR B B
R - R - R - R - R -
s S BRERR EREE RERE RERE by
Reserves &
Reserves as of 1January HE-Z-TF-A-BH
2020 (M) HFEEER)
= Proven reserves -ERHRE 16.37 4.45 4.21 = = 25.03
- Probable reserves - it E 402 7.25 6.50 13,50 10.46 4173
Total reserves as of 1 January HE-Z-TF-A-BH
2020 (M) BERE(AER) 20.39 11.70 10.71 13.50 1046 66.76
Less: Total raw coal production B ERREBES
for the year (M) (BE®) (3.30) (2.84) (2.65) = S (8.79)
Reserves as of 31 December HE-_E-_ZF+CH
2020 (Mt) St-ENRE(EER 17.09 8.86 8.06 13.50 10.46 57.97
Resources ERE
Resources as of 1 January HE-Z-TF-A-BH
2020 (M) ERe(REM) 5281 277 2302 35.08 2087 154,55
Less: Total raw coal production A ERRKBES
for the year (Mt) (5E®) (3.30) (2.84) (2.65) = = (8.79)
Resources as of 31 December HE-E-EE+CR
2020 (M) =t-ANERE(EEW) 4951 19.93 20.37 35.08 20.87 145.76

—E-ZHF3R ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBWED N

The Group engaged a new independent mineral industry
consultant, namely SRK Consulting China Ltd. (“SRK
Consulting”), to estimate the total coal reserves and resources
as of 31 December 2020 in accordance with the Australasian
Code for Reporting of Exploration Results, Mineral Resources
and Ore Reserves (the “JORC Code”). According to the
Competent Person’s Report issued by SRK Consulting in 2021
(“CPR”), the total coal resources and reserves in accordance
with JORC Code were approximately 145.76 million tones and
57.97 million tonnes respectively as at 31 December 2020,
as compared with the original of 307.09 million tonnes and
198.49 million tonnes respectively. For detail, please refer to
the section headed “Impairment loss on coal mining rights,
property, plant and equipment” of the Management Discussion
and Analysis.

The directors of the Company then appointed a competent
person, namely SRK Consulting, to re-assess the coal reserves
of all the Group’s coal mines as at 31 December 2020 under
JORC Code. Based on the CPR issued by SRK Consulting
in 2021, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
the estimated amounts of the coal reserves are required to be
adjusted.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF

AEBZE-—HFINBILBREBERSRK
Consulting China Ltd.(TSRK Consulting DB #
BN EER BELARERBABERE L
([JORCER NEFHEBE S -_TF+_-_A=+—
Am@ExiEE R ERE - BIESRK Consulting
RZBEZ—FBLENEEBATRE(EER
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BJORCERIBENBRERERERFEENRL
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BIERE m AN TRERIRERE W BER
BB EEE] -

RNAEEFREEEZES EE ATLTSRK Consulting
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWED N

The following table sets forth the full-year production figures at
the abovementioned mines for the years indicated:

TRINR ERREBER IR FENEFEEC

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—BHLEFE

2020 2019
—E-FF —T-NF
(’000 tonnes) (’000 tonnes)
Raw coal production volume BREE (Fmg) (FH88)
Huameiao Energy — Xingtao Coal ERRELR - EEHEE 3,296 3,601
Huameiao Energy — Fengxi Coal EXRELR - AR E 2,839 3,303
Huameiao Energy — Chongsheng Coal EXRER - SAEE 2,650 3,125
Total Bt 8,785 10,029
Year ended 31 December
BZE+t-A=+t—HLEE
2020 2019
. —T-NF
Commercial coal production (’000 tonnes) (’000 tonnes)
volume (Note) mERES (M) (Fmg) (FH8)
Huameiao Energy — Xingtao Coal EXRAER - EEREE 2,142 2,341
Huameiao Energy — Fengxi Coal EXRELR - R E 1,846 2,147
Huameiao Energy — Chongsheng Coal EXRER - SAEE 1,722 2,031
Total HBEr 5,710 6,519
Note:  According to the CPR as at cut-off date of 31 December 2020, the HeE: REBLEEBHE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HHNEEK

historical operation of the Xingtao Coal, Fengxi Coal and Chongsheng
Coal achieved an average of 65% of mixed marketable raw coal yield.

ALHRE - EEE O BAREERSARENBES

BT EDESRHRE THHRKES -

—E-ZHF3R ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB WED

Exploration, Mining and Development Expenses BhiR - B EREA

The Group’s exploration, mining and development expenses  AEERHE - FRIBHAZERASIEATESEE
consist of the following amounts:

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2020 2019
—EEHF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREEF T
Materials and consumables YR I8 FE 85,592 110,386
Staff cost BT A 256,492 255,977
Other direct cost B EZEKA 46,248 49,986
Overhead and others R A & E A 666,917 719,608
Evaluation fee B 170 417
Total HBET 1,055,419 1,136,374
FINANCIAL REVIEW Bt % B
Revenue ON
Year ended 31 December
BE+-—A=+—HLEE
2020 2019
—E_THF —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AREFIT
Coal business IR ET 2,190,112 2,720,845
Shipping transportation MiEE e 57,251 78,675
2,247,363 2,799,520

14
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Coal business

EEEWED

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2020 2019
SE LA
’000 tonnes '000 tonnes
F WE T8
Coal Handling and Trading Volume of HREBOREREERES S
Coal Business 5,964 7,602

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the volume of
the Group’s coal handling and trading recorded a 21.55%
decrease as compared with 2019. The coal selling prices
during the year ended 31 December 2020 were in range
between RMB192 per tonne and RMB586 per tonne, which
were more fluctuated when compared to the range between
RMB221 per tonne and RMB536 per tonne in 2019. Average
coal selling price decreased significantly during April and
May 2020. However, the price gradually increased afterward
and achieved its peak at the end of 2020 due to effective
precautionary measures on the COVID-19 by the government
and government policy on restricting imported coal.

The average coal selling price and the average monthly coal
handling and trading volume for each of the three years ended
31 December 2020 are set forth in the table below:

BHE_Z-TFF+_A=+—RHLEFEE #H=-F
—NFERL  AEENERCERBESERD
2155% c REBEZEZZE_TF+-_A=-+—HIF
FWM@REFM¥tMAEMHQEItMA
R¥&5867T —NENTZHEARE221T
EEMARESIGIMEE B IFBNEK o ik
FHEBR-_E-_TEFNA KA A KIE TR

i ERBUAE A EARB SR T B &
B M&ﬁf@ﬂﬁDHMﬁ“ ZBERE
R TR E_EFERERRSE -

/\—7

BE_ZT_THEA_A=t-HLE=ZEFES
FoFORREEERETOE ARREERE
SEHEHIINTEX :

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=1+—HLEE

2020 2019 2018
—EB-FF —hEF —\F
Average coal selling price (RMB per P& R EE (FHEA RET)
tonne) 367 358 343
Average monthly coal handlingand F¥HBARRKEERES S
trading volume ('000 tonnes) (Fmg) 497 634 847
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWED N

The Group sells blended coal which is sourced solely from the
PRC domestic markets to customers, including power plants
and coal traders. Most of the Group’s customers are located in
the coastal regions of China. Power plants purchase coal for

AEEGHESTBEBEATSRENRRKEEK
BREETRERIRRESHERF - AKET
FEZEURFELEE - HERRBRTAR
KRB ingi” FRARBERER - TRE

use in the combustion processes to produce steam for power  FIAREBREE ZEFERZZE-NF+A
and heat. The following table sets forth information regarding =+—H JJ:iE? %’“*B%J D H B R FE TSR A
the Group's revenue from coal business by industry segment  #J& &} :
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019:
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=+—HLEE
2020 2019
g g 35 —E-NF
Percentage Percentage
Revenue of revenue Revenue of revenue
HEKA IHEBIA
KA HWEZ L @N ORERaNnd
RMB’000 % of total RMB’000 % of total
ARBT (%) ARETTT (%)
Power plants BB 329,677 15.1 251,580 9.2
Coal traders mﬁ%%% 1,860,435 84.9 2,469,265 90.8
Total HEt 2,190,112 100.0 2,720,845 100.0

Shipping transportation

The segment revenue for shipping transportation from
external customers for the year ended 31 December 2020
was RMB57.3 million as compared with RMB78.7 million for
the same period in 2019. The Group has recorded 27.2%
decrease in shipping transportation revenue principally
because of disposal of vessel in 2019 and decrease in freight
rates and charter hire rates during the year.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales of the Group in 2020 amounted to RMB1,892
million, representing a decrease of 20.9% compared with
RMB2,393 million in 2019. The decrease was due to the
decrease in coal handling and trading volume during the year
of 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The table below set forth the cost of sales of the coal business

segment:

EEEWED

TREFIREREE D FFOHERA -

Year ended 31 December
BE+=-A=1+—HLEE

2020 2019

. —F-NF

RMB million RMB million

ARBEERT AREHETL

Cost of coal purchased SN B R BB 66.9 417.9

Cost of coal transportation B I B Y AR 723.6 727.8

Cost of self-produced coal B E R R B 1,055.4 1,136.0

Materials, fuel, power FEL - RE S B 131.8 160.0

Staff costs B TITRA 256.5 256.0

Depreciation and amortisation ITE K B8 461.7 523.2

Others Hit 205.4 196.8
Total cost of sales of coal business R DR R E KA

segment 1,845.9 2,281.7

The Group produced coal mainly from Shanxi province in the
PRC. The following table sets forth information regarding the
Group’s origins of coal based on sales volume and revenue in

2020 and 2019:

AEEXTEETBELAEEERRK - TREINE
AASER T _TER_T-AFHHRRHEE
BA DR Z R HIR 2 B #Y -

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF

Sales volume Revenue Sales volume Revenue

HE ['ON HE WA

Origins of coal R % BB ’000 tonnes RMB’000 ’000 tonnes RMB’000

F g AR¥T T TmE ARET T

China A X 5,964 2,190,112 7,602 2,720,845

The Group has stable coal production and has established
stable cooperative relationships with its key PRC domestic

customers.

AEEBRERENRREERERETIEPHRBER
BEFEMY TRTEAERE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWED N

Gross Profit

The Group’s gross profit margin was 15.8% during the year
ended 31 December 2020 as compared with gross profit
margin of 14.5% during the same period in 2019. Gross profit
margin increased mainly due to the increase on average coal
price.

Other Income, Gains and Losses

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s other
income, gains and losses amounted to a net loss of RMB137.1
million, representing a decrease of approximately of RMB164.9
million, as compared with a net gain of RMB27.8 million in
2019. The decrease in other income, gains and losses in 2020
was mainly due to the one-off loss on the further revision on
revised repayment schedule of borrowings for the year ended
31 December 2020.

Distribution Expenses

Distribution expenses decrease by 48.9% to RMB2.3 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020, as compared with RMB4.5
million in 2019. The decrease in distribution expenses was due
to the decrease in coal handling and trading volume during the
year.

Administrative Expenses

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s
administrative expenses amounted to RMB208.4 million,
representing an increase of 48.0%, as compared with
RMB140.8 million in 2019. The increase was mainly attributable
to the increase in staff cost. The Group strived to provide
competitive remuneration package to existing staffs.

Other Expenses
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s other
expenses amounted to RMB33.5 million, representing an

increase of 6.0%, as compared with RMB31.6 million in 2019.
The expense level remained constant.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Net Finance Costs

Net finance costs of the Group in 2020 amounted to RMB369.0
million, representing an increase of 25.9%, as compared with
RMB293.0 million in 2019. The increase was mainly due to the
increase in borrowing rates.

Loss Attributable to Equity Shareholders

Loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2020 was RMB2.90
billion, representing a decline in financial performance of
approximately of RMB2.98 billion as compared with profit of
RMB81.4 million in the same period in 2019. The decline in the
Group’s financial performance was attributable to (i) mainly
significant impairment loss on the Group’s assets due to the
effect of decrease in coal reserves as detailed in the note 15
to the Group’s consolidated financial statements; and (ii) partly
the loss on debt restructuring arising from the further revision
on revised repayment schedule.

Impairment loss on coal mining rights, property, plant and
equipment

Impairment losses on the Group’s coal mining rights and
the related property, plant and equipment, amounting
to approximately RMB1,869,716,000 (2019: Nil),
RMB2,057,757,000 (2019: Nil) and were recognised for the
year ended 31 December 2020 to reflect the Group’s change
in estimate about the coal reserves.

During the production in late 2020, the mining team of the
Group had doubted that the coal reserves of all the Group’s
coal mines might be less than the previously estimated
amounts in accordance with the JORC Code. The directors of
the Company are of the view that the reasons for the changes
in estimates were mainly due to revision of modifying factors
such as in faulting areas and thickness of protecting pillars
that would decrease the mining recovery. The directors of
the Company then appointed a competent person, SRK
Consulting, to re-assess the coal reserves of all the Group’s
coal mines as at 31 December 2020 under JORC Code. Based
on the CPR issued by SRK Consulting in 2021, the Directors
are of the opinion that the estimated amounts of the coal
reserves are required to be adjusted downward.

EEEWED

B3 B A R R

AEBR_ZSE_ZEFHNHBRAFEEA
Eﬁzscsg,ooo,ooo;z BE_ZT-NFEARE
293,000,0007T#H125.9% T EBHAEE
FIRE N -

ERFEARGER

HE-_Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—HLFE  AQF
F‘*%EM’&WHJ&%@%/\E%2 900,000,0007T °
BT —NFREEHMARS1,400,0007T 48
C I RIA T B4 AR 2,980,000,0007T © A
%E@Eﬂ%%fﬁ?iﬁmi)z%m@m%lﬁ?é
EREW IS ME R FEERD T ES BA
EEEEMNERNRESE @ R()FHBERE—F
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBWED N

The Directors, with the assistance from an independent
professional qualified valuer, namely BMI Appraisals Limited,
assessed the recoverable amounts of the Group’s coal
mines and related property, plant and equipment. Each of
the Group’s coal mines and the related property, plant and
equipment are considered as an individual cash-generating
unit. The recoverable amount of each of the cash-generating
unit was estimated based on its value in use calculation which
uses cash flow projections based on the most recent financial
budgets approved by the Directors of the Company covering
a five-year period, and discount rates ranging from 13.75%
to 20.14% (2019: 13.10% to 14.60%) which were determined
with reference to weighted average cost of capital, and the
available coal reserves of approximately 57.97 million tonnes
(2019: 207.28 million tonnes), according to the CPR issued
by SRK Consulting, which comprise of approximately 17.09
million tonnes (2019: 65.62 million tonnes) in Xingtao Coal
Mine, approximately 8.86 million tonnes (2019: 36.18 million
tonnes) in Fengxi Coal Mine, approximately 8.06 million
tonnes (2019: 42.17 million tonnes) in Chongsheng Coal Mine,
approximately 13.50 million tonnes (2019: 32.02 million tonnes)
in Xinglong Coal Mine and approximately 10.46 million tonnes
(2019: 31.29 million tonnes) in Hongyuan Coal Mine, together
with other key inputs including the estimated coal prices
and production costs etc.. The discounted cash flow method
under the income approach was adopted for the year ended
31 December 2020 and 2019. Cash flows beyond the five-
year period have been extrapolated using an estimated 2.22%
(2019: 2.28%) growth rate which is the forecasted inflation rate
in China and do not exceed the average growth rate for the
relevant markets. The basis of discount rates, growth rate and
discounted cash flow method were consistently applied for the
year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. With the assistance
from SRK Consulting and BMI Appraisals Limited, the Directors
of the Company concluded that the estimated recoverable
amount of each of the following cash-generating units as at 31
December 2020 was below the respective carrying amount of
the cash-generating unit. As a result, impairment losses on the
Group’s coal mining rights and the related property, plant and
equipment, amounting to approximately RMB1,869,716,000
and RMB2,057,757,000 were recognised for the year ended
31 December 2020 to reflect the Group’s change in estimate
about the coal reserves.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
conducted a review of the Group’s assets in relation to the
shipping segment and determined that the recoverable
amount of certain asset which is based on the fair value less
cost of disposal are lower than its carrying amount and, with
reference to its value in use, would not generate future benefit
higher than such fair value less cost of disposal to the Group
and accordingly, impairment loss of RMB11,495,000 had been
recognised in respect of the such asset.

The Shareholders shall exercise caution in the trading of the
Company'’s shares.

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES AND CURRENT RATIO

As of 31 December 2020, the Group had net current liabilities
of HK$4,204.7 million, compared with HK$4,640.0 million
as of 31 December 2019. The Group’s current ratio as of
31 December 2020 was 0.18, compared with 0.12 as of 31
December 2019. The current liabilities and current ratio was
slightly improved due to increase in current assets.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND COMMITMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group incurred
an aggregate capital expenditure of HK$48.2 million (2019:
HK$206.3 million) mainly related to the purchase of plant
and equipment. Capital commitments contracted for but not
incurred by the Group as of 31 December 2020 amounted
to HK$35.0 million (2019: HK$9.7 million), which were mainly
related to the purchase of plant and equipment.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Save as disclosed in this report, there has been no material
change in the capital structure of the Company during the year.
The capital of the Group companies are mainly the ordinary
shares and perpetual subordinated convertible securities
(“PSCS”). Details of the ordinary shares and PSCS are set out
in note 31(b) and note 31(c).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWED N

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group adopts stringent financial management policies
and strives to maintain a healthy financial condition. The Group
funds its business operations and general working capital by
internally generated financial resources and bank borrowings.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group recorded net current
liabilities of RMB4,204.7 million (2019: RMB4,640.0 million).

The Group has taken initiative to enhance the financial flexibility
by diversifying the funding bases and seek medium term loans
to replace short term loans. The Group is currently negotiating
with financial institutions to renew and extend bank borrowings
and consider ways to improve the Group’s working capital.
As of 31 December 2020, the cash and cash equivalents of
the Group amounted to RMB154.9 million (2019: RMB159.7
million), representing a decrease of 3.01%.

As at 31 December 2020, the total bank and other borrowings
of the Group were RMB1,971.0 million (2019: RMB2,163.3
million), which were classified as current liabilities in which the
aggregate borrowings and accrued interests of RMB1,144.6
million (2019: RMB1,005.4 million) and RMB356.0 million (2019:
RMB264.3 million) respectively were past due, and aggregate
amounts of RMB826.4 million (2019: RMB1,091.5 million) and
nil (2019: RMB66.5 million) were repayable within one year
and after one year respectively from the end of reporting date
based on the agreed scheduled repayments set out in the loan
agreements, had become due for immediate repayment as
these bank loans contain cross default clauses are classified
as current liabilities. These borrowings and interest payables
were classified as current liabilities at the end of reporting
period. The bank and other borrowings carried interest at rates
ranging from 3.9% to 8.8% (2019: 4.75% to 8%) per annum.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had total banking facilities
of RMB910.6 million (2019: RMB1,228.7 million), of which
RMB910.6 million (2019: RMB1,228.7 million) were utilised.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents, except amount of RMB8.6 million in United States
dollars (“USD”) and amount of RMB0.19 million in Hong Kong
dollars (“HKD”), were held in RMB. All the Group’s bank and
other borrowings were made in RMB.

The Group incurred net loss of approximately
RMB3,436,870,000 (2019: profit of RMB80,723,000) for the
year ended 31 December 2020. As at 31 December 2020,
the Group had net liabilities and net current liabilities of
approximately RMB2,896,084,000 and RMB4,204,749,000
respectively (2019: net assets and net current liabilities of
approximately RMB565,264,000 and RMB4,639,986,000)
respectively). The impairment losses on the Group’s coal
mining rights and the related property, plant and equipment,
amounting to approximately RMB1,869,716,000 and
RMB2,057,757,000 were recognised for the year ended 31
December 2020 to reflect the Group’s change in estimate
about the coal reserves. Although the Group strived to
maintain positive relationship with the creditors, the Group has
not obtained waivers from the relevant banks/lenders on these
loans which contain cross default clauses as at the date of
the annual report. Material uncertainties, such as demanding
immediate repayment from the Group by the creditors, may
arise after the disclosure of financial position for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

The gearing ratio (calculated as borrowings netted off sum
of cash and cash equivalents and pledged and restricted
deposits divided by total assets) of the Group as at 31
December 2020 was 83.8% (2019: 44.5%). The gearing
ratio increased due to the total asset decrease according to
increase in loss attributable to equity shareholders for the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWED N

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents are held predominately
in RMB and USD. Operating outgoings incurred by the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC are mainly denominated in RMB while
overseas purchases are usually denominated in USD. The
Group’s subsidiaries usually receive revenue in RMB. Hence,
the Directors do not consider that the Group faces significant
exposure to foreign exchange fluctuation risk.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS OF THE GROUP

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s assets in an aggregate
amount of RMB2,534.2 million (2019: RMB5,036.3 million) in
forms of property, plant and equipment, coal mining rights,
lease prepayments, inventories, trade and bill receivables and
bank deposits were pledged to banks and asset management
companies for credit facilities granted to the Group.

The decrease in the aggregate amount of pledged assets of
the Group were due to the material adjustment on the estimate
amount of coal reserves in 2020 that led to the impairment loss
of coal mining rights and property, plant and equipment as
disclosed in note 15 and 16 respectively.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Except for certain matters disclosed in the Note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report, the
Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2020.

According to the acquisition agreements dated 17 November
2010 and 26 October 2011, the vendors, who are the non-
controlling shareholders upon completion of the acquisition
agreed and represented that the mineable coal reserves of
the Chongsheng Coal Mine, the Fengxi Coal Mine and the
Xingtao Coal Mine shall not be less than the minimum level
of mineable coal reserves of 290 million tons. Concerning the
material adjustment on the estimate amount of coal reserves
in 2020, the Group has initiated to file an application of
arbitration against non-controlling shareholders. The proposed
compensation total RMB3,331,918,853 under arbitration by the
respondents consists of the refund on a part of consideration
RMB3,029,168,853, levies RMB300,000,000 and miscellaneous
fee RMB2,750,000.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Up to the date of the annual report, the arbitration is in
progress. As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not
recognise any of such contingent assets.

FINAL DIVIDEND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2020

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

In year 2021, the pandemic will begin to ease and the global
economy is expected to demonstrate gradually recovery
thanks to the widespread vaccination gradually rolling out. The
domestic demand for coal is expected to increase significantly,
and the downstream industries demand for coal will provide a
rigid support for coal price. With the release of new production
capacity, the domestic supply and demand of coal will be
balanced in the coming year.

With respect to the supply side of coal, there will be some
uncertainties in the volume of coal to be imported from
Australia in the year to come due to the continuing restrictions
concerning coal imports from Australia. Considering that there
may be a slight decrease in the volume of imported coal next
year, to ensure the stability of the supply chain, the Group will
not only take an active approach to improve the production
efficiency and increase the production level of coal mines
owned by the Group, but also continue to explore investment
opportunities to ensure supply of coal with reliable and stable
quantity and quality.

The Group will focus on developing overseas coal markets,
and continue to seek long-term relationships in an active
manner. The Group aims to establish a competitive team and
has successively set up branches in a number of countries
across the world, including Indonesia and Singapore, striving
to capture opportunities to commence global large-scale
projects. In addition, the coal mine expected to be acquired by
the Group in Indonesia is a key project for the next few years,
and it is expected that the design and construction of the coal
mine will commence within the year 2021, which will enhance
the coal production volume of the Group in the future once it
becomes operational.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Group will continue to negotiate with domestic financing
institutions to consider various types of financing programs
to improve its free cash flow and promote major projects. As
the Company cautions that the operating costs will increase in
the future, the management will pay additional attention to the
control of the Group’s human resources and other production
costs. Meanwhile, the management will also actively manage
the internal control through refined management, an efficient
and stringent business execution system and an internal
monitoring and feedback system, with its aim of improving the
production efficiency of coal mines and project profitability.
Overall, the management is confident that the Group will
continue to maintain its scale and advantages in the years to
come.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the applicable code
provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) during the financial year ended 31 December
2020.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

As of 31 December 2020, the Group employed 2,070
employees. The Group has adopted a performance-based
reward system to motivate its staff and such system is reviewed
on a regular basis. In addition to the basic salaries, year-end
bonuses may be offered to staff members with outstanding
performance.

Subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC are also
subject to central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. In accordance with the relevant national
and local labour and social welfare laws and regulations,
subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC are
required to pay on behalf of their employees a monthly social
insurance premium covering pension insurance, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance and other relevant
insurance. Subsidiaries of the Company incorporated in Hong
Kong have participated in mandatory provident fund scheme,
if applicable, in accordance with Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Moreover, the Company adopted a pre-IPO share option
scheme and a post-IPO share option scheme to incentivise
and retain staff members who have made contribution to
the success of the Group. The Directors believe that the
compensation packages offered by the Group to its staff
are competitive in comparison with market standards and
practices.

MULTIPLE UNCERTAINTIES RELATING TO GOING
CONCERN

As set out in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group incurred net loss of approximately
RMB3,436,870,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had net liabilities and
net current liabilities of approximately RMB2,896,084,000 and
RMB4,204,749,000 respectively. As at 31 December 2020,
the Group’s borrowings and accrued interest amounting to
an aggregate amount of approximately RMB1,808,207,000
and approximately RMB359,171,000 respectively had been
due for immediate payment. In addition, as set out in note 28
to the consolidated financial statements, the Group’s other
borrowings with carrying amounts of RMB2,788,147,000 as
at 31 December 2020 with no event of default, contained a
default clause that the Group will be required for repayment of
the outstanding balance of the original borrowings and interest
payables in the event of default. Moreover, as at 31 December
2020, there were several unsettled litigations against the Group
mainly requesting the Group to repay certain payables with
interest immediately as set out in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements. These conditions, along with other matters
as set forth in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements,
indicate the existence of material uncertainties which may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

Should the Group be unable to continue in business as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to write down
the carrying amounts of the Group’s assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities that may arise
and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities
as current assets and current liabilities respectively. The
effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT’S VIEW ON DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
BY THE GROUP’S AUDITOR

The management is of the view that the Group will be able to
meet in full the Group’s financial obligations as they fall due
for the twelve months from 31 December 2020 based on (i) the
Group historically generated net cash inflow from operating
activities of approximately RMB527 million and RMB708 million
for year 2020 and 2019 respectively; (ii) the profit forecast
and the cashflow forecast of the Group for the year ending
31 December 2021 and 2022, in which the management is
optimistic that the Group’s loans due for immediate repayment
will be extended/refinanced based on the past experience
and the management is of the opinion that the Group has
good relationship with the creditors which would enhance
the Group’s ability to successfully renew/extend the loans;
and (iii) in respect of the some of the outstanding litigations,
by reference to the legal opinion issued by the Group’s legal
counsel handling the litigations, the management considered
that the Group had valid grounds to defend against the claims.

However, the Group’s auditor were of the view that the
material uncertainties were not comprehensively addressed
with sufficient appropriate audit evidence to conclude on
the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going
concern basis.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The management will strive to address the material
uncertainties of going concern throughout 2021 by taking the
following measures: (i) strive to reach an agreement or a loan
restructuring proposal with the bank or asset management
company, in respect of the lawsuit filed by the bank on 5
February 2021 as detailed in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements, for the renewal/extension of the loans,
restructuring of the loan and withdrawal of the litigation by
the end of December 2021; (ii) active negotiation with the
other creditors to secure successful renewal of loans and/or
extension of the repayment terms of the loans by the end of
December 2021; (iii) strive to obtain additional new sources of
financing with appropriate evidence and realise certain of the
Group’s assets (e.g. the Group is in the progress to complete
the disposal of a vessel named Super Grace by June 2021,
which was disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
10 March 2021, for the purpose of settling certain borrowings)
when needed; (iv) strive to follow up with external/legal lawyers
to handle the outstanding litigations, and to defend against the
claims by non-controlling shareholders and to mitigate the risk
exposure from any other legal claims in a proactive manner
but, the timeline will have to be subject to the court/arbitration
schedule for the litigations; and (v) throughout the year strive
to accelerate the coal production of coal mines currently under
production and application for renewal of those expired coal
mining rights of coal mines not yet commenced production,
together with applying cost control measures.

Pursuant to the management’s discussion with the Group’s
auditor, the disclaimer of opinion on going concern will not be
issued in the next financial year if the Group can successfully
implement the above measures with satisfactory result, and
without new negative factors that are unforeseeable as of the
date of annual report that may result in disclaimer of opinion
solely on going concern.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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AUDIT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD

An audit committee was established by the Board on 12 June
2009 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Code. The primary duties of the audit committee are to review
and supervise the Group’s financial reporting process and
internal controls. The members of the audit committee of the
Board are the three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. LAU Sik Yuen, Prof. SHA Zhenquan and Mr. JING
Dacheng. Mr. LAU Sik Yuen is the chairperson of the audit
committee of the Board.

The audit committee has reviewed the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the financial year ended
31 December 2020.

The Directors and the audit committee has reviewed and
agreed with the modifications on audit opinion by the Group’s
auditor and the management’s position concerning major
judgmental areas.
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The Board presents this annual report, together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Consolidated Financial
Statements”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group is principally engaged in the coal operation
business involving coal mining, purchase and sales,
filtering, storage, blending of coal in the PRC and shipping
transportation. The principal activities of the major subsidiaries
of the Company are set out in note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of the business review information are set out in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 7 to 30 of this report and the section “Corporate Social
Responsibility” on pages 81 to 83 of this report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Directors are aware that the Group’s financial condition,
results of operation, businesses and prospects may be
affected by a number of risks and uncertainties as follows:

Risks of macroeconomic fluctuations and national policies

Coal industry is closely linked to the macroeconomy and
industrial regulatory policies. With current complex external
environment, there have been economic downward pressure
and relative measures by government such as supply-side
reform. The Group will continue to monitor the macroeconomic
development and to adjust its strategies to cope with the risks.
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Risk of fluctuation on commodity price

International and domestic coal prices are affected by various
microeconomic factors, industrial factors, national policies,
market demand and supply, characteristics of coal and
volatility in prices of other raw materials for power generation
etc.. The Group will flexibly adjust its strategies and implement
measures such as cost control to minimise the impact on profit
margin caused by fluctuation on coal price.

Risk of safety production

The production process of coal mining involve complex
uncertainties that involve higher safety risks. The Group
continues to strengthen its safety management and control
system by implementing assessment on significant safety risks,
risk prevention measures, regular inspections, regular safety
production training, upgrade on automation of production
process, review of procedure on addressing potential safety
hazards and promotion of safety awareness among employee.

Risks of creditability and liquidity

Due to slowdown of domestic economy, the Group’s
customers may suffer from liquidity and cash flow problems
that will inevitably affect the recoverability of the Group’s trade
receivables and the Group’s liquidity. The Group will closely
monitor its credit exposure, continuously evaluate the collection
history of its customers, adjust the credit line and credit period
given to customers and closely monitor the Group’s liquidity
requirements on ongoing basis in order to maintain sufficient
reserves of cash for operational need.
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Multiple uncertainties relating to going concern

As set out in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group incurred net loss of approximately
RMB3,436,870,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had net liabilities and
net current liabilities of approximately RMB2,896,084,000 and
RMB4,204,749,000 respectively. As at 31 December 2020,
the Group’s borrowings and accrued interest amounting to
an aggregate amount of approximately RMB1,808,207,000
and approximately RMB359,171,000 respectively had been
due for immediate payment. In addition, as set out in note 28
to the consolidated financial statements, the Group’s other
borrowings with carrying amounts of RMB2,788,147,000 as
at 31 December 2020 with no event of default, contained a
default clause that the Group will be required for repayment of
the outstanding balance of the original borrowings and interest
payables in the event of default. Moreover, as at 31 December
2020, there were several unsettled litigations against the Group
mainly requesting the Group to repay certain payables with
interest immediately as set out in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statement. These conditions, along with other matters
as set forth in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements,
indicate the existence of material uncertainties which may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The directors believe that the Group has complied in all
material aspects with the relevant laws and regulations that are
related to the business and operation of the Group. There was
no material breach of or non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations which might have a significant impact on its
business.

The Group is subject to various laws and regulations such
as the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Property
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Coal Industry Law
of the People’s Republic of China, the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Listing Rules and
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622), etc. The Group will
continuously ensure compliance through closely monitor on
applicable law and regulations that may have a significant
impact on its business and operation.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 89
of this report.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds
in share premium account and contributed surplus are
distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition that
immediately following the date on which the distribution or
dividend is proposed to be made, the Company is able to pay
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

As at 31 December 2020, the Company did not have any
distributable reserves (2019: RMB102,538,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”) or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which
the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s result for each of the five years
ended 31 December 2020 and the Group’s assets, liabilities
and equity as at 31 December 2016, 2017, 2018, 2019 and
2020 are set out on page 4 of this report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any listed securities of the Company.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year of 2020 and up to the date of this
report are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. XU Da (Chairman)
Mr. BAIl Tao (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. WANG Jianfei
Mr. FUNG Wai Shing (resigned with effect from 5 March 2021)
Mr. TAN Yingzhong (Chief Financial Officer)
(appointed with effect from 1 April 2021)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen
Prof. SHA Zhenguan
Mr. JING Dacheng

Pursuant to Article 83(3) of the Articles, the Directors shall
have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint
any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the
Board or as an addition to the existing Board. Any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office until the first general meeting of shareholders after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting
and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to
the existing Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election. Any Director appointed pursuant to
Article 83(3) of the Articles shall not be taken into account
in determining which particular Directors or the number of
Directors who are to retire by rotation.

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at
least once every three years and shall then be eligible for re-
election.

At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company,
Mr. TAN Yingzhong who was appointed by the Board on 1
April 2021 will retire in accordance with Article 83(3) of the
Articles while Ms. WANG Jianfei, Mr. BAl Tao and Prof. SHA
Zhenquan will retire by rotation in accordance with Article
84(1) of the Articles. All retiring Directors, being eligible, would
offer themselves for re-election at the Annual General Meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
Annual General Meeting has an unexpired service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save for the Structure Contracts (as defined in the Prospectus),
the details of which are set for the in the paragraphs
under “Connected Transactions” below, no transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company and any of its
subsidiaries or holding company was a party and in which
a Director is or was materially interested or had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors the confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and the
Board considers the independent non-executive Directors to
be independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management
as at the date of publication of the annual report are set out on
pages 58 to 62 of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (the “SFQ”)), which were required (a) to be
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (b) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
(the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:

Interests in the Company
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Approximate percentage
of issued share capital

Number of shares of the Company (%)
HERAFEBITREZHA
B EE B7 (%)
Long Short Long Short
Name of Director Nature of interest positions positions positions positions
EEHE ERtE HE KB HE KRB
Ms. WANG Jianfei Beneficial Owner 100,000,000 Nil 4.01 Nil
FRIF 2+ EnBEAA Fiis i
Mr. XU Da* Beneficial Owner 93,135,251 Nil 3.74 Nil
mELE EmfAA i i
Mr. BAI Tao Beneficial Owner 50,000,000 Nil 2.01 Nil
HEEE EmEEA i3 i
Mr. FUNG Wai Shing Beneficial Owner (Note 1)
(resigned with effect
from 5 March 2021) 45,000,000 Nil 1.80 Nil
HEKEEBZZ=—F ERxBEAAMFED
= AR BEEHT) i i
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen Beneficial owner (Note 2) 500,000 Nil 0.02 Nil
2R E Enla A2 i i
Notes: B3
1. The beneficial interest of 45,000,000 shares includes 20,000,000 shares 1. 45,000,000/ 50 ¢ BEmiEm BIFEARBR ZZ—
that may be issued pursuant to the full exercise of the options granted EFMA=ZTHIREBEBRET IR T HERTEZR
to Mr. FUNG Wai Shing under the Share Option Scheme on 30 April iR 1 7 2 TED 17 {58 FRF 7 3% 77 89 20,000,000% B 17 © EHA
2015. Due to Mr. FUNG Wai Shing’s resignation, the 20,000,000 options ISR ST £ BT - B H#/920,000,00017 B8 B 42 B 7
granted have lapsed on 5 March 2021. T —F=ARAHRK -
2. The beneficial interest represents 500,000 shares that may be issued 2. EnBaERARARR S —AFHA =+ HIREE

pursuant to the full exercise of the options granted to Mr. LAU Sik Yuen
under the Share Option Scheme on 30 April 2015.

Mr. XU Da, being a Director, is also acting as the Chairman of the
Board.

Rt BIR T RHREEZ BREERETEE A
BEFETTHI500,0008 1D ©
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none
of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required
(a) to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (b) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of
the persons, other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register of interests required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as
follows:

Number of shares

BEXFREESN  R-E-FF+-A= +f
A AAREFRBHTRABBBRAL

EAT AR R (R R %&%fh%%Wﬂ)
2R - FBRRD KBS TG ()E 5 R
P 3521638 T AN AR AEEBEMA
()R ST BA MR A A 7 B3 P 2 M3
B -

TERRAARDAREPZEER LR

RZF-FF+-_A=+—8H "  TIALHGER
AEEFXERITRABINRARE Z BN K&HE
BB F - BERARARIEREZF MBS
336IRIFE 2 R B MATRE S 2 e R A -

Approximate percentage
of issued share capital of
the Company (%)

HERABERITREZ
RO E AT D (%)
Name of shareholder Nature of interest Long Short Long Short
positions positions positions positions

RREE EEME i) RE HE RE
Mr. XU Jihua (Note 1) Beneficial owner 14,229,610 Nil 0.57 Nil
REEL A ) EmlEEA i i

Interest in a controlled

corporation 1,203,000,000 Nil 48.25

MR R R 2 s i
Fortune Pearl International Beneficial owner

Limited (Note 1) 1,203,000,000 Nil 48.25 Nil
PREBRBERAB(MME) BERm#EBEA i i
Yangyuan Jintong Beneficial owner

Transportation Corp.

Ltd. 215,000,000 Nil 8.62 Nil
BEET %/}luﬁﬁEL\_J E%%ﬁA i3 i3
Note: fHsE -

1. Mr. XU Jihua is the father of Mr. XU Da. Mr. XU Da is the chairman and 1. %ti%iﬁ@ijﬁimﬁiﬁ REEERAEEN
an executive Director of the Group. Mr. XU Jihua is interested in 100% FEFPTEST - REELLEREEREBERA

shareholding of Fortune Pearl International Limited (“Fortune Pearl”),
which in turn is interested in 1,085,000,000 shares and 118,000,000
shares which may be allotted and issued upon full conversion of the
PSCS held directly by Fortune Pearl. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Xu Jihua
is deemed to have interests in the shares so held by Fortune Pearl.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the
Company had not been notified by any persons (other than
Directors or the chief executive of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
and the Share Option Scheme detailed in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements, at no time during the year
ended 31 December 2020 was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debts securities (including debentures) of, the Company or any
other body corporate and none of the Directors, their spouses
or children under the age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such rights.

PERPETUAL SUBORDINATED CONVERTIBLE
SECURITIES

The Company had outstanding PSCS in the principal amount
of HKD194,700,000 as at 31 December 2020, which was
convertible into ordinary shares in the Company at the initial
conversion price of HKD1.65 per conversion share (subject to
adjustments). Assuming the exercise in full of the conversion
rights attaching to the PSCS at the initial conversion price,
a total of 118,000,000 conversion shares will be issued. The
PSCS were held by Fortune Pearl. The sole ultimate beneficial
owner of the Fortune Pearl is Mr. Xu Jihua, who is the father of
Mr. Xu Da and the controlling shareholder of the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the applicable laws, every director of the Group’s
companies shall be entitled to be indemnified by the relevant
company against all costs, charges, losses, expenses
and liabilities incurred by him or her in the execution and
discharge of his or her duties or in relation thereto pursuant
to their respective Articles of Associations. Such provisions
were in force during the course of the financial year ended 31
December 2020 and remained in force as of the date of this
report.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the Group to reward its employees
is based on their performance, duties and responsibilities,
qualifications and competence displayed. The Group has
adopted a performance based rewarding system to motivate
its employees and such system is reviewed on a regular basis.
In addition to the basic salaries, year end bonuses will be
offered to those staff members with outstanding performance.

Emoluments payable to the senior management of the Group
are decided by the remuneration committee of the Board,
having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
experience, performance and responsibility, and the
compensation levels adopted by companies of comparable
size engaging in similar business.

Emoluments payable to the Directors are decided by the
remuneration committee of the Board, having regard to the
compensation levels adopted by companies of similar size
engaging in similar business.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the
five highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in notes
12 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

DONATIONS
During the year, no charitable donations were made by the

Group (2019: RMB183,000) to enhance social development in
various aspects.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and customers were
as follows:
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Purchases KB
~ the largest supplier - RAHIER 38.20%
—five largest suppliers in aggregate - AREEREE 61.58%
Sales HE®
- the largest customer -mARP 33.36%
—five largest customers in aggregate -AREFAF 76.43%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in these major
suppliers or customers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group carried out the following continuing connected
transactions (other than continuing connected transactions
that are exempted under Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules)
during the year ended 31 December 2020:

On 12 June 2009, Zhuhai Qinfa Logistics Co., Ltd. (“Qinfa
Logistics”), which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, each member of the China Qinfa Group (as defined
in the Prospectus), and their respective equity interest holders
(which include Mr. XU Jihua, Mr. XU Da, Mr. LIU Jingwei and
Ms. ZHOU Lusha, all being the then Controlling Shareholders
of the Company (as defined in the Prospectus)) entered into
the Structure Contracts (as defined in the Prospectus) for a
term of 10 years pursuant to which Qinfa Logistics agreed to
pay an annual fee of RMB10,000 to each member of the China
Qinfa Group for the exclusive management and operation
of the coal operation business and the inland shipping
transportation business of the China Qinfa Group, and all
economic benefits and risks arising from the business of the
China Qinfa Group are transferred to Qinfa Logistics. Further
details of the Structure Contracts are set forth in the section
headed “Reorganisation and the Structure Contracts” in the
Prospectus.
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The Stock Exchange has granted a perpetual waiver pursuant
to the Rule 14A.105 of the Listing Rules to the Company
for all transactions under the Structure Contracts from
strict compliance with the applicable announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the auditor of the Company to perform procedures on
the above continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56. A
copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange.

The independent non-executive Directors have confirmed
that the above-mentioned continuing connected transactions
for the Company were entered into: (i) in the ordinary and
usual course of the Group’s business; (ii) in accordance
with the terms of the respective agreements governing such
transactions on terms that were fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole;
and (iii) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no
less favourable to the Group than those available to or from
independent third parties.

Besides, the independent non-executive Directors have
conducted an annual review on the Structure Contracts and
have confirmed that (i) the transactions carried out during
2020 have been entered into in the ordinary and usual course
of the Group’s business; (ii) the transactions carried out during
2020 have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the Structure Contracts and so that all revenue
generated by China Qinfa Group has been retained by Qinfa
Logistics; (iii) any new contracts or renewed contracts have
been entered into on the same terms as the existing Structure
Contracts and are fair and reasonable so far as the Group is
concerned and in the interests of the shareholders as a whole;
and (iv) no dividends or other distributions have been made by
any member of China Qinfa Group to its equity interest holders.
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The Group comprises China Qinfa Group (as defined in the
Prospectus) and Hong Kong Qinfa Group (as defined in the
Prospectus). Having considered the demand for coal imported
from overseas into China and the expansion of the Group’s
overseas coal operation business, the Directors strategically
planned to centralise the management and operation of the
Group’s coal business in China and overseas markets and
determined that Hong Kong Qinfa Group should manage
and operate the coal operation business in China through
the establishment of Zhuhai Qinfa Logistics Co. Ltd. (“Qinfa
Logistics”), a member of Hong Kong Qinfa Group and an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in February
2008.

As disclosed in the Prospectus, after verbal consultations
with the relevant PRC governmental authorities at Zhuhai at
which the Group operated its coal business, the Directors
understood that the PRC governmental authorities did not
grant Coal Operation Certificates to foreign equity controlled
companies as a matter of practice. In addition, according
to the relevant provisions of (i) the Catalog of Industries for
Encouraged Foreign Investment (2019 Edition), the domestic
waterway transport industry is not included in the category of
encouraged foreign investment; (ii) the Special Administrative
Measures (Negative List) for Foreign Investment Access
(2019 Edition) (the “Negative List (2019 Edition)”), a domestic
waterway transportation company shall be controlled by
PRC parties; and (iii) the Regulations on the Management of
Domestic Waterway Transportation revised on 24 February
2020, the PRC government implements an administrative
licensing system for relevant companies engaged in domestic
waterway transportation business, while reviewing the foreign
shareholders and their proportion of shareholding in the
company according to the above-mentioned Negative List
(2019 Edition). If the proportion does not meet the requirements
of the Negative List (2019 Edition), such administrative licenses
cannot be obtained. These views had been confirmed by the
PRC legal advisers of the Company.
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In order to allow Hong Kong Qinfa Group to manage and
operate the coal operation business in China, the Engagement
Agreements and the Pledge Agreements (as defined in the
Prospectus) (collectively the “Structure Contracts”) were
entered into under which all the business activities of China
Qinfa Group are managed and operated by Qinfa Logistics
and all economic benefits and risks arising from the business
of China Qinfa Group are transferred to Qinfa Logistics.
Pursuant to the equity transfer agreements dated 25 October
2010, 15 December 2010 and 17 December 2010, equity
interests of Qinhuangdao Qinfa Trading Co., Ltd., Yangyuan
Guotong Coal Trading and Transportation Co., Ltd. and
Datong Xiejiazhuang Jinfa Trading and Transportation
Co., Ltd have been transferred to the Group. As of 31
December 2020, Zhuhai Qinfa Trading Co., Ltd (“Zhuhai
Qinfa Trading”) and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping Co., Ltd. (“Zhuhai
Qinfa Shipping”) remained controlled by the Group under the
Structure Contracts. As advised by the PRC legal advisers
of the Company, foreign investment is allowed to operate
coal trading business according to the Guidance of Foreign
Investment (Amended 2017). As such, the Company proposes
to unwind the contractual arrangement of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading
in due course. In addition, as the business scope set out in
the Business License for Corporation of Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping
and the general cargo ship transportation it actually engaged
in domestic coastal regions and central and downstream
Yangtze River regions are managed under the Negative
List, the operating entity shall be controlled by PRC parties.
Accordingly, Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping still needs to sign relevant
framework agreements with Zhuhai Qinfa Logistics Co., Ltd.
and/or other entities to meet compliance requirements.
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Mr. Xu Jihua, Ms Wang Jianfei, Mr. Xu Da, Zhuhai Qinfa Trading
and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping entered into the Engagement
Agreements and the Pledge Agreements on 12 June 2009.
Qinfa Logistics is entitled to all the revenue of Zhuhai Qinfa
Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping after deducting all relevant
costs and expenses (including taxes) and has the right to
acquire any or all of the equity interests and/or assets of
Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping at the lowest
possible amount and at such time as permitted by the relevant
PRC laws and regulations. All equity holders of Zhuhai Qinfa
Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping have granted to Qinfa
Logistics a pledge over the equity interests in equity holders
for the purpose of securing the performance of the contractual
obligations under the Structure Contracts. Any amendment to
the Structure Contracts shall be subject to the approvals of
(i) the directors nominated by Qinfa Logistics to Zhuhai Qinfa
Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping, and (ii) for the purpose
of promoting good corporate governance, the shareholders in
general meeting. No amendments to the Structure Contracts
can be made unless required under the Listing Rules or
approved by Qinfa Logistics in writing in advance. For
details of the Structure Contracts, please refer to the section
headed “Reorganisation and the Structure Contracts” in the
Prospectus.
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The Structure Contracts, taken as a whole, permit the financial
results of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping
and economic benefits of their business to flow onto Qinfa
Logistics. In addition, all the directors in Zhuhai Qinfa Trading
and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping are to be nominated by Qinfa
Logistics. Through its control over the directors of Zhuhai
Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping, Qinfa Logistics is
able to monitor, supervise and effectively control the business,
operations and financial policies of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and
Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping so as to ensure due implementation of
the Structure Contracts. The Structure Contracts also enable
Qinfa Logistics to exercise control over and to acquire the
equity interests and/or assets of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and
Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping at the lowest value and at such time
as permitted by the relevant PRC laws and regulations with
an undertaking from the Controlling Shareholders to provide
to Qinfa Logistics all the consideration received pursuant to
any such acquisition. Based on the Structure Contracts, the
Directors consider that, notwithstanding the lack of equity
ownership between members of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and
Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping and Hong Kong Qinfa Group, Qinfa
Logistics is entitled to control the business of Zhuhai Qinfa
Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping in substance. On this
basis, the financial position and operating results of Zhuhai
Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping are included in the
Group'’s consolidated financial statements.

As a result of the Structure Contracts, Zhuhai Qinfa Trading
and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping are accounted for as the
Company’s subsidiaries, and their financial position and
operating results are consolidated in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. The revenue and total asset value subject
to the arrangements under the Structure Contracts amounted
to approximately RMB19,837,000 (2019: RMB46,285,000)
for the year ended 31 December 2020 and approximately
RMB164,980,000 (2019: RMB186,825,000) as of 31 December
2020, respectively.

The Structure Contracts are governed by the PRC laws and
provide for the resolution of disputes through arbitration in
accordance with the arbitration rules of China International
Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission in force at that
time (the “CIETAC Arbitration Rules”) in China. Accordingly,
the Structure Contracts would be interpreted in accordance
with the PRC law and any disputes would be finally resolved by
arbitration in accordance with the CIETAC Arbitration Rules.
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There are risks involved with the operation of the Group
under the Structure Contracts. To the best knowledge of the
Directors, if the Structure Contracts are considered to be in
breach of any existing or future PRC laws or regulations, the
relevant regulatory authorities would have broad discretion in
dealing with such breach, including:

imposing economic penalties;

discontinuing or restricting the operations of Hong Kong
Qinfa Group or Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa

Shipping;

imposing conditions or requirements in respect of the
Structure Contracts with which Zhuhai Qinfa Trading
and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping may not be able to comply;

requiring the Group to restructure the relevant
ownership structure or operations;

taking other regulatory or enforcement actions that
could adversely affect the business of the Group; and

revoking the business licences and/or the licences or
certificates of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa
Shipping and/or voiding the Structure Contracts.

The Group takes the following measures to mitigate the
risk and to ensure proper implementation of the Structure
Contracts:

(a)

as part of the internal control measures, major issues
arising from implementation and performance of the
Structure Contracts are reviewed by the board of
directors of Qinfa Logistics on a regular basis which is
no less frequent than on a quarterly basis;

matters relating to compliance and regulatory enquiries
from governmental authorities (if any) are discussed at
such regular meetings which is no less frequent than on
a quarterly basis; and

the relevant business units and operation divisions of
the Hong Kong Qinfa Group report regularly, which is
no less frequent than on a monthly basis, to the senior
management of Qinfa Logistics on the compliance and
performance conditions under the Structure Contracts
and other related matters.
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The Board confirmed that there is no material change in the
contractual arrangements under the Structure Contracts
and/or the circumstances under which they were adopted,
and their impact on the Group. The Board also confirmed
that save for the removal of restrictions on foreign equity
controlled companies to operate coal trading business as
disclosed above, there is no removal of restrictions that led
to the adoption of the Structure Contracts. The Engagement
Agreements and the Pledge Agreements were renewed on 12
June 2019.

The Foreign Investment Law of the People’s Republic of
China (the “Foreign Investment Law”), the Regulations on
Implementing the Foreign Investment Law of the People’s
Republic of China (the “Implementing Regulations”) and the
Interpretation of Several Issues Concerning the Application of
the Foreign Investment Law of the People’s Republic of China
(the “Judicial Interpretation”) issued by the Supreme People’s
Court implemented on 1 January 2020 have not stipulate
directly and clearly the regulation and mechanism in relation to
structure contracts. Nevertheless, the further interpretation of
the Foreign Investment Law by the PRC government may also
bring uncertainties to the corporate structure, management of
subsidiaries, corporate regulation and business operation of
the Company.

The Company will pay close attention to the implementation
and possible further interpretation of the Foreign Investment
Law by the relevant PRC authorities, and will engage external
legal advisors and industry consultants to provide opinions on
the impact and possible solutions to ensure timely compliance
with the Foreign Investment Law by making necessary
responses and adjustments to its implementation and further
interpretation.

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 37
to the consolidated financial statements. The related party
transactions as disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements constituted exempt continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and
accordingly, are exempted from the disclosure requirements in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The related party transactions
as disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements
are not regarded as connected transactions under chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.
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The PSCS was approved by the independent shareholders
on 31 December 2012. On 22 May 2020, with reference to the
financial position at the 31 December 2019, the Company did
not exercise its discretion to elect the deferral of distribution of
approximately HKD17,523,000, being the total outstanding sum
distributable to the holders of the PSCS as at 31 December
2019. On 26 May 2020, distribution payment of approximately
HKD11,682,000 was made to the holder of PSCS. In view of
the current financial position of the Company, the Directors will
re-assess the appropriateness on exercising the discretion to
elect the deferral of distribution of the sum of HKD5,841,000
for the year ended 31 December 2020 pursuant to the terms of
the PSCS.

The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has adopted a Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
and a Share Option Scheme (the “2009 Share Option Scheme”)
on 12 June 2009 and a Share Option Scheme on 27 June 2018
(the “2018 Share Option Scheme”). The principal terms of the
schemes are as follows:

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the sole shareholder’s written resolutions passed
on 12 June 2009, the Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme whereby employees and directors of the
Group were granted the rights to subscribe for shares on the
same day.

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
recognise the contribution by certain employees towards the
growth of the Group and/or the listing of the shares on the
Stock Exchange. The principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme are substantially the same as the terms of the
Share Option Scheme, except that:

(i the exercise price per share; and

(ii) the total number of shares which may be issued
pursuant to options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme.

Save for the options which have been granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme, no further options will be offered or
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, as the right
to do so has been terminated upon the listing of the shares on
the Stock Exchange.
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Share Option Schemes

On 12 June 2009, the Company adopted the 2009 Share
Option Scheme which shall be valid and effective for a period
of ten years commencing from 12 June 2009. The Company
has terminated the 2009 Share Option Scheme and adopted
the 2018 Share Option Scheme pursuant to a resolution
passed by the Shareholders at the general meeting on 27
June 2018. The 2018 Share Option Scheme shall be valid
and effective for a period of 10 years commencing from 27
June 2018. No further options can be granted pursuant to the
2009 Share Option Scheme. Nonetheless, options granted
prior to the termination of the 2009 Share Option Scheme shall
continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the
rules of the 2009 Share Option Scheme. No share options had
been granted under the 2018 Share Option Scheme since its
adoption. The major terms of the 2009 Share Option Scheme
and the 2018 Share Option Scheme (collectively, the “Share
Option Schemes”), which are substantially the same, are set
out below.

The purpose of the Share Option Schemes is to provide
incentive or reward to eligible persons (including full time
or part time employees, executive, non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors of our Group) for
their contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the
interests of, the Company and to enable the Company and its
subsidiaries to recruit and retain high-caliber employees.

The subscription price shall be a price determined by the
Directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
nominal value of the share; (ii) the closing price of the shares
on the date of the offer; and (iii) the average closing price of
the shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of the offer.

The total number of shares issued and which may be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Share Option
Scheme to an employee in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue. Any further grant of options
in excess of this limit shall be subject to the approval of
shareholders in a general meeting.
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An option may be exercised at any time during a period to be
determined by the Board, which shall not in any event exceed
ten years from the date of grant. The Share Option Schemes
do not specify any minimum holding period. The acceptance
of an offer must be made within 30 days from the date of offer
with a non-refundable payment of HKD1.00.

On 17 January 2012, the Company has granted share options
(the “Options”) to subscribe for a total of 20,751,196 new
ordinary shares of the Company under the 2009 Share Option
Scheme to 15 eligible participants of the 2009 Share Option
Scheme at the exercise price HKD1.50 per share (which
represents the highest of (i) the closing price of HKD1.50 per
share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of HKD1.392
per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the 5 trading days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of HKDO0.10 per share).
The Options are valid for a period of 10 years from 17 January
2012 to 16 January 2022. None of the Grantees is a director,
chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company or
an associate (as defined in the Listing Rules) of any of them.

The Options may be exercisable at any time during the option
period, provided that the maximum number of Options which
each Grantee is entitled to exercise at the below period shall
not exceed:

(a) in respect of the period from 17 January 2012 to 16
January 2013, 40% of the total number of Options
granted to him;

(b) in respect of the period from 17 January 2013 to 16
January 2014, 30% of the total number of Options
granted to him; and

(c) in respect of the period from 17 January 2014 to 16
January 2015, 30% of the total number of Options
granted to him.
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On 30 April 2015, the Company has further granted Options
to subscribe for a total of 157,500,000 new ordinary shares of
the Company under the 2009 Share Option Scheme to eligible
participants of the 2009 Share Option Scheme at the exercise
price HKDO.485 per share (which represents the highest of (i)
the closing price of HKDO.485 per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of HKDO0.484 per share as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5 trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of HKDO.10 per share). The Options are valid
for a period of 10 years from 30 April 2015 to 29 April 2025.
Among the total of 157,500,000 Options granted at the date of
grant, 1,500,000 Options were granted to the Directors, and
156,000,000 Options were granted to eligible participants who
were not directors, chief executive or substantial shareholders
of the Company, nor an associate (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of any of them. Among the eligible participants of
156,000,000 Options granted, two eligible participants with
22,000,000 Options granted to them were subsequently
appointed as Director on 12 April 2017. Among the 23,500,000
Options granted to Directors, 3,000,000 Options were lapsed
upon resignation of Directors on 4 May 2018, 21 September
2018 and 3 April 2019.

The Options may be exercisable at any time during the option
period, provided that the maximum number of Options which
each Grantee is entitled to exercise at the below period shall
not exceed:

(a) in respect of the period from 30 April 2015 to 29 April
2016, 40% of the total number of Options granted to
him;

(b) in respect of the period from 30 April 2016 to 29 April
2017, 30% of the total number of Options granted to
him; and

(c) in respect of the period from 30 April 2017 to 29 April
2018, 30% of the total number of Options granted to
him.
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Set out below is further information on the outstanding options
granted under the 2009 Share Option Scheme as at the date of
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this report:
Number of share options outstanding
HRTERREHR
Approximate
percentage
of issued
share capital
Lapsed At 31 of the
Category/Name of At 1 January during  December Exercise Company
participant Date of grant 2020 the year 2020 price HKD  Exercise period (%)
i HAERFE
i t St 2.3 BITRA
mt i 32 t=A BoEI
SHEER,/HF REBH -B—-B RERX¥ =t-B f&EEEx &8 (%)
Executive Director
BITES
Mr. FUNG Wai Shing 30 April 2015 20,000,000 - 20,000,000 0.485  30/04/2015 to 0.80
(Resigned with effect from —ZE—RFEMA=+H 29/04/2025
5 March 2021) “Z-hHF
BEKEE WA=tEZE
(BZZ=—%=FAA e ol 5
ERE) MA=t+hA
Independent non-
executive Director
BUkBITES
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen 30 April 2015 500,000 - 500,000 0.485  30/04/2015 to 0.02
BlHREL “T-I¥NA=tH 29/04/2025
—Z-nf
MA=+RZE
“ZEoRF
MAZ+hH
Sub-total 20,500,000 - 20,500,000 0.82
gt
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Number of share options outstanding
HRTERREHR
Approximate
percentage
of issued
share capital
Lapsed At 31 of the
Category/Name of At 1 January during  December Exercise Company
participant Date of grant 2020 the year 2020 price HKD  Exercise period (%)
7 fERRRE
R it St 23 BIRK
t St 2.3 +=R BOEI
SHREER /KA REHEH -B-B REARX¥ =t-B EEET TEH (%)
Employees 17 January 2012 2593899  (1,111,671) 1,482,228 150  17/01/2012 to 0.06
&g “B-_F-R+tA 16/01/2022
“E-—F
—ATtRE
—R+7<H
30 April 2015 56,000,000 (10,000,000) 46,000,000 0.485  30/04/2015 to 1.84
ZZ-hFNA=TH 29/04/2025
“E-1fF
MA=+RZE
“ZoRF
mA-thA
Sub-total 58,503,809 (11,111,671) 47,482,228 19
Dt
Total 79,093,899 (11,111,671) 67,982,228 2.12
&t
Notes: Bt 5

The fair value of options granted on 17 January 2012 and 30 April 2015 under
2009 Share Option Scheme respectively was determined using the “Binomial
Option Pricing Model”. The significant inputs into the model were:

. risk-free rate of return — 1.51% and 1.64% per annum respectively;

o forecast fluctuations in share price = 55.31% and 53.89% respectively;
and

o forecast dividend yield = 2.11% and 0% per annum respectively.
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Based on the inputs above to the “Binomial Option Pricing
Model”, the total fair value of the outstanding options as at the
grant date (i.e. 17 January 2012 and 30 April 2015 respectively)
was approximately HKD11,642,000 and HKD28,667,000. The
“Binomial Option Pricing Model” is designed to assess the
fair value of options and is a common choice among various
option pricing models for assessing the fair value of options.
The value of the options depends on the valuation arrived at
based on certain subjective assumptions on variables. Any
changes in the variables used may cause a substantial effect
on the assessment of the fair value of the options.

As at 31 December 2020, the total number of share options
outstanding under the 2009 Share Option Scheme was
67,982,228. No further options can be granted pursuant to the
2009 Share Option Scheme.

As at 31 December 2020, there was no outstanding share
options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. No share
options had been granted under the 2018 Share Option
Scheme since its adoption and there was no outstanding
share option under the 2018 Share Option Scheme as at
31 December 2020. As at the date of this annual report, the
number of securities of the Company available for issue under
the 2018 Share Option Scheme was 249,341,398, representing
approximately 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of this report.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

The total bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2020 amounted to approximately RMB4,596.4
million. Particulars of the bank and other borrowings are set out
in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float with at least
25% of the shares held by the public as required by the Listing
Rules as at the date of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business
apart from the Group’s business, that competes or is likely to
compete (either directly or indirectly) with the Group’s business
at any time during the year ended 31 December 2020 and up
to the date of this report.

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Controlling Shareholders
and the executive Directors (collectively, the “Covenantors”)
have entered into a deed of non-competition dated 12 June
2009 in favour of the Company. The Covenantors have
provided the Group with written confirmations that they and
their associates (other than members of the Group) have fully
complied with the deed of non-competition throughout the year
ended 31 December 2020.

The independent non-executive Directors have conducted an
annual review on the Covenantors’ compliance with the deed
of non-competition, the options, pre-emptive rights or first
rights of refusals provided by the Controlling Shareholders on
their existing or future competing businesses.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Covenantors
and their respective close associates did not direct any
Business Opportunity (as defined in the Prospectus) to the
Group. Therefore, the independent non-executive Directors
did not conduct any review on the decision made in relation to
Business Opportunity.

TAXATION OF HOLDERS OF SHARES
Hong Kong

The purchase, sale and transfer of shares registered in the
Company’s Hong Kong branch register of members will be
subject to Hong Kong stamp duty. The current rate charged on
each of the purchaser and seller (or transferee and transferor)
is 0.1% of the consideration or, if greater, the fair value of
the shares being bought/sold or transferred (rounded up to
the nearest HKD'000). In addition, a fixed duty of HKD5.00 is
currently payable on an instrument of transfer of shares.

Profits from dealings in the share arising in or derived from
Hong Kong may also be subject to Hong Kong profits tax.
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Cayman Islands

Under the present Cayman Islands laws, transfers and other
dispositions of shares in the Company are exempt from
Cayman Islands stamp duty.

Consultation with professional advisers

Intending holders and investors of the Company’s shares are
recommended to consult their professional advisers if they
are in any doubt as to the taxation implications (including tax
relief) of subscribing for, purchasing, holding, disposing of or
dealing in shares. It is emphasised that none of the Company
or its Directors or officers will accept any responsibility for any
tax effect on, or liabilities of, holders of shares in the Company
resulting from their subscription for, purchase, holding,
disposal of or dealing in such shares.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual
general meeting to re-appoint Moore Stephens CPA Limited as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board,

XU Da

Chairman

Guangzhou, 31 March 2021
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management as at the
date of publication of this report are set out below:

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. XU Da (#3£), aged 36, was appointed as an executive
Director on 9 October 2014. Mr. XU is also a Chairman of the
Group. Mr. XU achieved a bachelor degree in 2008. Mr. XU
has more than 10 years of working experience in the Group.
He joined the Group as import and export manager in 2009.
Mr. XU did not hold other directorship in any listed companies
during the last three years.

Mr. BAI Tao (H#5), aged 37, was appointed as an executive
Director on 9 October 2014. Mr. BAl is also the Chief Executive
Officer and a member of the remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Board. Mr. BAI is principally
responsible for the Group’s overall management and
operation. Mr. BAI graduated from Cardiff University with
a bachelor and master degree in civil engineering. Mr. BAI
has more than 5 years of working experience in construction
project management. He joined the Group as general manager
of Zhuhai Henggin Coal Exchange Centre in 2012. Prior to
joining the Group in 2012, Mr. BAI worked as a manager of
engineering management department in a company listed
in the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr. BAI did not hold other
directorship in any listed companies during the last three
years.

Ms. WANG Jianfei (E&|), aged 50, was appointed as an
executive Director on 6 May 2008. Ms. WANG joined Qinfa
Group in 2000, and was the Chief Executive Officer of the
Group during 2008 to 2015. Ms. WANG obtained an associate
degree in Computer Science by Angeles University Foundation
in consortium with Hebei Business College in 1995. Ms. WANG
completed an Executive MBA Programme sponsored by the
FREARKERRE AEMBLKCEM KR L (Risk Capital
and Network Economy Research Center of China Renmin
University) and Bt EEZFFIF L (China Enterprise
Management Training Center) in 2002. Ms. WANG has more
than 15 years of enterprise management and operation
experience. Before joining the Group in 2000, Ms. WANG
worked in FIRAZEBER(ZE25)ERAF (COFCO Industry
(Qinhuangdao) Pangthai Co., Ltd.) from 1995 to 2000. Save as
disclosed above, Ms. WANG did not hold any directorship in
other listed companies during the last three years.
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Mr. Tan Yingzhong, aged 58, was appointed as an executive
Director on 1 April 2021. Mr. Tan is also the Chief Financial
Officer of the Group. Mr. Tan joined the Group on 5 June
2018, during the period who has served as the Group’s Chief
Accountant. Mr. Tan graduated from the Central University of
Finance and Economics with a bachelor’s degree in economics
and management in 1998, and obtained a master’'s degree
from Nankai University upon completion of the postgraduate
programme in business administration in 2007. Mr. Tan has
over 30 years of experience in senior financial management
positions at the headquarters of enormous energy enterprise
conglomerates and their affiliated companies. Throughout
1986 to 2018, Mr. Tan had worked for Shenhua Group, who
held several key financial positions such as the deputy general
manager of the financial department of Shenhua Group, as well
as concurrent positions such as the deputy general manager,
chief financial officer and chief accountant of affiliated
companies thereof. During that period, he obtained 9 national
invention patents and 18 copyrights. He led the project for
establishment of the ERP/BCSBW information system which
won the 2014 CSUA Golden Dragon Award. Mr. Tan is mainly
responsible for the Group’s financial duties. Mr. Tan did not
hold any directorship in any other listed companies in the past
three years

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (2185)%), aged 54, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 12 June 2009. Mr. LAU
is also the chairman of the audit committee of the Board. Mr.
LAU graduated with a bachelor degree of science in Business
Administration from Oregon State University in 1989. Mr. LAU
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants as well as a member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. LAU has been
serving as the chief financial officer and company secretary
of Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since April 2003. Prior to
joining Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited in 2003, Mr. LAU was the
financial controller of a subsidiary of NWS Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the Main Board, for over three years and
had worked with an international accounting firm in Hong Kong
for five years. Mr. LAU was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited
(“Dragon Crown”) on 30 November 2010. Dragon Crown was
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 10 June
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2011. From 26 September 2014 to 22 June 2020. Mr. LAU was
appointed as an Independent non-executive Directors of SDM
Group Holdings Limited (“SDM Group”), SDM Group was listed
on GEM Board of the Stock Exchange on 13 October 2014.
On 7 May 2018, Mr. LAU was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of CTEH Inc. (stock code:1620). Save
as disclosed above, Mr. LAU did not hold any directorship in
other listed companies during the last three years.

Prof. SHA Zhenquan (A #x#), aged 61, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 21 September 2018.
Prof. SHA is also the Chairman of the remuneration committee
and the nomination committee of the Board and a member
of audit committee. Prof. SHA has been a professor of the
School of Business Administration of South China University
of Technology (ZEfIE T KE2) since April 2003. He obtained
a bachelor of science degree in mathematics from East
China Normal University (325 A& KX 2) in December 1982, a
master’'s degree in engineering from South China University of
Technology (ZEFIHE T A£2) in July 1991 and a doctor’s degree
in philosophy from City University of Hong Kong in November
2001. Prof. SHA is a member of the 12th National Committee
of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (FF B A
RBammex2EE 8 2). He was an independent director
of Shenzhen Noposion Pesticide Co., Ltd (F3IIF &1z 2%
A B R 7F]) (stock code: 002215) from December 2009 to
December 2015 and an independent director of Sincap Group
Limited (stock code: 5UN), a company listed on Singapore
Exchange from May 2012 to September 2014. Prof. SHA
resigned as the independent director of Donlinks International
Investment Co., Ltd. (EME ZEBFEZER KD BR A RF]) (stock
code: 000893) and Letong Chemical Co., Ltd. (3k/8TH 448 T
&1 B BR A7) (stock code: 002319), companies listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, in January 2020 and June 2019
respectively. He is an independent non-executive director of
Canvest Environmental Protection Group Company Limited (£
LIRIRE N BRAF]) (stock code: 01381) which is a company
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Prof. SHA is an independent director of Shenzhen
Overseas Chinese Town Co., Ltd. CRIIZEBR B BRAF)
(stock code: 000069), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange from April 2020. Save as disclosed above, Prof. SHA
did not hold any directorship in other listed companies during
the last three year.
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Mr. JING Dacheng (B AKm), aged 72, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 3 April 2019.
Mr. JING is a member of the Communists’ Party of the PRC
and has years of experience in public service. He was
recruited by the military in 1968 and served the positions
of soldier, squad leader in the army, cultural section chief
of the political department of guard force division no.4 of
Hebe provincial military region, secretarial section chief
and chief of coordination section of Qinhuangdao military
division. From May 1986 to June 2007, Mr. JING served as
a member of district committee and standing committee and
political committee of the armed forces division of Haigang
District, Qinhuangdao, Hebe Province, CPC Haigang District
designated secretary and executive deputy district chief of
the people’s government of Haigang District and chairman of
the standing committee of the National People’s Congress in
Haigang District. He officially retired from his duties in August
2008. Mr. JING did not hold any directorship in other listed
companies during the last three years.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. BAIl Lei (A E), aged 54, is the vice president of the Group,
and is principally responsible for domestic investments and
financial planning matters. He takes full charge of domestic
financial operation, development strategies and ensuring the
efficient operation of financial systems. Mr. BAIl graduated
fromyI 78 K& (Jiangxi University) in 1989 with a bachelor
degree of enterprise management and subsequently obtained
the qualification of accountant. Mr. BAI held the positions on
financial and finance aspects in various institutions and had
accumulated more than 20 years of working experience in
relation thereto. Mr. BAI joined the Group in 2016 when he
was appointed as the financial controller in China. He was
appointed as the vice president of the Group in 2017.

Mr. Ql Jinyuan (E$2R), aged 52, is the vice president of the
Group, and is principally responsible for the management and
operation works on coal mine business. Mr. QI graduated from
Renmin University of China in 1990 with a bachelor’'s degree in
national economic planning and management, and obtained a
master degree in business administration from a1t & & &
(Hebei Provincial Party School) in 2003. Mr. QI has more than
20 years of experience in the field of investment management
and financial planning with specialty in taxation planning works
on financial aspect. Mr. Ql was appointed as the vice chairman
of Shanxi Huameiao Energy Group Company Limited, a
member of the Group in September 2015 and as the vice
president of the Group in February 2016.
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Mr. MA Jihai (]5%3%), aged 53, is the general manager of
coal mine division of the Group. He is responsible for mine
production policies performance, efficiency promotion and
ensuring the implementation of regulations. Mr. MA graduated
from K& L KEZ (Changchun University of Technology)
in 2013 with a bachelor degree in the major of coal mining
technology. Mr. MA has more than 20 years of working
experience in coal mine related industries. He is very familiar
with coal operation and environment, and has therefore made
significant contribution to coal mine business of the Group.

Mr. JIA Min (EE), aged 55, is the vice president of the
Group, and is in charge of coal mine division. Mr. JIA
graduated from [ R EHZ K E (Shandong University of Science
and Technology) in 2003 majoring in mining engineering, and
obtained a master degree in business administration from &
FAE (Nankai University) in 2006. Mr. JIA joined the Group
in 2017. Before joining the Group, he has been awarded
many honorary titles such as 2B Kk tZEEHTER (National
Excellent Mine Director of Coal Enterprise), Advanced Worker
in Progress of Bk EHE# 5L # TYEHE (Coal Science and
Technology), and IIEREEF B ER (Excellent Entrepreneur of
Shandong Province) for many times. Mr. JIA has more than 30
years of experience in the production management and mining
technology in the coal industry. With outstanding working
performance, he has created many industrial records in China,
Asia, and even the world.

Mr. OR Chun Wai Dennis (f]£3#), aged 33, joined the
Company in 2017 as the financial manager. He holds a
Bachelor of Commerce (Accounting and Finance) with The
University of New South Wales. He is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. OR has extensive experience in audit of
listed companies and private companies in different business
sectors gained from international audit firms in Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is dedicated to maintaining and ensuring
high standards of corporate governance practices. The
corporate governance principles of the Company emphasise
on accountability and transparency and are adopted in the
best interest of the Company and its shareholders. The Board
reviews its corporate governance practices from time to time
in order to meet the rising expectations of shareholders and to
fulfil its commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its corporate
governance code of practices since the listing of its shares on
the Stock Exchange. In the opinion of the Board, the Company
had complied with the code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2020.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Board takes responsibility
to oversee all major matters of the Company, including the
formulation and approval of the Group’s overall objectives
and strategies, internal control and risk management
systems, monitoring its operating and financial performance,
performing the corporate governance duties and evaluating
the performance of the senior management. The Directors,
individually and collectively, have to make decisions objectively
in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.

All Directors have access to the senior management of the
Group and the company secretary. Management information
is provided to enable them to participate at the meetings or
as and when requested. The company secretary provides
secretarial support to the Board and ensures adherence to
Board procedures and the relevant rules and regulations which
are applicable to the Company.
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The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of
the Company, including the approval and monitoring of all
policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management systems, material transactions (in
particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are managed by the executive Directors and
senior management of the Company under the leadership
of the Chief Executive Officer. The Board has delegated
a schedule of responsibilities to these officers for the
implementation of Board decisions. The Board periodically
reviews the delegated functions and work tasks. Prior to
entering into any significant transactions, the aforesaid officers
have to obtain Board approval.

Board composition

The Board currently consists of seven Directors, four of whom
are executive Directors and three are independent non-
executive Directors.

Executive Directors:

Mr. XU Da (Chairman)
Mr. BAI Tao (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. WANG Jianfei
Mr. FUNG Wai Shing (resigned with effect from 5 March 2021)
Mr. TAN Yingzhong (Chief Financial Officer)
(appointed with effect from 1 April 2021)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen
Prof. SHA Zhenguan
Mr. JING Dacheng

All executive Directors are responsible for implementing the
business strategies and managing the business of the Group
in accordance with all applicable rules and regulations,
including, but not limited to, the Listing Rules. All Directors
(including the independent non-executive Directors) have
been consulted on all major and material matters of the Group.
The Company maintains appropriate directors’ and officers’
liabilities insurance.
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The number of independent non-executive Directors has met
the requirements under the Listing Rules and Mr. LAU Sik
Yuen has appropriate accounting professional qualifications.
The independent non-executive Directors bring a variety
of experience and expertise to the Company. Biographical
details of the independent non-executive Directors are set
out on pages 59 to 61 of this annual report. Each of the
independent non-executive Directors has confirmed in writing
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Board is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All the appointments of Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the Articles.

Minutes of Board meetings are being kept by the company
secretary of the Company and are available for inspection by
the Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company held
an annual general meeting and the Board held eight Board
meetings, all of which were convened in accordance with the
Articles, and the individual attendance of each Director is set
out below:
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Number of attendance/Number of
meetings entitled to attend

HEREEREERE

General Board

Meeting Meeting
Name of Directors EENE BRAE EEgEd
Ms. WANG Jianfei FERIf L+ 0/1 6/8
Mr. XU Da RESE on 7/8
Mr. BAI Tao HEEEE 1/1 8/8
Mr. FUNG Wai Shing (resigned with effect J&ER A (B -T - —4 1/1 8/8

from 5 March 2021) = AR HBETD

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen 2185 R 5 A& 1/1 8/8
Prof. SHA Zhenquan D IRBEHIR 0/1 8/8
Mr. JING Dacheng AR EAE 0N 8/8
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. XU Da is the chairman of the Board and an executive
Director, responsible for providing advice for the overall
management and strategic development and overseeing the
operation of the Board. Mr. BAI Tao, an executive Director,
is the Chief Executive Officer, who is responsible for the
Group’s overall management, corporate development,
strategic planning and the supervision of day-to-day operation.
The segregation of duties and responsibilities between the
chairman and the chief executive officer ensures a balance of
power and authority.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board established a remuneration committee on 12 June
2009 with specific written terms of reference. The remuneration
committee consists of an executive Director, Mr. BAI Tao and
two independent non-executive Directors, namely Prof. SHA
Zhenquan and Mr. JING Dacheng. Prof. SHA Zhenquan is the
chairperson of the remuneration committee of the Board.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee of the
Board are to review and determine the terms of remuneration
packages, bonuses and other compensation payable to
the Directors and senior management of the Group. The
remuneration committee is also responsible for establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration
policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/
her close associates will participate in deciding his/her
own remuneration, which remuneration will be determined
by reference to the performance of the individual and the
Company as well as market practice and conditions.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the senior management by band for the
year ended 31 December 2020 is set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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The remuneration committee held one meeting during 2020 to
assess performance of executive Directors and certain senior
management and review their remuneration. The duties of the

EEERE|E
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remuneration committee include determining, with delegated ERSAETEENFMES - TEXKEHHES
responsibility, the remuneration packages of Directors and & °
senior management. All the members attended the meetings.
Number of
attendance/
Number of
meetings entitled
to attend
RE
Name of Directors EEHE BREERE
Mr. BAI Tao HEEE 1/1
Prof. SHA Zhenquan IR E IR 1/1
Mr. JING Dacheng EEUND S 1/1
NOMINATION COMMITTEE REZES

The Board established a nomination committee on 12 June
2009 with specific written terms of reference. The nomination
committee consists of an executive Director, Mr. BAI Tao and
two independent non-executive Directors, namely Prof. SHA
Zhenquan and Mr. JING Dacheng. Prof. SHA Zhenquan is the
chairperson of the nomination committee of the Board.

The primary duties of the nomination committee of the Board
include determining the policy for the nomination of Directors,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and succession planning of Directors, and assessing of the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors.
The nomination committee carries out the process of
selecting and recommending candidates for directorships
by making reference to the skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of such
individuals, the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations.
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The nomination committee held one meeting during 2020
to ensure that the Board has a balance of expertise, skills
and experience appropriate to meet the requirements of the
business of the Company. The nomination committee also
evaluated the effectiveness of the board diversity policy. All the
members attended the meetings.

RAZBEN T _TFARABT-REZ EE(%
SEXeAREENER  BEERERNTE -
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Number of

attendance/

Number of

meetings entitled

to attend

HERE,

Name of Directors EEHA BREERY
Mr. BAI Tao HE5EaE 1/1
Prof. SHA Zhenquan IR FE IR 1/1
Mr. JING Dacheng EEUND 1/1

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial term of three years.
Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered
into renewed appointment letters with the Company for a term
of three years. Such term is subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the Company’s annual general meeting in
accordance with the Articles.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Company formulated the nomination policy, which
set out the key selection criteria and procedures for the
Nomination Committee of the Company to nominate and make
recommendation to the board of directors of the Company on
the appointment of directors and re-election for directors.

1) Nomination criteria

The Nomination Committee shall consider a number
of selection criteria when assessing the suitability of a
proposed candidate, including but not limited to the
following:

(a) personal ethics, reputation and integrity;

(b) professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
experience that are relevant to the Company’s
businesses and corporate development and
strategy;

(c) willingness and ability to devote adequate time
to discharge the duties as a director and to make
required commitments;

(d) compliance with the criteria of independence
as prescribed under Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules for the appointment of independent non-
executive Directors;

(e) the “Board Diversity Policy” adopted by the
Company for achieving diversity on the Board
with reference to the Company’s business model
and specific needs, including but not limited to
gender, age, educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service;

(f) applicable legal and regulatory requirements;
and

(9) any other relevant factors as may be determined
by the Nomination Committee or the Board from
time to time.
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Nomination Procedures

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

For filling a casual vacancy or appointing an
additional director to the Board, the Nomination
Committee may select and evaluate such
candidate based on the criteria as set out above
to determine whether such candidate is qualified
for directorship.

For any person that is nominated by a
shareholder for election as a director at the
general meeting of the Company, the Nomination
Committee should evaluate such candidate
based on the criteria as set out above to
determine whether such candidate is qualified.

For the re-election of Director at General
Meeting, the Nomination Committee should
also review and determine whether the retiring
director continues to meet the criteria as set out
above.

On making recommendation, the Nomination
Committee may submit the candidate’s personal
profile to the Board for consideration.

The Board shall have the final decision on all
matters relating to the recommendation of a
candidate to stand for election at a general
meeting.

Where appropriate, the Nomination Committee
and/or the Board should make recommendation
to shareholders in respect of the proposed
election of director at the general meeting.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company formulated the board diversity policy, which set
out the requirements for diversity in Board members and the
principles for the selection of Directors.

1) Policy summary

To achieve sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increased diversity at the Board level as
an essential element in supporting the attainment of its
strategic objectives and its sustainable development.
In planning the Board’s composition, board diversity
needs to be considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

(2) Quantifiable measurers and the progress of the
Board Diversity Policy

Selection of candidates of the Company will be based
on a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision
will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

During the reporting period, the nomination committee
reviewed the composition of the Board and concluded
that the Company had met the diversification requirements
with regard to age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. When making
the appointment and re-appointment of Directors in the future,
the nomination committee will nominate new Directors pursuant
to the requirements of the board diversity policy to achieve the
objective of diversity in Board members.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

Under the Dividend Policy, the Board has the discretion to
declare and distribute dividends to the shareholders of the
Company, subject to the articles of association of the Company
and all applicable laws and regulations.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining
the dividend amount, the Board shall consider the following
factors before declaring or recommending dividends:

- operating and financial results;

- cash flow position;

- working capital requirements and expenditure plan;
- interests of shareholders;

- business conditions and strategies;

- taxation considerations;

- restriction on distribution of dividends under the relevant
laws, rules and regulations; and

- any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, any dividend
unclaimed for one year after having been declared may
be invested or otherwise made use of by the Board for
the benefit of the Company until claimed. Any dividend or
bonuses unclaimed after a period of six years from the date of
declaration shall be forfeited and shall revert to the Company.
The payment by the Board of any unclaimed dividend or other
sums payable on or in respect of a share in a separate account
shall not constitute the Company a trustee in respect thereof.

The Company will review the Dividend Policy periodically.
There can be no assurance that dividends will be paid in any
particular amount for any given period or at all.
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MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. Directors
are reminded of their obligations under the Model Code on
a regular basis. Following specific enquiry by the Company,
all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout
the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this
report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board established an audit committee on 12 June 2009
with specific written terms of reference. The audit committee
consists of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. LAU Sik Yuen, Prof. SHA Zhenquan and Mr. JING
Dacheng. Mr. LAU Sik Yuen is the chairperson of the audit
committee of the Board.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review and
approve the Group’s financial reporting process and internal
control system. The audit committee had reviewed the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020 and had also discussed auditing, internal
control and financial reporting matters including accounting
practices and principles adopted by the Group.

The audit committee has also monitored the integrity of the
financial statements, annual report and accounts and interim
report and reviewed significant financial reporting judgements
contained therein.
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During the year, the audit committee held four meetings and all F R FEREZESRTTMAEE - FTAKEY
the members attended the meetings. HEEE -

Number of

attendance/

Number of

meetings entitled

to attend

HERE,

Name of Directors EEHA BREERY

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen BIHREE 4/4

Prof. SHA Zhenquan W IRBE IR 4/4

Mr. JING Dacheng R 4/4

During the meetings, the audit committee had reviewed and
recommended the Company’s results announcements and
annual report for the year ended 31 December 2020 and
interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2020 to the
Board for approval. The audit committee also reviewed the
accounting issues raised by the independent auditor of the
Company in respect of the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the relevant issues
as described in the paragraphs under “Risk Management and
Internal control” below.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The Group provides to all the Directors a comprehensive
induction package which includes introduction on the
business operations, internal procedures and general policy
of the Company and a summary of statutory and regulatory
obligations of directors under the Listing Rules and other
relevant laws and regulations. During the year, the Directors
are provided with regular updates on the Group’s business,
operations, risk management and corporate governance
matters to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge their duties. The Directors are also encouraged
to attend both in-house training and training provided by
independent service providers. According to the training
records provided by the Directors to the Company, each
Director has confirmed that he/she has obtained reading
and training materials during the year under review and has
attended the trainings in relation to various aspects, including
but not limited to, Director’s duties, update on the Listing Rules
amendments and corporate governance practices.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to
take in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, maintaining
sound systems of risk management and internal controls and
reviewing their effectiveness to safeguard interests of the
Group as a whole. These systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failing to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The internal audit function monitors the adequacy and
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems established within the Company and its subsidiaries
for proper accounting records, and for ensuring the reliability
of financial information. The work of the internal audit function
is generally focused on identifying, monitoring and reporting
on major risks faced by the Group, including those related to
business operations, compliance with laws and regulations
and financial reporting. The review of risk management and
internal control systems is conducted on an ongoing basis by
the internal audit function. The Group has also adopted internal
control policies to manage and minimise financial and other
risks, ensuring timely and accurate preparation and reporting
of financial information, and monitoring compliance with laws
by the senior management of the Group in the performance of
their duties.

The management of the Group is responsible for designing,
maintaining, implementing and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control system and ensuring that
the Group established and maintained appropriate and
effective systems. Management also assists the Board in
the implementation of the Group’s policies, procedures and
controls by identifying and assessing the risks faced, and
in the design, operation and monitoring of suitable internal
controls to mitigate and control these risks.
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The Group has established an audit committee under the
Board, which has the functions of monitoring compliance
with laws by the Group’s senior management and in its daily
operations, and of carrying out investigations for suspected
breaches of law. The Company convened meetings with the
audit committee periodically to discuss financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management functions.
Moreover, the Audit Committee assists the Board in leading
the management and overseeing their design, implementing
and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems.

The Board reviewed the effectiveness of risk management
process and risk management report including key risks and
mitigation measure, in which it oversaw the development and
implementation of the Group’s risk management system.

The Board has reviewed the effective of systems and
considered that, for the year ended 31 December 2020, the
risk management and internal control system and procedures
of the Group were reasonably effective and adequate, and no
material deficiencies has been identified.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
Consolidated Financial Statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to
liquidate the group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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The Directors have also selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, adopted appropriate
International Financial Reporting Standards, and made prudent
and reasonable judgements and estimates, and have prepared
the consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis. The Directors also warrant that the Group’s consolidated
financial statements will be published in a timely manner.

The Directors are assisted by the audit committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

The statement of the auditor of the Group about their reporting
responsibilities for the consolidated financial statements of the
Group is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on pages 84 to 88 of this report.

MULTIPLE UNCERTAINTIES RELATING TO GOING
CONCERN

As set out in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group incurred net loss of approximately
RMB3,436,870,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had net liabilities and
net current liabilities of approximately RMB2,896,084,000 and
RMB4,204,749,000 respectively. As at 31 December 2020,
the Group’s borrowings and accrued interest of approximately
RMB1,808,207,000 and RMB359,171,000 respectively had
been due for immediate payment. In addition, as set out in
note 28 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group’s
other borrowings with carrying amounts of RMB2,788,147,000
as at 31 December 2020, contained a default clause which
requires the Group to make immediate repayment for all such
outstanding balance of the original borrowings and interest
payables in the event of default. Moreover, as at 31 December
2020, there were several unsettled litigations against the Group
mainly requesting the Group to repay certain payables with
interest immediately as set out in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statement. These conditions, along with other matters
as set forth in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements,
indicate the existence of material uncertainties which may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
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The Group’s auditor stated in the independent auditor’s report
that the consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis, the validity of which depends on the
outcome of the measures taken by the Directors, as described
in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, which are
subject to multiple uncertainties, including (i) the successful
negotiations with the banks/lenders for the renewal of or
extension for repayment of outstanding borrowings, including
those with overdue principals and interests; (ii) the successful
obtaining of additional new sources of financing as and when
needed; (iii) the successful maintenance of relationship with
the Group's existing banks/lenders such that no action will
be taken by the relevant banks/lenders to demand immediate
repayment of the borrowings in default, including those
with cross-default terms; (iv) the successful defense in the
litigations against the Group, e.g. those relating to repayment
to non-controlling shareholders as disclosed in note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements and no significant
repayments ordered by the court; (v) successfully accelerating
the coal production of those coal mines currently under
production and the successful renewal of those expired coal
mining rights of coal mines not yet commenced production,
together with applying cost control measures in cost of sales,
administrative expenses and capital expenditures, to increase
the Group’s internally generated funds. The Group’s auditor
were provided with an analysis by the management in respect
of the Group’s going concern assessment. However, such
analysis is not sufficiently detailed for the Group’s auditor to
assess the Group’s plans and measures for future actions in
the going concern assessment which take into account the
uncertainty of outcome of these plans and measures and
how variability in outcome would affect the future cash flows
of the Group. The Group’s auditor have not been provided
with sufficient appropriate audit evidence to conclude on
the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. Should the Group be unable
to continue in business as a going concern, adjustments would
have to be made to write down the carrying amounts of the
Group’s assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any
further liabilities that may arise and to reclassify non-current
assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities respectively. The effects of these adjustments have
not been reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
The Shareholders shall exercise caution in the trading of the
Company'’s shares.
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To improve the Group’s liquidity and financial position, the
Group has undertaken measures such as revision of repayment
schedules with financial institutions. The directors consider
that, to the best of their knowledge, information and belief,
having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of
any other material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors
consider the Group will be able to continue to operate as a
going concern.

The independent auditors opinion is not modified in respect of
these matters and the statement of the independent auditors
of the Company, Moore Stephens CPA Limited, about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages
84 to 88.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the remuneration to

the Group’s external auditor in respect of audit and non-audit
services provided to the Group is set forth below:
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Audit services ZH AR 2,020
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Total &5t 2,720

Non-audit services related to agreed-upon procedures for assisting the
Company review its condensed consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the six months ended 30 June 2020.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company strictly complies with and implements the Listing
Rules to disclose discloseable information on a true, accurate,
complete and timely basis and all other information that might
have significant impact on the decisions of shareholders and
other concerned parties in an active and timely manner. Also,
the Company takes effort in ensuring all shareholders have
equal access to information.
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The management believes that effective communication with
the investment community is essential. The executive Directors
and the chief financial officer of the Company hold regular
briefings and results presentation, attend investor forums and
respond to investors’ call-in enquiries, participate in interviews
with institutional investors and financial analysts in the PRC,
Hong Kong and overseas countries to keep them abreast
of the Company’s business and development as well as
operating strategies and prospects. In delivering information
to investors, the Company also listens to their advice and
collects the feedback from them, in the interests of developing
an interactive and mutually beneficial relationship with the
Company'’s investors.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue
at shareholder meetings, including the election of individual
directors.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be
voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and of the
Stock Exchange after each shareholder meeting.

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company can make a written requisition to the
Board or the Company secretary to convene an extraordinary
general meeting pursuant to article 58 of the Company’s
articles of association. The written requisition must state the
objects of the meeting, and must be signed by the relevant
shareholder(s) and deposited at the registered office of the
Company, which is presently situated at Room 5706, 57th
Floor, Central Plaza, No. 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong. The same procedure also applies to any proposal to be
tabled at shareholder meetings.

The Company welcomes enquires from shareholders. The
Board will review shareholders’ enquires on a regular basis.
Specific enquiries and suggestions by shareholders can
be sent in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary.
Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is a long-time, continuous supporter of corporate
social responsibility, dedicated to contributing to society
through nature preservation and helping the underprivileged.
To maintain its sustainable development momentum and
become a leading international coal operator, the Group
treats its employees, customers, the society and the natural
environment ethically.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group has been working tirelessly to build green
communities. Besides promoting a green lifestyle, the Group
strives to minimise damage to the environment while increasing
production efficiency, creating win-win outcomes for the Group
and the society.

Land reclamation

Consistent with the “those who destroys shall reclaim”
guidance issued by the State Council, five coal mines of the
Group (namely Fengxi Coal Mine, Chongsheng Coal Mine,
Xingtao Coal Mine, Xinglong Coal Mine and Hongyuan Coal
Mine) carried out reclamation activities for all parcels of land
compromised during the course of mine construction and
production. The reclamation project focuses on agricultural
production and forest restoration according to the principle
of “using for agriculture, forestry or animal husbandry as
appropriate”. The Group will spend approximately RMB355
million on reclamation projects for the five coal mines over
periods of 22, 31, 25, 30 and 30 years respectively. Throughout
the process, the Group will provide streamlined management
and land protection services, thereby allowing the land to
maximise its economic, social and ecological benefits.

Office 4R

The Group actively encourages its employees to apply “4R”
(reduce, reuse, recycle and replace) rules in the office. Under
the 4R policy, the Group’s employees replace direct paper
printing with electronic scanning and use email to transmit
documents in order to reduce the use of paper, and avoid
the use of disposable products. From time to time, the Group
reminds its employees to reuse single-side printed waste
paper for printing internal documents. The Group’s office
drinking fountains also use recyclable plastic bottles. In the
future, the Group will continue to pursue the 4R policy and
maintain a green working environment.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group considers its employees to be essential for the
business success. Therefore, the Group attaches great
importance to its employees’ physical and mental health
and working environment, as well as their continuous skill
development to enhance competitiveness. Thus, the Group
has formulated occupational safety guidelines and policies for
the working environment, along with related requirements for
different employees, and provides regular safety training.

Communication channels

The Group believes that work performance and learning
attitudes are affected by internal factors such as the
working environment, attitudes of co-workers and company
policies. The Group therefore adopts an open approach
which encourages employees to report their opinions to the
management and provide the Group with ways to improve our
operations.

Employee benefits

The Group’s employees are an important part of its assets.
This is why employees are covered by insurance policies taken
out by the Group and receive medical benefits in addition to
wages and bonuses. The Group also holds an annual year-
end party to express its gratitude for the efforts made by
the employees throughout the year and grants outstanding
performance awards to employees with especially excellent
performance.

Employee training

The Group’s ability to maintain continuous development amid
severe competition depends on each employee performing
their role well. Towards this end, the Group regularly invites
professionals to organise training seminars on management,
law, accounting, finance and other corporate fields for its
employees, allowing employees to keep abreast of the latest
information and making sure they have the knowledge and
skills they need to handle the demands of their jobs.
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Housing allowance

In addition to general and basic benefits, the Group also
offers housing allowances to coal miners to help limit the
inconvenience they may encounter in getting to and from
the workplace. This arrangement allows them to relocate to
locations near the coal mine at lower cost to themselves,
thereby saving commuting time and expense.

Safety code

As a coal operator, the Group attaches great importance to the
safety of coal miners at work. Workers are therefore required
to comply with the Group’s strict safety code and wear
appropriate safety equipment before entering coal mines. The
Group is particularly proud that the Xingtao coal mine operated
by Huameiao Energy was designated a Grade 1 Safety
Demonstration Mine by the China National Coal Association.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

R Y

K| MOORE

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of
China Qinfa Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial
statements of China Qinfa Group Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 89 to
264 which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. Because of the significance of each
of the uncertainties and their possible effects, individually
and cumulatively, on the consolidated financial statements
described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section
of our report, it is not possible for us to form an opinion on
these consolidated financial statements. In all other respects,
in our opinion the consolidated financial statements have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Multiple uncertainties relating to going concern

As set out in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group incurred net loss of approximately
RMB3,436,870,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had net liabilities and
net current liabilities of approximately RMB2,896,084,000 and
RMB4,204,749,000 respectively. As at 31 December 2020, the
Group’s borrowings and accrued interests of approximately
RMB1,808,207,000 and RMB359,171,000 respectively had
been due for immediate payment. In addition, as set out in
note 28 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group’s
other borrowings with carrying amounts of RMB2,788,147,000
as at 31 December 2020, with no event of default, contained a
default clause that the Group will be required for repayment of
the outstanding balance of the original borrowings and interest
payables in the event of default. Moreover, as at 31 December
2020, there were several unsettled litigations against the Group
mainly requesting the Group to repay certain payables with
interest immediately as set out in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statement. These conditions, along with other matters
as set forth in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements,
indicate the existence of material uncertainties which may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B RS

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (CONTINUED)
Multiple uncertainties relating to going concern (continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis, the validity of which depends on
the outcome of the measures taken by the directors of the
Company, as described in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, which are subject to multiple uncertainties,
including (i) the successful negotiations with the banks/lenders
for the renewal of or extension for repayment of outstanding
borrowings, including those with overdue principals and
interests; (ii) the successful obtaining of additional new
sources of financing as and when needed; (iii) the successful
maintenance of relationship with the Group’s existing banks/
lenders such that no action will be taken by the relevant banks/
lenders to demand immediate repayment of the borrowings
in default, including those with cross-default terms; (iv) the
successful defense in the litigations against the Group, e.g.
those relating to repayment to non-controlling shareholders as
disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements
and no significant repayments ordered by the court; (v)
successfully accelerating the coal production of those coal
mines currently under production and the successful renewal
of those expired coal mining rights of coal mines not yet
commenced production, together with applying cost control
measures in cost of sales, administrative expenses and capital
expenditures, to increase the Group’s internally generated
funds. We were provided with an analysis by the management
in respect of the Group’s going concern assessment. However,
such analysis is not sufficiently detailed for us to assess the
Group’s plans and measures for future actions in the going
concern assessment which take into account the uncertainty
of outcome of these plans and measures and how variability
in outcome would affect the future cash flows of the Group.
We have not been provided with sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to conclude on the appropriateness of the
management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
Should the Group be unable to continue in business as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to write down
the carrying amounts of the Group’s assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities that may arise
and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities
as current assets and current liabilities respectively. The
effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the audit committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B A% BT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and to issue an auditor’s report
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

However, because of the matters described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we were not able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis
for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan King Keung
Practising Certificate Number: PO6057

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEZHEBAR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
It b 213 —Z-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BitsE ARETR ARETT
Revenue & 7 2,247,363 2,799,520
Cost of sales HERK (1,892,048) (2,392,962)
Gross profit ES 355,315 406,558
Other income, gains and losses Hip A - s kBB 8 (137,134) 27,744
Distribution expenses pakicliiFa (2,261) (4,462)
Administrative expenses IBAX (208,376) (140,758)
Impairment losses on coal mining rights BRRERE CRERR 15 (1,869,716) =
Impairment losses on property, plant and nE - BERREZREER
equipment 16 (2,069,252) -
Reversal of impairment losses on trade B E 53 R E B R FE
receivables, net 31,736
(Impairment losses)/reversal of impairment BN FRIER M ERTIE L
losses on prepayments and other receivables,  (FEEE),/REEEREDFE
net (12,987) 21,544
Other expenses HfnFs (33,483) (31,556)
Results from operating activities MERBRK . Buesy 287070
Finance income BBIRA 2,189 1,446
Finance costs B (369,029) (293,023)
Netfinancecosts . . ... mEAARE 9 (66,840)  __(291577)
Loss before taxation BRBLATE R 10 (4,312,998) 4,506)
Income tax credit FERES 1 876,128 85,229
(Loss)profitfortheyear FRUBR) RN B8 80,723
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hitt2E (F8) WA
ltem that may be reclassified subsequentlyto ~ E&macEH D EZBERAER ¢
profit or loss:
Foreign currency translation differences for BIEBEEINEREZESR
foreign operations (3,312) 1,695
Other comprehensive (loss)/income forthe  FREM2E(FEB), WA - B#i%
_year,netoftx 3312 ~ 16%
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FR2EER)WALE
for the year (3,440,182) 82,418
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEEBAR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H{ 2 —Z —_TF+_A=+—HILtFE

2020 2019
it St 22 “F-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bzt AR®T T ARETT
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: FEAR % o (H518) A -
Equity shareholders of the Company ANAERFEA (2,901,499) 81,421
Non-controlling interests FEpRER (535,371) (698)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EE)BH (3,436,870) 80,723
Total comprehensive (loss)/income EEFRZEER), WALE:
for the year attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company AREIERFBA (2,904,811) 83,116
Non-controlling interests JiER R (535,371) (698)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income ER2E(FR)MABE
for the year (3,440,182) 82,418
(Loss)learnings per share attributable tothe FRAXAAERZEABEER
equity shareholders of the Company (B8 /B
during the year 14
Basic (loss)/earnings per share SREA(ER)/AF RMB(116.6) cents RMB3.1 cents
AR¥(116.6)7 ARES. 15
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share SREE(ER)/ AR RMB(116.6) cents RMB3.1 cents
AR¥(116.6)7 ARES. 15
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mE BRI R

31 December 2020 —E=_ZEF+=-HA=+—H

2020 2019
—E-EH —E-NEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
P 5T ARET T ARBFIT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Coal mining rights B R R TR 15 1,942,800 4,017,884
Property, plant and equipment Wz - BB R 16 2,371,686 4,669,115
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 17 9,218 10,828
Other deposit HEmize 23 34,264 =
Interest in an associate R—REEE R T 2 s 18 = =
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 4,357,968 8697827
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 21 55,635 59,520
Trade receivables W E 5 8RR 22 430,143 129,128
Prepayments and other receivables B B 30 & E (0 fiE U BR 3¢ 23 298,872 293,234
Pledged and restricted deposits B R SR B1F 3 24 403 15,229
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEEY 25 154,904 159,695
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 939,957 696,806
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables FERTE IR 26 (670,373) (333,947)
Other payables and contract liabilites EfERMBERANREHNEE 27 (2,295,605) (2,576,696)
Lease liabilities HEaE 30 (2,805) (3,819)
Borrowings BE 28 (1,970,990) (2,163,276)
Tax payable FERS BT (204,933) (219,054)
e (5,144,706) (5,296,792)
Net current liabilites mBAMEE 0 (4204749)  (4,639,986)
Total assets less current liabilites RE#ERZBHEE 153219 4,057,841
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Other payables o FE T BR SR 27 = (20,550)
Accrued reclamation obligations TEIREZREMF 29 (133,920) (124,010)
Lease liabilities HEaE 30 (926) (1,495)
Borrowings BE 28 (2,625,364) (2,172,848)
Deferred taxation EER I 19 (289,093) (1,173,674)
e (8,049,308) (3,492,577)
Net (liabilities)/assets (BERR BERE (2,896,084) 565,264
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
& B RO R

31 December 2020 —E-FEF+_-_A=+—H

2020 2019
—ECEF —T—hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E ARET T ARBTT
Capital and reserves AR EE
Share capital N 211,224 211,224
Perpetual subordinated convertible K AR AR A AR 78 5
securities 31 156,931 156,931
Deficit EsAt 31 (3,636,488) (710,511)
Total deficit attributable to equity A2 TR FE ABLE
shareholders of the Company HhaEzE (3,268,333) (342,356)
Non-controlling interests R ER 372,249 907,620
Total (deficit)/equity (B 4k), R B (2,896,084) 565,264
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of directors of R-T-—F =A==+ HETEZZLEEHER
China Qinfa Group Limited on 31 March 2021. NEEEE A NIRRT -
Xu Da Bai Tao
®E BES
Director Director
= 3
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BREBEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mEBRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
—E-EHE —E-NEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt ek ARBT T ARBTTT
Operating activities REER
Loss before taxation bR Al ES 1R (4,312,998) (4,506)
Adjustments for: BT FIEELFHEE -
Depreciation of property, plant and Wz - WEREEITE
equipment 10 267,143 300,473
Amortisation of coal mining rights R BRI R 5 10 205,368 232,463
Depreciation of right-of-use asset FRAEEENE 10 4,362 3,451
Finance income B A 9 (2,189) (1,446)
Finance costs B ISR AR 9 369,029 293,023
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of property,  HEWE - BE R RE
plant and equipment B8, (k=) F5E 8 95 (1,800)
Property, plant and equipment written-off  #1% « /= N 2% & 3 10 1,245 2,211
Impairment losses on coal mining rights B ERIRHE 2 B E &5 18 15 1,869,716 =
Impairment losses on property, plant and #12% &= &R EZRE
equipment &8 16 2,069,252 =
Reversal of impairment on trade FEWE 5 R 2 R B T
receivables, net Pt (31,736) (8,001)
Impairment losses/(reversal of impairment F&1 7k 78 K H 4t g U
losses) on prepayments and other IR EER, (RE
receivables, net 18R E) ) F 5 12,987 (21,544)
Recovery of trade and other receivables YRGB E S 2 B 5 K&
previously written off Hh fE Wk IE 8 = (7,356)
Trade and other payables written off B 5 & H th FE A SRIE M 58 (8,269) =
Loss on non-substantial modification of &8 Z JEE A EkEE
borrowings 8 194,351 -
638,356 786,968
Changes in working capital: LEESEE
Change in inventories e 3,815 2,386
Change in trade receivables JEW B 5 RN E S (269,310) 192,796
Change in prepayments and other TE A FRIE B H b B R IR
receivables = (17,427) 63,553
Change in trade payables ERNBZERENES) 336,499 (223,681)
Change in other payables and contract ~ Hit[ENFIBRALAE
liabilities o) (99,877) 12,220
Cash generated from operations KETEFBEREE 592,056 834,242
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H{ 2 —Z —_TF+_A=+—HILtFE

2020 2019
—EEF ZT—NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt aE ARBT ARBTT

Interest paid EfTFE (42,401) (77,844)
PRC Corporate Income tax paid BT B EFREH (22,574) (48,530)
Net cash generated from operating RETERBRSTFHR

activites 527,081 707,868
Investing activities REEE
Interest received B U F 8 2,189 1,446
Deposit paid for proposed acquisition of ~ FtE U ESDE(E & R

SDE (as defined in note 23) Mol Zfd ke (34,264) =
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant H&E#E  FE L& E

and equipment Fri3 3818 26 27,857
Payments for property, plant and MY - BEREEL

equipment G (68,129) (308,533)
Payments for mineral exploration and BB RN IR R BRI 2

mining rights N (54,327) (36,223)
Placement of pledged and restricted R E R R PR HI7F 5K

deposits (378) (15,216)
Withdrawal of pledged and restricted RENE AR R X PR HI7F 5K

deposit 15,204 30
Net cash used in investing activities  REZBAIARERER (139,679) (330,639)
Financing activities mEEE
Proceeds from borrowings BEFSIAE 25 855,100 579,901
Repayments of borrowings BEEE 25 (1,244,837) (908,261)
Repayments of lease liabilities BEfEak (4,335) (4,172)
Net cash used in financing activities = REZBAIARERE (394,072) (332,532)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReRRELZEEY

cash equivalents (RA),/ & hniE 5 (6,670) 44,697
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R— A —HZHE&RK

REZEY 159,695 115,680

Effect of foreign exchange rate ERSENE

changes 1,879 (682)
Cash and cash equivalents at RtZRA=t—-HZ

31 December RERBEEEN 154,904 159,695
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

GENERAL

China Qinfa Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 March 2008
as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (2007 Revision) of the
Cayman Islands. The directors of the Company consider
the immediate and ultimate holding companies of the
Group to be Fortune Pearl International Limited (“Fortune
Pearl”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and the ultimate controlling shareholder to be
Mr. Xu Jihua (“Mr. Xu”), the sole shareholder of Fortune
Pearl. The Company’s shares were listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) with effect from 3 July 2009 (the
“Listing Date”). The address of its registered office is
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and the principal
place of business of the Company is Unit Nos. 2201 to
2208, level 22, South Tower, Poly International Plaza,
No. 1 Pazhou Avenue East, Haizhu District, Guangzhou
City, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are coal mining,
purchases and sales, filtering, storage, blending of coal
in the PRC and shipping transportation.

The Company’s functional currency is the Hong Kong
dollars (“HKD”). However, the presentation currency
of the consolidated financial statements is Renminbi
(“RMB”) in order to present the operating results and
financial position of the Group based on the economic
environment in which the operating subsidiaries of the
Group operate.
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98

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group incurred net loss of approximately
RMB3,436,870,000 (2019: profit of RMB80,723,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2020. As at 31 December
2020, the Group had net liabilities and net current
liabilities of approximately RMB2,896,084,000 and
RMB4,204,749,000 respectively (2019: net assets and
net current liabilities of approximately RMB565,264,000
and RMB4,639,986,000) respectively). As at 31
December 2020, borrowings and accrued interests
(including default interest) amounting to approximately
RMB1,808,207,000 and approximately RMB359,171,000
respectively that had been due for immediate payment
were not renewed or rolled over upon maturity.

In addition, pursuant to the Settlement Agreement
entered into during the year ended 31 December 2018
(defined and detailed in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements), there is a default clause that the
asset management company can require the Group to
pay the outstanding balance of the original borrowings
and interest payable in the event of default. As at 31
December 2020, such other borrowings, which had no
event of default occurred, with carrying amounts of only
RMB2,788,147,000 were recognised in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position. Please
see note 28 to the consolidated financial statements for
details.

As at the date when the consolidated financial
statements are authorised for issue, the Group has not
obtained waivers from the relevant banks/lenders on
these cross default clauses, and, as represented by
the management of the Group, the banks/lenders have
not demanded immediate repayment from the Group
except for those as disclosed in note 28.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERAF
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Moreover, there are a number of litigations against the
Group of which the details are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements, mainly requesting the
Group to settle long outstanding payables with interest.
And the Group’s bank deposits of approximately
RMB403,000 were restricted for use in relation to
the litigation proceeding, as set out in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.

These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the assumptions that the Group will
continue to operate as a going concern notwithstanding
the conditions prevailing as at 31 December 2020
and subsequently thereto up to the date when the
consolidated financial statements are authorised for
issue. In order to improve the Group’s financial position,
immediate liquidity and cash flows, and otherwise to
sustain the Group as a going concern, the directors of
the Company have adopted several measures together
with other measures in progress at the date when the
consolidated financial statements are authorised for
issue, but not limited to, the followings:

(i) For borrowings which will be maturing before
31 December 2021, the Group is actively
negotiating with banks/lenders before they fall
due to secure their renewals so as to ensure
that the necessary funds will be in place to
meet the Group’s working capital and financial
requirements in the future will continue to be met;

2.
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100

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(ii)

In relation to those borrowings that have
been past due or those borrowings that
became immediately repayable due to cross-
default clauses set out in the respective loan
agreements, which are classified as current
liabilities and detailed in note 28, the Group is
in the process of negotiating with the relevant
banks and other lenders to extend the repayment
dates and to obtain waivers from banks;

the Group will actively obtain additional new
sources of financing as and when needed,;

Given the stability of coal market and uprising
coal prices, the Group will accelerate the coal
production of those coal mines currently under
production and apply for the renewal of those
expired coal mining rights of coal mines not
yet commenced production, together with
applying cost control measures in cost of
sales, administrative expenses and capital
expenditures, to increase the Group’s internally
generated funds and operating cash inflows in
coming years continuously. The Group recorded
a net operating cash inflow of RMB527,081,000
during the year; and

The Group has appointed external lawyers
and/or assigned internal lawyers to handle the
outstanding litigations, and to mitigate the risk
exposure from any legal claims. In respect
of some of the litigations, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group has
valid grounds to defend against the claims.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

On the basis of the successful implementation of the
measures described above in the foreseeable future
and after assessing the Group’s current and forecasted
cash positions, the directors of the Company are
optimistic that the Group will be able to meet in full the
Group’s financial obligations as they fall due for the
twelve months from 31 December 2020. Accordingly,
the consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared on the going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue in business as
a going concern, adjustments would have to be made
to write down the carrying amounts of the Group’s
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any
further liabilities that may arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities respectively. The effects
of these adjustments have not been reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to IFRSs issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) for the first time
in the current year:

Amendments to IAS 1and IAS8  Definition of Material

Definition of a Business
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

Amendments to IFRS 3
Amendments to IFRS 9,
IAS 39 and IFRS 7

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS 1 and
IAS 8 “Definition of Material”

The Group has applied the Amendments to IAS 1
and IAS 8 for the first time in the current year. The
amendments provide a new definition of material that
states “information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements, which provide financial information about a
specific reporting entity.” The amendments also clarify
that materiality depends on the nature or magnitude
of information, either individually or in combination
with other information, in the context of the financial
statements taken as a whole.

The application of the amendments in the current year
had no impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year (continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to IFRS 3
“Definition of a Business”

The Group has applied the amendments for the first
time in the current year. The amendments clarify that
while businesses usually have outputs, outputs are not
required for an integrated set of activities and assets
to qualify as a business. To be considered a business,
an acquired set of activities and assets must include,
at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs.

The amendments remove the assessment of whether
market participants are capable of replacing any
missing inputs or processes and continuing to produce
outputs. The amendments also introduce additional
guidance that helps to determine whether a substantive
process has been acquired.

In addition, the amendments introduce an optional
concentration test that permits a simplified assessment
of whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is not a business. Under the optional concentration
test, the acquired set of activities and assets is not a
business if substantially all of the fair value of the gross
assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable
asset or group of similar assets. The gross assets
under assessment exclude cash and cash equivalents,
deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting from the
effects of deferred tax liabilities. The election on whether
to apply the optional concentration test is available on
transaction-by-transaction basis.

The application of the amendments had no impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the current year
as similar conclusion would have been reached without
applying the optional concentration test.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:

IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39,

IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS 10 and
IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 16

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 16

Amendments to IAS 37

Amendments to IFRSs

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

Insurance Contracts and
the related Amendments*

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework®

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform - Phase 22

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint
Venture®

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions'

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current*

Property, Plant and Equipment
- Proceeds before Intended
Use®

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract®

Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2018-2020°
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Except for the new and amendments to IFRSs
mentioned below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of all other new and
amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

Amendment to IFRS 16 “Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions”

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 June 2020.

The amendment introduces a new practical expedient
for lessees to elect not to assess whether a Covid-19-
related rent concession is a lease modification. The
practical expedient only applies to rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 that
meets all of the following conditions:

o the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially
the same as, or less than, the consideration for
the lease immediately preceding the change;

° any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2021; and

o there is no substantive change to other terms

and conditions of the lease.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendment to IFRS 16 “Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions” (continued)

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts
for changes in lease payments resulting from rent
concessions the same way it would account for the
changes applying IFRS 16 “Leases” if the changes
are not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of
lease payments are accounted for as variable lease
payments. The related lease liabilities are adjusted
to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a
corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit or
loss in the period in which the event occurs.

The application of the amendments is not expected to

have significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current”

The amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement
for at least twelve months from reporting date for
classification of liabilities as current or non-current,
which:

o specify that the classification of liabilities as
current or non-current should be based on rights
that are in existence at the end of the reporting
period. Specifically, the amendments clarify that:

(i) the classification should not be affected
by management intentions or expectations
to settle the liability within 12 months; and

(ii) if the right is conditional on the compliance
with covenants, the right exists if the
conditions are met at the end of the
reporting period, even if the lender does
not test compliance until a later date; and

o clarify that if a liability has terms that could,
at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement by the transfer of the entity’s own
equity instruments, these terms do not affect its
classification as current or non-current only if
the entity recognises the option separately as
an equity instrument applying IAS 32 “Financial
Instruments: Presentation”.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to IAS 16 “Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use”

The amendments specify that the costs of any item
that were produced while bringing an item of property,
plant and equipment to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management (such as samples
produced when testing whether the relevant property,
plant and equipment is functioning properly) and the
proceeds from selling such items should be recognised
and measured in the profit or loss in accordance with
applicable standards. The cost of the items is measured
in accordance with IAS 2 “Inventories”.

The application of the amendments is not expected to
have significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

Amendments to IAS 37 “Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract”

The amendments specify that, when an entity assesses
whether a contract is onerous in accordance with IAS
37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets”, the unavoidable costs under the contract
should reflect the least net cost of exiting from the
contract, which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and
any compensation or penalties arising from failure to
fulfil it. Costs of fulfilling the contract include incremental
costs and an allocation of other costs that relate directly
to fulfilling contracts (for example, an allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and
equipment used in fulfilling the contract).

The amendments are applicable to contracts for which

the Group has not yet fulfilled all its obligations as at the
date of initial application.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to IAS 37 “Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract” (continued)

The application of the amendments is not expected to
have significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2018-2020

The annual improvements make amendments to the
following standards:

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

The amendment clarifies that for the purpose of
assessing whether modification of terms of original
financial liability constitutes substantial modification
under the “10 per cent” test, a borrower includes only
fees paid or received between the borrower and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either the
borrower or the lender on the other’s behalf.

IFRS 16 “Leases”

The amendment to lllustrative Example 13
accompanying IFRS 16 removes from the example
the illustration of reimbursement relating to leasehold
improvements by the lessor in order to remove any
potential confusion.

The application of the amendments is not expected to
have significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

—E-ZHF3 ANNUAL REPORT 2020

BRANF T R RS 3T B BR B 78 3R 5 2 A
(TEARR BF T3R5 22 81 |) (@)

B A {E 5 R E R 2 H 5T R LIS RT B BR 8t
BiREER @)

ST E R S s R E37 5 S H —
BIT—HBE#HZ A

BHIERZE BT HAKENM BN
MAERBERERTE °

e \EFCE-EFERURREE
B2 FENE

FEUBCEH A TERBEITERT

B 75 28 5 R E 9 (B 7 T A |

ZIEFTEE » R EEN0%IFRET HIR
ATRMBERFNENETBREL EE
B ERAEBEEERAERERAZRH
EXHHEBHNER  BEABERALE
FARKRE TN ARBEER -

BSR4 e Rl 16355 [ TH B

B B8 BRI R B 75 o o R R S 165 R (5155 13
S ERTRBIRMER T HEASEED
EEEMELHESR  OBERERERE
2R °

BHIERAZSEI T HAKENM BN
MERBERERTE -

109



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H{ 2 —Z —_TF+_A=+—HILtFE

110

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4,

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable IFRSs,
which collective term includes all applicable individual
IFRS, IAS and related Interpretations, promulgated by
the IASB and the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of IFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment”, leasing transactions that are accounted for in
accordance with IFRS 16, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in IAS 2 or value in use in IAS 36
“Impairment of Assets”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant
components of equity and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution
of relevant reserves between the Group and the non-
controlling interests according to the Group’s and the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Optional concentration test

Effective from 1 January 2020, the Group can elect to
apply an optional concentration test, on a transaction-
by-transaction basis, that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and
assets is not a business. The concentration test is met
if substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset
or group of similar identifiable assets. The gross assets
under assessment exclude cash and cash equivalents,
deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting from the
effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the concentration test
is met, the set of activities and assets is determined not
to be a business and no further assessment is needed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions

(continued)

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and
liabilities that do not constitute a business, the Group
identifies and recognises the individual identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed by allocating
the purchase price first to financial assets/financial
liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining
balance of the purchase price is then allocated to the
other identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of
their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such
a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain
purchase gain.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses, other than business
combination under common control are accounted
for using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
must meet the definitions of an asset and a liability in
the International Accounting Standards Committee’s
“Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements (replaced by the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting” issued in September
2010).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions

(continued)
Business combinations (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with IAS 12 “Income Taxes” and IAS
19 “Employee Benefits” respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree
or share-based payment arrangements of the
Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with IFRS 2 at the
acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below);

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 “Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations” are measured in accordance with
that standard; and

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured
at the present value of the remaining lease
payments (as defined in IFRS 16) as if the
acquired leases were new leases at the
acquisition date, except for leases for which
(a) the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is
of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised
and measured at the same amount as the
relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect
favourable or unfavourable terms of the lease
when compared with market terms.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of the acquirers previously held equity interest
in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net
amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirers
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, which represent the lowest level at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes and not larger than an operating segment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Goodwill (continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in
a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any
of the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-
generating units, the attributable amount of goodwill
is included in the determination of the amount of profit
or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of an
operation within the cash-generating unit, the amount
of goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of
the relative values of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the
acquisition of an associate is described below.

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment in an associate (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate
are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
The financial statements of the associate used for
equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an associate
is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the associate. Changes
in net assets of the associate other than profit or loss
and other comprehensive income are not accounted for
unless such changes resulted in changes in ownership
interest held by the Group. When the Group’s share of
losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in
that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment
in an associate, any excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit
or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment in an associate (continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
IAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in the investee with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When
the Group retains an interest in the former associate
and the retained interest is a financial asset within
the scope of IFRS 9/IAS 39, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition.
The difference between the carrying amount of the
associate and the fair value of any retained interest and
any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in the
associate is included in the determination of the gain or
loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate on
the same basis as would be required if that associate
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial
disposal of the relevant associate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment in an associate (continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to
that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent
of interests in the associate that are not related to the
Group.

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

Iltems of property, plant and equipment are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed
assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour,
any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset
to a working condition for its intended use, the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located and capitalised
borrowing costs and changes in the measurement of
existing liabilities recognised for these costs resulting
from changes in the timing or outflow of resources
required to settle the obligation or from changes in the
discount rate. Purchased software that is integral to the
functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as
part of that equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Recognition and measurement (continued)

When proved and probable coal reserves have been
determined, costs incurred to develop coal mines are
capitalised as part of the cost of the mining structures.
All other expenditures, including the costs of removing
waste materials, the cost of repairs and maintenance
and major overhaul, are expensed as they are incurred.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different estimated useful lives, then
they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss on
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
(calculated as the difference between the net proceeds
from disposal and the carrying amount of the item)
is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a component of an item of
property, plant and equipment is recognised in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the
future economic benefits embodied within the part will
flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced component is
derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of
property, plant and equipment are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its
residual value. Significant components of individual
assets are assessed and if a component has an
estimated useful life that is different from the remainder
of the asset, that component is depreciated separately.

Depreciation is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives of each component
of an item of property, plant and equipment, other than
mining structures.

The estimated useful lives for the current and
comparative years of significant items of property, plant
and equipment are as follows:

Plant and buildings 10-30 years
Machinery 3-30 years
Electronic and other equipment 3—-10 years
Motor vehicles 5-15 years
Vessels 10-30 years

Mining structures are depreciated using the units-of-
production method, utilising proved and probable coal
reserves in the depletion base.

No depreciation is provided for assets under
construction until such time as the relevant assets are
completed and available for intended use. Assets under
construction are transferred to the relevant categories
of property, plant and equipment upon the completion
of their respective construction.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and
residual values are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and adjusted if appropriate, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Coal mining rights

Coal mining rights represent coal mining rights
acquired from the government or through a business
combination. Coal mining rights are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated amortisation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Coal mining rights are amortised using the units-of-
production method, utilising proved and probable coal
reserves in the depletion base.

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets (including
right-of-use assets) with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of tangible assets are
estimated individually, when it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset
is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

The cost of inventories is calculated using the weighted
average cost formula and comprises expenditure
incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or
conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing
them to their existing location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as cost of sales in the period
in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value
and all losses of inventories are recognised as cost of
sales in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income in the period the write-down or loss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount
of inventories recognised as cost of sales in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the
period in which the reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H{ 2 —Z —_TF+_A=+—HILtFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Obligations for reclamation

The Group’s obligations for reclamation consist of
spending estimates at both surface and underground
mines in accordance with the PRC rules and
regulations. The Group estimates its liabilities for final
reclamation and mine closure based upon detailed
calculations of the amount and timing of the future
cash spending to perform the required work. Spending
estimates are escalated for inflation, then discounted at
a discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the liability such that the amount of provision reflects
the present value of the expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The Group records as
additional costs of the mining structures in property,
plant and equipment associated with the liability for
final reclamation and mine closure. The obligation and
corresponding asset are recognised in the period in
which the liability is incurred. The asset is depreciated
on the units-of-production method over its expected life
and the liability is accreted to the projected spending
date. As changes in estimates occur (such as mine plan
revisions, changes in estimated costs, or changes in
timing of the performance of reclamation activities), the
revisions to the obligation and the corresponding asset
are recognised at the appropriate discount rate.

Share capital

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary

shares, net of any tax effects, are recognised as a
deduction from equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Share capital (continued)
Perpetual subordinated convertible securities

Perpetual subordinated convertible securities issued
by the Group gives the right to the holder to convert
these securities into a fixed number of the Company’s
shares at any time at a fixed exercise price per share.
Perpetual subordinated convertible securities with
no contractual obligation to repay its principal and
no contractual obligation to pay any distribution are
classified as equity. Respective distributions if and
when declared are treated as equity dividends.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in
which they are declared.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Under IFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

° the customer simultaneously receives or
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

. the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good
or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services
that the Group has transferred to a customer that is
not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment
in accordance with IFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a

contract are accounted for and presented on a net
basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are transferred to
customers which are taken to be the point in time when
the customer has control on the goods and thus, the
performance obligation was satisfied. Revenue from
the sales of goods in the course of ordinary activities is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts and value
added tax.

Charter hire income

Income from time charter, which is of operating lease in
nature, is recognised in accordance with IFRS 16 on a
straight-line basis over the period of each charter.

Income from voyage charter is recognised over time
by reference to the progress of which the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
when the voyage charter service is provided by the
Group.

Government subsidies

Government subsidies are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them. Subsidies that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as other income in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Subsidies that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the estimated useful life of
the asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i. e. RMB) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests
as appropriate).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
tax because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-
of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.
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mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies IAS 12 requirements to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences
relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
are not recognised at initial recognition and over the
lease terms due to application of the initial recognition
exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs comprise borrowing costs, which are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that
asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale
are interrupted or complete.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the
cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year
in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Retirement plan obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the
MPF Scheme) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund.

The employees of the subsidiaries within the Group
which operate in the PRC are required to participate
in the central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These PRC subsidiaries are
required to contribute a percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension scheme as specified by the local
municipal government. The contributions are charged
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the central pension scheme.

There were no forfeited contributions utilised by the

Group to reduce existing level of contributions for each
of the years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Employee benefits (continued)
Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair
value is measured at grant date using the Binomial
Model and Binomial Lattice Model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled to
the options, the total estimated fair value of the options
is spread over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting date,
the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve) except where forfeiture is only
due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the share-based compensation
reserve until either the option is exercised (when it
is transferred to share capital and share premium
accounts) or the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained earnings or accumulated losses).

ZE-ZFFH ANNUAL REPORT 2020

BEAEHEE®

EETF @)
UG BEBRZT5

ETREBRENAAEEEASEEK
R WHEREESNENERNES - 20
BERET A —BEL R BB
BT E - BEhEEIR TRBRENERK
Kigfr - HERBAT A BB GRS BK
HHRARERE - BRENGESAAER
HEREEIERERBN A EERER
BHIR D -

REBHNERTEHRRBNBERER
B - UBEFECHEIBNBRERAEME
HORE  eERSFENEFHAKE
EHBAK  BRIFREEERITEER
BRREE @ AlfERR  XEEARHER
EHEERE -ERBRY  BR/MAX
MEeRSELAE  URREREENE
PR B QLA RER 2 S REER
ERARERR)  EHSERREREAN
R B B An T 45 B 1% 6 55 88 5k 1 T R Uk AU BR
Sh o M RN AN AERZ M &
NHER - EEBRRETERBRERAE
KB ok (B R ) Sk B AR 2 HR (R B 4 1
B EREENHRAERE) -

135



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H{ 2 —Z —_TF+_A=+—HILtFE

4,

136

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material).

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), except
that at the date of initial application/initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment in other comprehensive income if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which IFRS 3 applies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, BEAEHEE®
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued) ERMITAE®
Financial assets (continued) TREE(®)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial TEEENSERE R E®

assets (continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if: WfEE TOGEY  AeREENBAIFE
BE:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose . HNDFTERWBUREHAANLE ;
of selling in the near term; or 54

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of . RYPHERE - HAREEREE
identified financial instruments that the Group BrzE#nem I EAaH —
manages together and has a recent actual S WEBREHENIBERE
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or =X 53K

. it is a derivative that is not designated and . HBIWIFETERIEABRE HTE
effective as a hedging instrument. RETET A o

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a Bt SN - i 20 itk B] OE BR 3k oK 8 R > = 5 R

financial asset that are required to be measured at fid - RIS B AT 1 A] B SE Hh 5 E 1T 6 dR

the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL ERARIZ AR BT AZHBRAGTENS

if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an BEEREANBEGT ABRITE

accounting mismatch.

—®—ZHF3 ANNUAL REPORT 2020 139



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H{ 2 —Z —_TF+_A=+—HILtFE

140

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income
is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial
asset is credit impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of
the financial asset. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit

impaired.

(ii) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, with
any fair value gains or losses recognised in profit

or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets which are subject to impairment
under IFRS 9 (including trade receivables and other
receivables). The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result
from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings based on the past due analysis of the trade
receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instruments
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; or

° an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease
in the debtors ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due with reference to
the historical payment pattern of customers of
the Group, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H{ 2 —Z —_TF+_A=+—HILtFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(ii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 1 year past due with reference to
the historical payment pattern of customers of
the Group, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default
or past due event; the lender(s) of the
borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would
not otherwise consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iv)

v)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables,
when the amounts are over two years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped on the basis
of:

° nature of financial instrument;

o past-due status;

° nature, size and industry of debtors; and
° external credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues control the transferred asset,
the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceed received. Any interest in such transferred
financial assets that is created or retained by the Group
is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the assets
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and

the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERAF

BEAESHEE®

$RMIA®
THEEE(®)
BHER 2 EE

HEEMEEWRRREERENSNEND
Em - REZEREEREMAENED
t2HERROFEE TS -8B AKX
SEBURERZTREE - MAKELE
BEIREMBENEL L2HRARKE
BABRBEZEHZCBREE  MAKERE
REREEMRE s N H A58 F A
HEAE HAKERECEBESREE
MATARNED E2MERNRORE - RIAX
SEEEEIAZEREE  THRIRSK
BFSRIRRERER - AEBEAIZSK
RENERCEBTREENTERE
RAREBENEEXEE -

RBUHERZBE KA ENTREE
i ZEERAEECKREERRER
Mz FEZRBEN B ARER -

ETHEER E
DBERET S
BEHERERTADRESNZHENEER

BURTRHABERESTANERI AR
TR B A -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables, other
payables and borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition/modification of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

When the contractual terms of a financial liability are
modified, the Group assess whether the revised terms
result in a substantial modification from original terms
taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances
including qualitative factors. When the contractual terms
of financial liability are modified such that the revised
terms would result in a substantial modification from
the original terms, after taking into account all relevant
facts and circumstances including qualitative factors,
such modification is accounted for as derecognition of
the original financial liability and the recognition of new
financial liability. The difference between the carrying
amount of financial liability derecognised and the
fair value of consideration paid or payable, including
any liabilities assumed and derivative components
recognised, is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Derecognition/modification of financial liabilities

(continued)

If qualitative assessment is not conclusive, the
Group considers that the terms are substantially
different if the discounted present value of the cash
flows under the new terms, including any fees paid
net of any fees received, and discounted using the
original effective interest rate, is at least 10 per cent
different from the discounted present value of the
remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.
Accordingly, such modification of terms is accounted
for as an extinguishment, and any costs or fees
incurred are recognised as part of the gain or loss on
the extinguishment. The exchange or modification is
considered as non-substantial modification when such
difference is less than 10 per cent.

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities
that do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount
of the relevant financial liabilities will be calculated at
the present value of the modified contractual cash flows
discounted at the financial liabilities’ original effective
interest rate. Transaction costs or fees incurred are
adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified financial
liabilities and are amortised over the remaining term.
Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the financial
liability is recognised in profit or loss at the date of
modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payments when due, in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks and financial institutions
on behalf of subsidiaries to secure interest-bearing
bank borrowings and other banking facilities.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the
consolidated financial statements at fair value on the
date the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Company’s liabilities under such
guarantees are measured at the higher of:

o the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with IFRS 9; and

o the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
over the guarantee period.

Where guarantees in relation to interest-bearing bank
borrowings of subsidiaries or associates are provided
for no compensation, the fair values are accounted for
as contributions and recognised as part of the cost
of the investment in the financial statements of the
Company.
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52

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Lessee accounting

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and
instead account for the lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar
characteristics are accounted on a portfolio basis when
the Group reasonably expects that the effects on the
financial statements would not differ materially from
individual leases within the portfolio.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. BEAEHEE®
(CONTINUED)

Leases (continued) HE®

Lessee accounting (continued) A BT EE G % (E)
Right-of-use assets EHREE

The cost of right-of-use asset includes: FRABEEERANBE

the amount of the initial measurement of the HEBBVBRITESR

lease liability;

. any lease payments made at or before the . R BBk 2 BI{EL 2 ERAEE
commencement date, less any lease incentives R mEEAE WA EHE
received,;

. any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; . AREEEAZERVBEEKAR
and &

. an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group . NEBY RIFH R EVHBEE
in dismantling and removing the underlying R1EHE 78 & B PR 7E th Bl Sk IR 1E AR 78
assets, restoring the site on which it is located BEERBAERRREHER 2R
or restoring the underlying asset to the condition ZIEE AR - BRIEZFERARTIE &
required by the terms and conditions of the EFEMESE -

lease, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any F AR E E AR A REHTE RO
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and EEEiE URHEEaEMNTMER
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. SELAE -

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably REBEERTENHERTAERIESHE
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased BEEEERAR TERAEEE - (MK
assets at the end of the lease term is depreciated AEERFRAFHTETENE - Rite
from commencement date to the end of the useful Hh - AR EREME R AFRE
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on EFHREE  LERATERE -

a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (continued)
Lessee accounting (continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at
that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index
or rate as at the commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the
option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if

the lease term reflects the Group exercising an
option to terminate the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (continued)
Lessee accounting (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets unless the adjustment to the right of use assets
results in the carrying amount of the right of assets
becoming zero and there is a further reduction in the
measurement of the lease liability, in which case, any
remaining amount of the remeasurement is recognised
in profit or loss) whenever:

o there is a change in the lease term or there is
a change in the assessment of exercise of a
purchase option, in which case the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at
the date of reassessment.

o there is a change in future lease payments
resulting from changes in an index or rate used
to determine those payments, including for
example a change to reflect changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review or
there is a change in the amounts expected to
be payable under a guaranteed residual value,
in which cases the related lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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156

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (continued)
As a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.

Refundable rental deposits
Refundable rental deposits received are accounted
under IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.

Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BEAESHEE®

HEw
TER LA
HEZ DR E

AEBREEAZEHED T EREEH

REHEZHERATZEREE 2HE
MNERZRNBRTHER - A RTBME
EZNFERKRATIMEHEEE 2 R®E
18 - MARKARERAEREER B
% o

KEAKEBEFEBBRENHESKAZT
RN -

AR E

B W ER R A] AR B & 12 R IR B FR B 75 3R
FEANFIRAR  YERARBETOY
B B HRAAENFABRR/RE
AFEARBIMEE K -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Company’s
parent.
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(CONTINUED)

Related parties (continued)

TE+=A=+—BILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4,

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is

related to the others);

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member);

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the

same third party;

(iv)

One entity is a joint venture of a third

entity and the other entity is an associate

of the third entity;

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the

Group;

(vi)

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled

by a person identified in (a);

(vii)

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant

influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii)

The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part,

provides key

management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Company.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
requires the directors of the Company to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of accounting policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis for
making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of IFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are described as follows:

(i) Provision of ECL for trade receivables and
other receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL
for the trade receivables. The provision rates
are based on nature of goods provided to the
customers as groupings of various receivables
that have similar loss patterns. The provision
matrix is based on the Group’s historical default
rates taking into consideration forward-looking
information that is available without undue costs
or effort. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and
changes in the forward-looking information are
considered.
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5.

160

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

(i) Provision of ECL for trade receivables and

other receivables (continued)

The Group makes periodic individual assessment
on the recoverability of other receivables based
on historical settlement records, past experience,
and also quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportive forward-

looking information.

In addition, trade receivables and other
receivables with significant balances and credit
impaired are assessed for ECL individually.
The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes
in estimates. The information about the ECL
and the Group’s trade receivables and other
receivables are disclosed in note 34. As at
31 December 2020, the carrying amount
of trade receivables and other receivables
are approximately RMB430,143,000 and
RMB117,522,000 (2019: RMB129,128,000 and
RMB26,429,000) respectively, net of reversal of
impairment loss allowance and impairment loss
allowance of approximately RMB55,656,000 and
RMB344,768,000 (2019: RMB132,295,000 and

RMB343,125,000) respectively.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

(ii)

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and coal mining rights

When there is indication that property, plant
and equipment and coal mining rights may be
impaired, the Group estimates the recoverable
amounts of the relevant assets or the cash-
generating unit to which the assets belong.
When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit in which the relevant assets
are attached to, which is the higher of the value
in use or fair value less costs of disposal. The
value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating units projected with
reference to the projected sales quantities, unit
selling prices, unit costs, gross margins, growth
rates and discounted at a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value. The
estimated uncertainty mainly includes gross
margin, discount rate and growth rate. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected,
or change in facts and circumstances which
results in downward revision of future cash, a
material impairment loss or a further impairment
loss may arise.

As disclosed in the notes 15 and 16, impairment
loss of coal mining rights amounting to
RMB1,869,716,000 and impairment loss
of related property, plant and equipment
amounting to RMB2,057,757,000 (2019: Nil)
were recognised as at 31 December 2020, and
the carrying amounts of property, plant and
equipment and coal mining rights of coal mining
cash-generating units are RMB2,219,033,000
and RMB1,942,800,000 respectively (2019:
RMB4,497,151,000 and RMB4,017,884,000
respectively).

Details of the recoverable amount calculation are
disclosed in note 15.
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5.

162

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

(iii)

(iv)

Depreciation

Other than mining structures and assets under
construction, property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives, after taking into account
the estimated residual values. The management
periodically reviews changes in technology
and industry conditions, asset retirement
activity and residual values to determine
adjustments to estimated remaining useful lives
and depreciation rates. Actual economic lives
may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic
reviews could result in a change in depreciable
lives and therefore depreciation expenses in
future periods. As at 31 December 2020, the
carrying amount of the property, plant and
equipment, other than mining structures and
assets under construction, was approximately
RMB1,138,818,000 (2019: RMB1,744,729,000).
Further details are disclosed in note 16.

Coal reserves

Engineering estimates of the Group’s coal
reserves are inherently imprecise and represent
only approximate amounts because of the
subjective judgements involved in developing
such information. There are authoritative
guidelines regarding the engineering criteria that
have to be met before estimated coal reserves
can be designated as proved and probable
reserves. Proved and probable coal reserve
estimates are updated on a regular basis and
have taken into account recent production
and technical information about each mine.
In addition, as prices and cost levels change
from year to year, the estimate of proved and
probable coal reserves also change as adverse
changes in prices and cost levels would affect
the cost-effectiveness of mining the coal
and hence may cause reclassifications from
reserves to resources categories. This change is
considered a change in estimate for accounting
purposes and is reflected on a prospective basis
in related depreciation and amortisation rates.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

(iv)

Coal reserves (continued)

Despite the inherent imprecision in these
engineering estimates, these estimates are used
in determining depreciation and amortisation
expenses and impairment loss. Depreciation
and amortisation rates are determined based
on estimated proved and probable coal reserve
quantity (the denominator) and capitalised
costs of mining structures and coal mining
rights (the numerator). The capitalised cost of
mining structures is depreciated and coal mining
rights are amortised based on the units of coal
produced.

At 31 December 2020, as disclosed in the
note 15, according to the CPR (as defined
in note 15), the total coal reserves of all the
Group’s coal mines in accordance with JORC
Code were approximately 58 million tonnes
as at 31 December 2020, as compared with
original coal reserves of 199 million tonnes
previously estimated. The net carrying amounts
of the Group’s mining structures recognised
in property, plant and equipment and the
Group’s coal mining rights were approximately
RMB825,347,000 (2019: RMB1,790,700,000)
and approximately RMB1,942,800,000 (2019:
RMB4,017,884,000) respectively. Further details
are disclosed in notes 15 and 16 respectively.
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5.

164

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

(v)

(vi)

Obligations for reclamation

The estimation of the liabilities for final
reclamation and mine closure involves the
estimates of the amount and timing for the future
cash spending as well as the discount rate used
for reflecting current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability. The Group considers various factors,
including production volume and development
plan, the geological structure of the mining
regions, to determine the scope, amount and
timing of reclamation and mine closure works
to be performed. Determination of the effect
of these factors involves judgements from the
Group and the estimated liabilities may turn
out to be different from the actual expenditure
incurred. The discount rate used by the Group
may also be altered to reflect the changes in
the market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the liability, such
as changes of the borrowing rate and inflation
rate in the market. As changes in estimates
occur (such as mine plan revisions, changes
in estimated costs, or changes in timing of the
performance of reclamation activities), revisions
to the obligations will be recognised. As at
31 December 2020, the carrying amount of
accrued reclamation obligations approximately
RMB133,920,000 (2019: RMB124,010,000).
Further details are disclosed in note 29.

Discount rate for lease liability

In determining the discount rate for lease
liabilities, the Group is required to estimate
and determine the discount rate (being the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rates) taking
into account the nature of the underlying assets
and the terms and conditions of the leases at
the commencement date or at the date of initial
application of IFRS 16, as appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT REPORTING
Segment results, assets and liabilities
The Group has two operating and reportable segments

which are the Group’s strategic business units, as
follows:

° Coal business: Coal mining, purchases and
sales, filtering, storage and blending of coal in
the PRC.

o Shipping transportation: Time charter and

voyage charter of vessels.

These strategic business units offer different products
and services, and are managed separately because
they require different technology and marketing
strategies. For each of the strategic business units, the
Chief Executive Officer (the “CEQ”) reviews internal
management reports on a monthly basis.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the CEO
monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable to
each reportable segment on the following basis:

o The measure used for reporting segment profit
is adjusted profit before net finance costs and
income tax expense. Items not specifically
attributable to individual segments, such as
unallocated head office and corporate expenses
are further adjusted.

o Segment assets include all tangible assets,
coal mining rights, right of use assets or lease
prepayments, interest in an associate and
current assets with the exception of other
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include
trade payables, other payables attributable to
activities of the individual segments, accrued
reclamation obligations and borrowings
managed directly by the segments.

o Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments.
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6.

(a)

166

SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

(a)

2 EBEE ()

PEHEE  BEERAEEBE®

No operating segments have been aggregated in RE BN & B /) 7] 3R 0 SR AR G AT
arriving at the reportable segments of the Group. DEEH o
Coal business Shipping transportation Total
RIRER hEES @t
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
“E-BF ZT-NF CBSEFE TN ZBCEE TN
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR

Revenue from external customers ~ 9MEFE P ULE 2,190,112 2,720,845 57,251 78,675 2,247,363 2,799,520
Inter-segment revenue AR - - - - - -
Reportable segment revenue W% A i 2190112 2720845 57251 78675 2247383 2799520
Reportable segment profit/(loss) A& % 2 B AT

before taxation wFl/ (B8) (3,898,160) 316,533 (31,810) (18,444)  (3,929,970) 298,089
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH (468,722)  (529,412) (8,151) (6975  (476,873) (536,387
Net gain on disposal of property, ~ HEWE - BER

plant and equipment RENEFE (92 1,800 @) = (95) 1,800
Impairment losses on property, 0% BEREEL

Plant and equipment HEBE (2,057,757) = (11,495) - (2,069,252) =
Impairment losses on coal BREEEZAERS

mining right (1,869,716) - - - (1,869,716) -
Reversal of impairment losseson BB BB ZRE

trade receivables, net BEADFH 31,736 8,001 - - 31,736 8,001
(Impairment losses)freversal of BN FEREf L

impairment losses on FEZ (REEE)/

prepayments and other BERBEERFE

receivables, net (12,987) 21,544 - - (12,987) 21,544
Recovery of trade and other KEBEHEES

receivables previously written off ~ RE thEWFIE = 7,356 = = = 7,356
Additions to property, plantand ~ AEWE - BER

equipment B 4,117 205,587 7,108 752 48,225 206,339
Reportable segment assets IREIBEE 5519793 9,506,136 256,626 259507 5776419 9,765,643
Reportable segment liabilites ~ THRESHER (7,814,045)  (7,699,230)  (432,935)  (100,707)  (8,246,980)  (7,799,937)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 6. 2B & ()

(b)  Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, (b) HHRESBUWE - BREAERN - BERE

profit before taxation, assets and liabilities

BHH R

Revenue War
2020 2019
—E-EH —TNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREET T
Total of reportable segments revenue Al SRE D 2 4858 2,247,363 2,799,520
Elimination of inter-segment revenue 7 b 2 H i - -
Consolidated revenue REWE 2,247,363 2,799,520
Loss before taxation BB AT ER
2020 2019
—E-%F —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREET T
Total of reportable segments (loss)/profit AR 2 2k F4 Al
before taxation (E518) /= F 42 58 (3,929,970) 298,089
Unallocated head office and corporate RAOBRBRERAFA
expenses s (16,188) (11,018)
Net finance costs BTG AN % 58 (366,840) (291,577)
Consolidated loss before taxation RE R AIEE (4,312,998) (4,506)
Assets BE
2020 2019
—ECEF TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARMBTT
Total of reportable segments assets AlSRE D ELE EERE 5,776,419 9,765,643
Elimination of inter-segment receivables 73 EB E FE W AR 3R 2 9 38 (483,798) (528,082)
Unallocated assets AOEEE 5,304 117,072
Consolidated total assets MEEBERE 5,297,925 9,354,633
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H{ 2 —Z —_TF+_A=+—HILtFE

(b)

(c)

168

SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 6. ZHBE®
Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, (b) TFRESIUE - BREAEF - BEREA
profit before taxation, assets and liabilities (continued) BHHE®
Liabilities EF
2020 2019
—E-%F —hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T
Total of reportable segments liabilities AIFRED I aER 8,246,980 7,799,937
Elimination of inter-segment payables 53 BB [ FE 1 ﬁféxz%ﬁﬁ (564,062) (407,524)
Tax payable FERRLIR 204,933 219,054
Deferred taxation ERET IR 289,093 1,173,673
Unallocated liabilities RKOEEE 17,065 4,229
Consolidated total liabilities meRGERsE 8,194,009 8,789,369
Geographic information (c) EiFEHR

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s total assets
are primarily dominated by assets handling its coal
business and shipping transportation business. The
coal is sold primarily to the PRC domestic customers
and investments in all coal mines are physically
located in the PRC. Therefore, related assets are
almost all located in the PRC. The vessels are primarily
deployed across geographical markets for shipping
transportation throughout the world. As a result, the
directors of the Company consider that it will not be
meaningful to allocate the Group’s assets and their
related capital expenditure to specific geographical
areas. Accordingly, geographical segment information
is only presented for revenue, which is based on the
geographical location of customers.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

Geographic information (continued)

6. ZIEEE®

(c) EEHER®

Revenue from external customers IEBE P W
2020 2019
—E-FF —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
PRC Fh 2,217,289 2,738,204
Other countries EBEIR 30,074 61,316
Total 1B5 2,247,363 2,799,520

Information about major customers

During the year, revenue derived from the following
customers in coal business segment with whom
transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s
revenue are as follows:

(d FRETEEFZEH

REAR - EXZEAREREEB10% 2
ATRREB D HEFKEIAT -

2020 2019

e —F-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBTIT

Customer A ZPA 749,769 777,462
Customer B =FB 286,966 388,895
Customer C EFC 284,854 N/A* A58
Customer D =FD 228,870 N/A* 36 F
Customer E =PFE N/A* 73 F* 402,110

Revenue from relevant customer was less than 10% of the
Group'’s total revenue for the respective year.

REMEMEEFMIREIEAEERFENEK

=IER10% o
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7. REVENUE

170

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by service lines is as follows:

Wz

EZRBEEBERESNE S S AOKED HFA
T

2020 2019
e —F-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARETTT

Sales of coal RixiEE 2,190,112 2,720,845
Charter hire income EeUA 57,251 78,675
2,247,363 2,799,520

Revenue from sales of goods are recognised at a point
in time when the goods are transferred to customers.
The performance obligation is satisfied upon the
delivery of the goods. Revenue from rendering of time
charter services is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the period of each charter. Revenue from rendering
of voyage charter services is recognised over time by
reference to the progress of the voyage charter services
provided by the Group. The performance obligation
is satisfied upon the completion of the voyage charter
services.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES

Hi A - s REE

2020 2019
—g-2F —T-NF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

B E ARBTR ARETTT

Foreign exchange (loss)/gain, net  FEX (EB8E) W5 H 5 (5,974) 404
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of LEMZE - BEREEZ

property, plant and equipment (&18), W= F8E (95) 1,800
Loss on non-substantial modification f& & 3F&E A& 5T K &R

of borrowings (Note 28) (Pff5E28) (194,351) =
Recovery of trade and other B AT 2 EWE S

receivable previously written off R R K EL th B UK BR 5K = 7,356
Government subsidies BiT#HE (i) 43,954 5,792
Insurance claimed BRERRE 8,717 238
Reversal of coal mineral resource B ERiHERE D

compensation - 6,276
Others HAh, 10,615 5,878

(137,134) 07,744

Note: Fsx -

The government subsidies of RMB43,954,000 (2019:
RMB5,792,000) were granted and received/receivable as
financial subsidies on the Group’s business development for
the year ended 31 December 2020 with conditions that the
respective entities would maintain their principal places of
businesses at the designated area for the same year, which
were fulfilled.

(i) BB & AR 43,954,000 (=ZZE— AN
F: AR¥5,792,0007T) B 3% 36 W B FE
WEAREBEBE_Z_FF+-_/=+—
BILEEEBEROMBHE - HEERA
RRAFEFEEZEE M MABRKED
B o
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9.

172

NET FINANCE COSTS

9. FHIBRAFE

2020 2019
—g-%5 -T-hf
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTT
Interest income B U A (2,189) (1,446)
Interest on borrowings EEFE 130,927 133,205
Penalty interest k=N 46,008 23,684
Interest charge on unwinding of discounts  £2ERBh38 2 | BB 2
(note (ii)) (B i) 192,094 181,027
Less: Interest capitalised into property, B E - BEERREFES
plant and equipment (note (i)) B AR B () - (44,893)
Financecosts ... ... .. MR 369,020 293,023
Net finance costs BT PR AR 5 58 366,840 291,577
Notes: B3
(i) No borrowing cost has been capitalised for the year ended 31 (i) BE-Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEE '
December 2020. The borrowing cost have been capitalized at EEENABEERNL - BE-_T—LF+
a rate of 6.83% per annum for the year ended 31 December ZA=T—HIEFE  BEXRKREBRFRE
2019. 6.83% &AL -
(ii) This item represents the unwinding of discount for the following (i) WIEB A A EEFEEBR AT AERNR
liabilities using the effective interest rate: ]
2020 2019
ZB-EF —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TF T ARBETT
Borrowings (note 28) B8 (fizE28) 181,907 171,092
Lease liabilities HEAR 277 390
Accrued reclamation obligations (note 29) TERERE R (H:E29) 9,910 9,545
192,094 181,027

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERAF
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LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 10. WAIEE
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging: BRILBIESES IR T &I8 -
2020 2019
—E-EF ZE—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTIT
Cost of inventories (note (i) FERA (B EE()) 1,143,794 1,588,969
Short-term leases payment REAE SRR 1,376 460
Depreciation of property, plant and Mm% - BEREREITE
equipment 267,143 300,473
Amortisation of coal mining rights B R PR R B
(included in cost of sales) GEAHERA) 205,368 232,463
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 4,362 3,451
Property, plant and equipment written-off ~ ¥13 « = K& R IS
(note 16) (FtzE16) 1,245 2,211
Auditors remuneration Z AN BN &
- audit services - Bk 2,137 2,144
- non-audit services A 700 735
Employee benefit expenses (excluding BEBAFAX(TEFBES
directors and chief executives E&E=1TRAEME
remuneration (note 12)) (B3E12)
— Salaries, allowances and benefits in -Ee  EMEEYEA
kind 370,869 441,424
— Contributions to retirement benefit — RURAEFI T IR
schemes 3,482 23,991
374,351 465,415

Note:

(i) Cost of inventories included approximately RMB750,086,000
(2019: RMB809,371,000) relating to employee benefit
expenses, depreciation of property, plant and equipment and
amortisation of coal mining rights which amounts are also
included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately

above for each of these types of expenses.

o

(i) GFEXRABERESRFAY - WE  BE
R BT E A RE R R EESEARRNLD
AR#750,086,0007C (ZE—NF : ARK
809,371,0007T) * BB ET AR EZ
ERTERIN EXEBFEBRNABRSE -
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11.

174

INCOME TAX CREDIT

11. FBHER

Income tax credit in the consolidated statement of HREZMBARANMSHERE

comprehensive income represents:

2020 2019
e —F-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTIT
Current tax expense BNEAR TE A 2
~ PRC Corporate Income Tax - R EMER 8,408 21,690
— Overprovision of PRC Corporate - BEFEPRCEMSH
Income Tax in prior years (note (iv)) FBEE A (R (iv) = (29,404)
__“HongKongprofittax TEARNGR % :
8,453 (7,714)
Deferred tax (note 19) EIEFIE (FFFE19) (884,581) (77,515)
Income tax credit FisHiEe (876,128) (85,229)

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

INCOME TAX CREDIT (CONTINUED)

11. Fi8HER%E @

Income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the FANMEHEREREES 2EBAK
(loss) before taxation per the consolidated statement of BIBRFLRT (B518) BRI T -
comprehensive income as follows:
2020 2019
—E-EF —NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTIT
Loss before taxation BR T BB 1R (4,312,997) (4,508)
Notional tax expense on profit before KRABATETERTA]
taxation, calculated at the applicable & F B B E BRI X
tax rates (1,075,243) 21,563
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERZABAFIEEEZ
recognized W E 75,236 15,178
Tax effect of expenses non-deductible for AT IR B 2 T FE 5/ &
tax purpose 33,981 20,299
Tax effect of income non-taxable for tax FERTAZ I E
purpose (28,766) (29,670)
Tax effect of temporary difference not RERCERERB BB E
recognized 275,463 171,850
Utilisation of tax loss and deductible BRABAFERER ZNE
temporary difference not recognised in EE R E =R
prior years (156,799) (255,045)
Overprovision of PRC Corporate Income  #EFEF R EATSFH
Tax in prior years FRRRR - (29,404)
Income tax credit FIiS Bl % (876,128) (85,229)
Notes: B3
(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands (i) BERAEHEREBRELZHESNRARE

and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands
(2019: Nil).

(ii) Provision for the Hong Kong Profit Tax was based on the
statutory rate of 16.5% (2019: Nil) of the assessable profit of
subsidiaries which carried on business in Hong Kong.

(iii) Provision for the PRC Corporate Income Tax was based on the
statutory rate of 25% (2019: 25%) of the assessable profits of
subsidiaries which carried on businesses in the PRC.

—E-ZHF3 ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H{ 2 —Z —_TF+_A=+—HILtFE

12.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION

Details of directors’ remuneration are as follows:

12.

EENESTHRAEME

EEMecFBOT

Salaries, Contributions

allowances to
and retirement Share-
benefits benefit based
Directors’ fee in kind schemes Sub-total payments Total
Be ER BUEH NRBH
EZfe  REUEA FHEME Mt BEZAR @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Name of directors EEig ARBTL ARMTR AR%Tn ARETn ARETn ARMTR
For the year ended Et Sl 23
31 December 2020 TZA=t-BLEE
Executive directors yrEs
Mr. Xu Da xRk 1,045 1,647 48 2,740 = 2,740
Mr. Bai Tao (note (i) BE &) 1,045 1,569 48 2,662 = 2,662
Ms. Wang Jianfei THRaT 47 491 2 984 = 984
Mr. Fung Wai Shing (note (iv)) ~ {@RC LA (FIE(v) 933 1,611 16 2,560 = 2,560
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen )i 325 = = 325 = 325
Prof. Sha Zhenquan DIREAE 20 = = 240 = 240
Mr. Jing Dacheng (note (i) N GR() 240 = = 240 = 240
4,299 5318 134 9,751 - 9,751
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 12. EBERBESTBRAEME®
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)
Salaries, Contributions
allowances to
and retirement Share-
benefits benefit based
Directors’ fee in kind schemes Sub-total payments Total
e 24 RINER R A
B2e  REWEA RIS Pt ERZAR @z
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Narme of directors i ARETT ARETRT AR®TR ARETT AREFT ARETR
For the year ended BE-2-NF
31 December 2019 +TZA=t-HLEE
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Xu Da RELE 1,089 1,695 61 2,845 = 2,845
Mr. Bai Tao (note (i)) BER S A (3E() 1089 1854 36 2,979 = 2,979
Ms. Wang Jianfei IRIREL 761 505 21 1,287 = 1,287
Mr. Fung Wai Shing HERLE 1,013 1,596 16 2,625 - 2,625
Independent non-executive BUFHTEE
directors
Mr. Huang Guosheng (note (i) = B 5 4 (£ (i) 65 = = 65 = 65
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen R EAE 331 = = 331 = 331
Prof. Sha Zhenquan DIREHE 240 = = 240 = 240
Mr. Jing Dacheng (note (iil)) AR 764 (BT aE i) 235 = = 235 = 235
4,823 5,650 134 10,607 - 10,607
Notes: Bf5E -
(i) Mr. Bai Tao, an executive director of the Company, is also the (i) ARBPITESFOELENARRATZTSIT
chief executive of the Company. BAE -
(ii) Mr. Huang Guosheng resigned as an independent non- (if) FEBEER_ZT-NFNA=ZBHELR

executive director of the Company on 3 April 2019.

(iif) Mr. Jing Dacheng was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 3 April 2019.

(iv) Mr. Fung Wai Shing resigned as an executive director of the
Company on 5 March 2021.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H{ 2 —Z —_TF+_A=+—HILtFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

There were no amounts paid during the year (2019: Nil)
to the directors in connection with their retirement from
employment with the Group, or inducement to join.

Director’s fee, salaries, allowances and benefits in
kind paid to or for the executive directors are generally
emoluments paid or receivable in respect of those
persons for other services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company.

EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during
the year include three (2019: four) directors of the
Company, details of whose remuneration are set out in
note 12 above. Details of remuneration for the year paid

12.

13.

EERBSTHRAEME®

FA - ARRLEAEFTZMERMERE
B AR BRI AR 2 RIA KA 082 22 R
(ZZ—NEF 8\ -

EXNHTHTEFAATETNESTH
T FE o RUNEDEN-RERZE
ATEERARRBRAKRENEHEBEOHE
fREM N FEREALHZEALER
RS -

ERBUIERITETNIM S BEFIERAN
AR EF AR ARTSAAR -

BERSREEAESHH

1 8 % A

FA - AEELBRSFHIALEER
RAIZ=R(ZFE-NF : HR)EF - K
FZHMFBEEIIR EXME12 - AAE
BESMA(CE-NF  —RB)RSH M

to the remaining two (2019: one) highest paid individual AL 2 HFBOT ¢
of the Group is/are as follows:

2020 2019
—E_TH —ZT—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFIT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ #& -~ EBL R EWEA 2,138 1,358
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes R4 5T 2] ¢4 2 65 51
2,203 1,409

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERAF
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EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Employees’ emoluments (continued)

The emoluments of the two (2019: one) individuals with
the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

BEREREBAEGTM®

EE &M

ME(ZE-NF: —R)ESFHALZ
HE DM

2020 2019

—F°FF —ENF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

HKD BT AE AE
1,000,001-1,500,000 1,000,001-1,500,000 2 -

1,500,001-2,000,000

1,500,001-2,000,000

There were no amounts paid during the year (2019: nil)
to the five highest paid employees in connection with
their retirement from employment with the Group, or
inducement to join.

Senior management’s emoluments

The emoluments of the nine (2019: eleven) senior
managements of the Group who are not directors of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2020 were
within the following bands:

FA - WEAD LR HMMEE S HEM
% B A BIRESR M 2 AR D0
BEB(CET-NEF:E) -

BREEASHMH

BE_ZT_ZF+_A=t—HLEE"
ARENE(CTF-NAF  +—R)RRE
BABLFARAES) ZHM D M0
T

2020 2019

—g-®F —T-NE

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

HKD BT AE AZ
Less than 500,000 500,000 = 1
500,001-1,000,000 500,001-1,000,000 3 4
1,000,001-1,500,000 1,000,001-1,500,000 6 B
1,500,000-2,000,000 1,500,000-2,000,000 - 1

AEBZSREREAE BRI (BE—
FHEESR)(CTE-hF N\L B8F—
FEZIEZNRBTER)/LRAE
F REZHME RERME12

Of the senior management of the Group, seven,
including one director who resigned (2019: eight,
including one director who was appointed and one
director who resigned) were the directors of the
Company, whose emoluments are included in Note 12.
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14. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. SR(EE)BF
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BREXR(EE),BF
The calculations of basic (loss)/earnings per share BREKR(ER),/ BADIERFANLRRF
is based on the (loss)/profit attributable to ordinary TEER ﬁﬁ)\&“ﬁﬁ(}%?@)/m*' M BB
equity shareholders of the Company and the weighted 1T BRI 8G
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year.
The calculations of basic (loss)/earnings per share HE-T-Z i& T-NF+ZA=+
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the —RIEFEARFREBERFTEADBIE
Company for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 15H§§$(E€ﬂﬁ)/§f' JEE=9 PN ¢
2019 respectively are based on the following data: TE
2020 2019
—ECEF —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARET T

(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to RAGIERFEE ABGEA

equity shareholders of the Company (&18) 5 F) (2,901,499) 81,421
Less: Distribution relating to perpetual W AR ERERZ KA
subordinated convertible securities IRB AT AR FE S 2 7K
classified as equity (note 31(c)) (BF5E31(c)) (4,942) (5,208)
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable ARFTEERAR
to ordinary equity shareholders of the (B18),/ BF 2 AT
Company used in calculating basic LRERSAEARGEEN
(loss)/earnings per share (&18) i T (2,906,441) 76,213
Weighted average number of ordinary SEEREAR(ER) BT
shares for the purpose of basic (loss)/ Fir A3 & 38 BN AE 19 81
earnings per share 2,493,413,985 2,493,413,985
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(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED) 14. SR(EE) BR@
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share SR#E(EER), BT
The calculations of diluted (loss)/earnings per share HEZ Tﬁ& —NF+ZA=+
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the —EIJJ:¢F£ZIK 7fé TR A A9 Rl
Company for the years ended 31 December 2020 and Tﬁﬁ%iﬁ%(l@ﬂé!)/@%' ThE AT 8
2019 respectively are based on the following data: FTE
2020 2019
—ECEF —NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARBTT
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable ARFTEERER
to ordinary equity shareholders of the (Eﬁ%)/ﬁf' i /NG|
Company used in calculating basic A=A ABEERN
(loss)/earnings per share (Eﬂﬁ)/mﬁ" (2,906,441) 76,213
Add: Distribution relating to perpetual hn - ﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%%ﬁ?&ZRﬁ
subordinated convertible securities IRRAIRRFE S 2 D
classified as equity (note 31(c)) (Ft3E31(c)) N/A FiE H N/A i
Adjusted (loss)/profit for the year RErEEBREE
attributable to ordinary equity (Eﬂﬁ)/ﬁf' V. N/NC]
shareholders of the Company used in LiRERSAEARGEEN
calculating diluted (loss)/earnings per R (ER), R F
share (2,906,441) 76,213

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of diluted (loss)/
earnings per share

Adjustments for calculation of diluted (loss)/ #tz
earnings per share:

Perpetual subordinated convertible
securities

AESREE (BB, BT
P AR & S A D0 25 85

2,493,413,985 2,493,413,985

B SRR, BT
g%
AR TR

N/A 38 A N/A 35

Adjusted weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purpose of diluted
(loss)/earnings per share

Fi8

AESREE (BB, BT
AT B R AR A TR e

2,493,413,985 2,493,413,985
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H{ 2 —Z —_TF+_A=+—HILtFE

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED) 14. SR(EE) BR@
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share (continued) SREE(ER), B @
For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the HE_T-_FTFR-_F-—NFT+ZA= ‘f’
computation of diluted (loss)/earnings per share has not —HBIEFE  ARBEBEERE LR
assumed the exercise of the Company’s outstanding FEEREE_T_TFR-_F— 71¢+
share options since the adjusted exercise prices of ZA=+t—HLEFESTHERKRN ZFH
these options were higher than the average market e STEEREE(EBR) BT ER
prices of shares for the outstanding period during the BREAR R 2 RITEEAREEITE o
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.
The calculation of diluted (loss)/earnings per share for AEHE T _EFR-F-NF+A
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 has not =+—HIFESRES (BB BAK
been taken into account of the potential ordinary shares A & 2 FBOK AR AR AT R IR R H 0 B B
on perpetual subordinated convertible securities as IR RERRRIRR G S G IREER
assumed conversion would result in a decrease in loss S FRABFIIE A o
per share or an increase in earnings per share.
COAL MINING RIGHTS 15.  HREREE

RMB’000

AR®TR
Cost R
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019, RZZE—-—hF—A—H "
31 December 2020 —hWE+=A=+—8"
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, —E-FET_ASTOH 4776872
Accumulated amortisation and Rt EHERREESER
impairment losses

At 1 January 2019 RZE—hFE—A—H (526,525)
Charge for the year F R (232,463)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—-NFE+ZA=+—H (758,988)
Charge for the year F R (205,368)
Impairment for the year FARE (1,869,716)
At 31 December 2020 RZE-TF+_A=+—H (2,834,072)
Net carrying amounts EEE‘E{E
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE_ZTF+_A=+—H 1,942,800
At 31 December 2019 R-_E-NF+-HA=+—H 4,017,884

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

COAL MINING RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

The balance represents the rights to conduct mining
activities in Shanxi Province. All the mine sites are
located on lands in the PRC to which the Group has no
formal title of ownership, hence none of the carrying
amount of right-of-use assets/lease prepayments (see
note 17) relate to these lands. The Department of Land
Resources of Shanxi Province issued and renewed
several mining rights certificates to the Group. Details of
the Group’s coal mining rights are as follows:

Coal mining rights Expiry date
Xingtao Coal Mine
Fengxi Coal Mine
Chongsheng Coal Mine
Xinglong Coal Mine
Hongyuan Coal Mine

15 September 2022
24 January 2034

09 December 2022
29 November 2019
28 December 2020

During the production in late 2020, the mining team
of the Group had doubted that the coal reserves of
all the Group’s coal mines might be less than the
previously estimated amounts in accordance with
Australasian Code for Reporting of Exploration Results,
Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves (the “JORC
Code”). The directors of the Company are of the view
that the reasons for the changes in estimates were
due to revision of modifying factors including mining,
economic, legal, environment, and governmental
factors.

The directors of the Company then appointed a
competent person, namely SRK Consulting China Ltd
(“SRK Consulting”), to re-assess the coal reserves of
all the Group’s coal mines as at 31 December 2020
under JORC Code. Based on the competent person
report (the “CPR”) issued by SRK Consulting in 2021,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
estimated amounts of the coal reserves are required to
be adjusted downward.

15.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H{ 2 —Z —_TF+_A=+—HILtFE

COAL MINING RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

With the abovementioned facts and circumstances, the
directors of the Company, with the assistance from an
independent professional qualified valuer, namely BMI
Appraisals Limited, to assess the recoverable amounts
of the Group’s coal mines and related property, plant
and equipment. Each of the Group’s coal mines and the
related property, plant and equipment are considered
as an individual cash-generating unit. The recoverable
amount of each of the cash-generating unit was
estimated based on its value in use calculation which
uses cash flow projections based on the most recent
financial budgets approved by the directors of the
Company covering a five-year period, and discount
rates ranging from 13.75% to 20.14% (2019: 13.10%
to 14.60%), which were determined with reference to
weighted average cost of capital, and the available coal
reserves of approximately 57.97 million tonnes (2019:
207.28 million tonnes), according to the report issued
by SRK Consulting, which comprise of approximately
17.09 million tonnes (2019: 65.62 million tonnes) in
Xingtao Coal Mine, approximately 8.86 million tonnes
(2019: 36.18 million tonnes) in Fengxi Coal Mine,
approximately 8.06 million tonnes (2019: 42.17 million
tonnes) in Chongsheng Coal Mine, approximately 13.50
million tonnes (2019: 32.02 million tonnes) in Xinglong
Coal Mine and approximately 10.46 million tonnes
(2019: 31.29 million tonnes) in Hongyuan Coal Mine,
together with other key inputs including the estimated
coal prices and production costs etc.. The discounted
cash flow method under the income approach was
adopted for the year ended 31 December 2020 and
2019. Cash flows beyond the five-year period have
been extrapolated using an estimated 2.22% (2019:
2.28%) growth rate which is the forecasted inflation rate
in China and do not exceed the average growth rate
for the relevant markets. The basis of discount rates,
growth rate and discounted cash flow method were
consistently applied for the year ended 31 December
2020 and 2019. With the assistance from SRK
Consulting and BMI Appraisals Limited, the directors of
the Company concluded that the estimated recoverable
amount of each of the following cash-generating units
as at 31 December 2020 was below the respective
carrying amount of the cash-generating unit. As a
result, impairment losses on the Group’s coal mining
rights and the related property, plant and equipment,
amounting to approximately RMB1,869,716,000 and
RMB2,057,757,000 were recognised for the year ended
31 December 2020 to reflect the Group’s change in
estimate about the coal reserves.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

COAL MINING RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

The recoverable amounts of coal mining rights and
property, plant and equipment had been allocated as

15. BREEE®

DEERRERBEERLDE - BELREN

A EERERNT

follows:
As at 31 December 2020
R=Z=-BF+t=-A=1+—-H
Recoverable
Recoverable amount
amount allocated
Pre-tax Recoverable allocated to to property,
discount amount of coal mining plant and
rate of CGU CGU rights  equipment
IEE
ReEE HeELE TWME  UE - BE
BRI Bf BrEEERN ET
BABRE ATKRESE ThE2E ARESE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®BTT AR%¥TR
(Note 16)
CGU ReELER GEAD)
Xingtao Coal Mine L) o 20.14% 1,404,452 969,810 434,642
Fengxi Coal Mine iR 19.15% 988,593 390,952 597,641
Chongsheng Coal Mine SH R 13.75% 734,622 276,632 457,990
Xinglong Coal Mine R 14.61% 453,032 224,539 228,493
Hongyuan Coal Mine RERETE 13.89% 581,134 80,867 500,267
4,161,833 1,942,800 2,219,033
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COAL MINING RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

PR R RE ()

As at 31 December 2020
R-E-EF+=-A=+—H

Impairment

Impairment losses

losses allocated to

allocated to property,

coal mining plant and

rights equipment

TBE

PEE W - BE

BRI ERIE R RBHEH

WERE WEEE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARBT T

(Note 16)

CGU ReEEEN (fi5E16)
Xingtao Coal Mine £ i) 1 950,075 425,344
Fengxi Coal Mine pipisp LR 296,141 452,705
Chongsheng Coal Mine SHEE 400,802 662,700
Xinglong Coal Mine FE IR 166,485 169,417
Hongyuan Coal Mine RiR R 56,213 347,591
1,869,716 2,057,757

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

COAL MINING RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of the coal mining right and
related property, plant and equipment of each of
the Group’s coal mines as at 31 December 2020 is
equivalent to the respective recoverable amounts as
disclosed in above tables.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s coal mining
rights with net carrying amount of approximately
RMB1,942,800,000 (2019: RMB4,017,884,000) were
pledged for the Group’s borrowings (Note 28).

In respect of the expiry of coal mining rights of Xinglong
Coal Mine and Hongyuan Coal Mine, the directors of
the Company are of the opinion that the renewal of
mining rights certificates by the relevant government
authorities is highly probable as the Group submits
the relevant regulation documents and fully settle
the mineral exploration and mining right expense,
and also of the opinion that the renewal of the mining
rights certificates can be completed at minimal cost.
In addition, with reference to the legal opinion from an
external lawyer engaged by the Group, the Group will
be able to continuously renew the mining rights and the
business licenses of the respective mining subsidiaries
at minimal charges.

15.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y% BERRME
Electronic Assets
Plant and and other Motor Mining under
buildings ~ Machinery equipment  vehicles  Vessels  structures construction Total
BER 7R bt |
B BE  EHRE i Eh BEH  HREE Eh
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBI0OO  RMBIO0
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETRT ARETR
Cost A
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A—-B 1115627 1,196,153 53123 234708 491534 2015085 1208846 6315076
Addtions TE 15,067 64,240 1,092 20841 = 13,901 89198 206339
Transfer a5 12,988 19,239 2272 = - 129859 (164358) =
Disposals e - = = (5943)  (217554) = - (023497)
Written-off s = (1503) (1484 (1.416) = = = (4,403)
Exchange differences ERER 15 = = 69 7739 = = 7823
At 31 December 2019 RIZ-NE
+-A=t-H 1143697 1278129 55003 250259 281719 2158845 1133686 6,301,338
Addtions TE 7231 26,685 572 928 6,982 = 5827 48225
Transfer B 101 = = = = = (101) =
Disposals & - - n) (314) = = = (586)
Written-off ik = = (263) = = (1,168) = (1431)
Exchange differences EREE (75) (65) %) (266)  (15,981) = - (16391)
At 31 December 2020 RZZZEF
t-A=t-H 1150954 1,304,749 55036 250607 272720 2157677 1139412 6331155
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE
At 1 January 2019 RIZ-NE-A—B  (20141)  (369017)  (4225%8)  (121914)  (312551)  (246,048) - (1521929)
Charge for the year FhiTE (45.215)  (106931)  (3847)  (17940)  (4383)  (122,097) - (300473)
Disposals i = = = 3561 189,697 = - 193258
Written-off ik = = 853 1339 = = = 2192
Exchange differences EREE 9) = = (34) (5,228) = = (5,271)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE
+-B=t-H (275425)  (675,948)  (45250)  (134988)  (132465)  (368,145) - (1632223)
Charge for the year ERfiE (45670)  (83,718) (2518)  (20440) (5675  (109,122) - (267143)
Impairment losses (note 15) HEBEIE1) (312936)  (141453) (5687)  (10727)  (11495) (1,113866)  (473,088) (2,089.252)
Disposals & = = 258 27 = = = 465
Written-off ik = = 186 = = = = 186
Exchange differences ERER 48 = = 188 8262 = = 8498
At 31 December 2020 RZZ_ZF
+-A=1-H (633,983)  (01,119)  (53013)  (165760)  (141.373) (1591,133)  (473,088) (3959,469)
Net carrying amounts RERE
At 31 December 2020 RZEZEE
+-B=1+-H 516971 403630 2023 84847 131347 566544 666,324 2,371,686
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE
+-B=1-H 868272 602,181 9751 115271 149254 1790700 1133686 4,669,115

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

The Group does not have the title certificates for certain
items of plant and buildings with an aggregate net
carrying amount of approximately RMB498,700,000 as
at 31 December 2020 (2019: RMB848,405,000). The
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
Group is entitled to lawfully and validly occupy and
use the above mentioned properties and therefore the
aforesaid matter does not affect the ownership rights
of the Group over these assets and hence did not have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial position
as at 31 December 2020.

As described in note 15, the directors of the Company
estimated the recoverable amounts of each of the cash-
generating units to which coal mining rights and related
property, plant and equipment have been allocated. As
a result, impairment losses on the Group’s coal mining
rights and the related property, plant and equipment,
amounting to approximately RMB1,869,716,000 (see
Note 15) and RMB2,057,757,000 were recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2020 to reflect the
Group’s change in estimate about the coal reserves.

16.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H{ 2 —Z —_TF+_A=+—HILtFE

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y% BERSZHE®@
(CONTINUED)
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group HE-Z-_ZEF+-_A=1T—RHILFE"
conducted a review of the Group’s assets in relation AEBEBITASEEEMESFME
to the shipping segment and determined that the E - UREAETEENTKE SR (IRE
recoverable amount of certain asset which is based AREREERAFTE)RANEEREE -
on the fair value less cost of disposal are lower than its Hit EEEERRAEEEARE
carrying amount and accordingly, impairment loss of 11,495,0007T °
RMB11,495,000 had been recognised in respect of the
such asset.
The Group’s property, plant and equipment with net REBREFELN ARKES90,361,0007T
carrying amount of approximately RMB590,361,000 (ZZ—N%F : AR®1,017,438,0007T) &Y
(2019: RMB1,017,438,000) were pledged for the ME - WE REHEEERUESEE (T
Group’s borrowings (note 28), as follows: 28) ' MAIRAT/R ¢
2020 2019
—ECEF —hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Plant and buildings BB KRBT 157,782 165,690
Machinery a3 49,968 153,905
Electronic and other equipment BF RHAR 425 1,638
Motor Vehicles HE 8,722 25,896
Vessels =0 103,686 125,839
Mining structures RUBIEEEY) 269,778 544,470
590,361 1,017,438

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE 17. EREEE HERANGRE
PREPAYMENTS
Right-of-use assets ERAREE
Leasehold Office
lands* buildings Total
HE L WAOBF st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETFTT ARBET T
At 31 December 2019 T—NF
+=—A=+—H
Carrying amount BRTHEE 4,653 6,175 10,828
At 31 December 2020 RZEZTF
+=ZA=+—H”
Carrying amount IREE 4,513 4,705 9,218
For the year ended HEZZT—NF
31 December 2019 +=-A=+—H
IEFE
Depreciation charge WEER (140) (8,311) (3,451)
For the year ended HE-T-TF
31 December 2020 +=-B=+—8
IEFE
Depreciation charge WEER (140) (4,222) (4,362)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H{ 2 —Z —_TF+_A=+—HILtFE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE 17. FRAREE HERMNRE®
PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Right-of-use assets (continued) FRAEEE®
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTT

Expense relating to short-term leases Ha5E B & R AR 1218 A A A
and other leases with lease terms end Hi B ER MR
within 12 months 1,376 460
Total cash outflow for leases MER SR BT (5,988) (4,840)
Additions to right-of-use assets NEFHEEE 2,752 2,248
Being land use rights are located in the PRC for the Group’s * B ZNER B B R A AP B B - s FR A o
own use.
For both years, the Group leases various offices for its RAEEE  ~rEeEBELERA=ZAR
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed B . HEANNBEEMRE1E3EI] T o
terms of 1 year to 3 years. Lease terms are negotiated S EH RIS L BiELE
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of TRIEZ RIS o RETHE R TG a]
different terms and conditions. In determining the lease BOHENEER  AEERERALONTE
terms and assessing the length of the non-cancellable FEVWE T A L ARSI ITHHARS -

periods, the Group applies the definition of a contract
and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. R—EBE QT zER
2020 2019
—ECEF —E—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Unlisted investment: ELETIRE -
Unlisted shares, at cost IEET - HREANE 49,000 49,000
Share of post-acquisition loss and SMElEEEEREMEE
other comprehensive loss [Ei8 (2,433) (2,433)
Impairment loss BEEE (46,567) (46,567)

TRESIAEE - HHEAAN -2 F
FRB—NEREIROE -

The following list contains the particulars of the Group’s
associate at the end of the reporting period of 2020 and
2019:

Proportion of ownership interest

BRERSL
Principal
Group’s Held Held activities
Place of effective by the bya and place of
Name of associate establishment interest Company  subsidiary operation
iy 3L | NG| MEAR FEER
BENR AR R 3L 3t B BRER "8 BE REEHH
Tongmei Qinfa (Zhuhai) Holdings PRC 49% - 49%  Sales of coal in
Co, Ltd. (“Tongmei Qinfa”) (2019: 49%) (2019: 49%) the PRC
RIERE GRS ERER QA 5 49% - 49% RIRHETE
(TRIKRE]) (ZB-NhF: (ZZB-hF
49%) 49%)

Tongmei Qinfa sells coal in the PRC and is a strategic
partnership for the Group for its coal business.

FIRRBERFBEHERK A RRNEERX
REBTENEESERH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H{ 2 —Z —_TF+_A=+—HILtFE

18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)

The Group had discontinued recognition of its share
of losses of Tongmei Qinfa since the year ended 31
December 2016 because its cumulative share of losses
in the associate had exceeded its investment cost
less accumulated impairment losses. The amounts of
unrecognised shares of the associate, extracted from
the relevant management accounts of the associate,
both for year and cumulatively, are as follows:

18.

R—EBE QT 2B @)

AEEEBBE_T—A"FT-_A=1—
BLEEERLEREDIERARRES
1B DTHRERBE AR RERGREE
EBRBEREXRARRFIRERR - Hik
BHE QA RMERERRE 2 ANFE MR
DIEBE AR SBEARERLALT ¢

2020 2019
—g-8F —B2-N%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETT

Unrecognised share of loss/(profit) of an ~ ZNF[E 5 {h — & 2 7
associate for the year B8,/ CaF) AR RIS 18,414 (449)
Accumulated unrecognised share of loss of 25t {h —FEH & A FE 1R
an associate REERE D 44,004 25,590
19. DEFERRED TAXATION 19. EEFIE
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated RREEMBRAKXZINENME - &
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax TFREEHBEERBBEDIERIE - U T A
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is MBS BT S AR IBA R 5
the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial o
reporting purposes:
2020 2019
—E-TF —ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARBTT
Deferred tax assets BIETIEE E 4,094 374
Deferred tax liabilities EREIBEEE (293,187) (1,174,048)

(289,093) (1,173,674)
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mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED) 19. EEBE®)
The following are the major deferred tax assets NTEARAFERBTFEERRNEE
(liabilities) recognised and the movements thereon BEEHIBEEE BB REE
during the current and prior years:
Depreciation
allowances
Revaluation in excess of
Impairment Revaluation surplus  the related
allowance arising  arising from  depreciation
of trade Sales from loan business and
receivables Cut-off restructuring combinations  amortisation Total
BZEN £ byl
HED BEAR EXE4 EEh  HERESH
BERE By  EENMEfR EffER  HAERG @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR ARETT ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
At 1 January 2019 R=E-NE-A-H 9,137 - (116,571) (966,145) (177,610) (1,251,189)
(Charged)/credit for the year En@) /e (8,763) (65,829) 42773 62,006 47328 77515
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE
+-A=t-H 374 (65,829) (73,798) (904,139) (130282)  (1,173,674)
Credit for the year FRES 3,720 30,778 8,975 771,757 69,351 884,581
At 31 December 2020 R-B_%%F
+ZA=1+-H 4,094 (35,051) (64,823) (132,382) (60,931) (289,093)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
unused tax losses of RMB466,092,000 (2019:
RMB837,933,000) available for offset against future
profits and has deductible temporary differences
of RMB1,101,852,000 (2019: RMB344,055,000). No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
the tax losses and the deductible temporary differences
due to the unpredictability of future profit stream. The
tax loss will expire within five years.

ZE-ZFFH ANNUAL REPORT 2020

RBEHR  AEEHSRERAHEE
B AR 466,092,000 (= E—NF :
AR #837,933,0007T) @ a] AR K S8 K
RoaF - RESAHHTREREARE
1,101,852,000C(ZE—NF : AR¥
344,055,0007T) ° BLESLFIEE B K A0
RENEZERRELCHBEE - THRA
FmFRmA T TR - BRIEEIEE R A
FREIE -
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

20.

As at 31 December 2020, the Company has direct
and indirect interests in the subsidiaries, all of which
are private companies. The particulars of the major
subsidiaries are set out below:

RHEBRRZRE

RZZ_ZFEF+_A=+—8  ARAR
THIMEARRAEER kEEES - 1A
MBRBHRLARE - ZEXZEMBL
ARSI T -

Proportion of ownership interest

ERERLLA
Place of Issuedand  Principal activities
establishment/ Group’s Held by Held by fully paid-up/ and place of
Name of company incorporation effective interest The Company subsidiaries registered capital operation
R/ A%H HEAT HNELR 2R IEEBR
AAER Ry ERER 2] 2] BR/EREs EEHY
Qinfa Investment Limited British Virgin 100% 100% - USD4,801/  Investment holding
(“Qinfa Investment’) Islands (2019: 100%) (2019: 100%) USD50,000 in the PRC
FURERRAR(RERE) ABRAES 100% 100% - 4801% 7/ RERR
(ZE-AE100%)  (ZF-NF :100%) 50000%7 hE
Hong Kong Qinfa International Trading ~ Hong Kong 100% - 100% HKD689,635,000/ Sales of coal and
(2019: 100%) (2019: 100%) N/A investment holding
in the PRC
BAREERESERAT B 100% - 100% 6896350008/ BRHERKARR
(ZF-NE 100%) (ZF-NE 100%) iR hE
Qinhuangdao Development Zone Qinfa The PRC 100% - 100% RMB68,000,000/ Sales of coal
Trading Co., Ltd. (i) (2019: 100%) (2019: 100%) RMBE8,000,000 in the PRC
REERERREEHARAA) HEl 100% - 100%  AR%68,000,0007T/ RIRHE
(ZT-NF:100%) (ZZ-NE:100%)  ARS68,0000007 hE
Zhuhai Qinfa Trading Co., Ltd. (i) The PRC 100% - 100% RMB5,000,000/ Sales of coal
(2019: 100%) (2019: 100%) RMB5,000,000 in the PRC
KEEEBSERAR() i 100% = 100%  AKH5,000,000T,/ BR#E
(ZB-NE: 100%) (ZE-NE100%  ARHS50000007 k7
Zhuhai Qinfa Logistics Co., Ltd. (i) The PRC 100% - 100% HKD315,000,000/ Sales of coal
(2019: 100%) (2019: 100%) HKD315,000,000 in the PRC
WAREMRARAH() i 100% = 100% 31500000087,/ EREE
(ZB-NE < 100%) (ZB-NE < 100%) 315,000,007 hEl
Shuozhou Guangfa Energy Co., Ltd. (i) The PRC 100% - 100% RMB10,000,000/  Investment holding
(“Shuozhou Guangfa”) (2019: 100%) (2019: 100%) RMB10,000,000 in the PRC
PmEEERREBRAR() e 100% - 100%  AR%10000,0007/ REZK
(MAMES) (22N 100%) (ZZ-nF:100%)  ARE100000007 hE
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 20. MMERATRZRE®

Proportion of ownership interest

ERERLLA

Place of Issuedand  Principal activities

establishment/ Group’s Held by Held by fully paid-up/ and place of

Name of company incorporation effective interest The Company subsidiaries registered capital operation

R/ A5H HEAT HNEAR 2R IEXBR

AAER R ERER 2] 2] MR/HEREs EERY

Shanxi Huameiao Energy Group The PRC 100% - 100% RMB300,000,000/  Investment holding

Co., Ltd. (i) (‘*Huameiao Energy’) (2019:100%) (2019: 100%) RMB300,000,000 in the PRC

WEEXREREEERAA() hEl 100% - 100%  AR300,000,0007T,/ REERK

(E=3:521) (ZF-NE 100%) (ZZ-NE :100%)  ARH 3000000007 hE

Shanxi Shuozhou Pinglu District The PRC 80% - 100% RMB129,590,000/ Coal mining and

Huameiao Xingtao Coal Ca., Ltd. (i) (2019: 80%) (2019: 100%) RMB129,590,000  operation in the PRC
(“Xingtao Coal")

WEANTEREXRERES hEl 80% - 100% ARE129590,0007/ RRARREE

ERAR) (BEES) (ZZ-NE:80%) (ZE-NF:100%  AKE1295900007 i

Shanxi Shuozhou Pinglu District The PRC 80% - 100% RMB32,000,000/ Coal mining and

Huameiao Fengxi Coal Co., Ltd. (i) (2019: 80%) (2019: 100%) RMB32,000,000  operation in the PRC

(“Fengxi Coal")

LERNTEREXZERES i 80% = 100%  AK32,000,0007,/ RRERREE
BRAR() (EEEE)) (ZZ-NF 1 80%) (ZE-NF100%  ARE320000007 i
Shanxi Shuozhou Pinglu District The PRC 80% = 100%  RMB107,290,000/ Coal mining and
Huameiao Chongsheng Coal Co., (2019: 80%) (2019: 100%) RMB107,290,000  operation in the PRC
Ltd. (i) (‘Chongsheng Coal")
LERNTEREZRSAES e 80% = 100% AE107,290,0007/ REARREE
ERDF() (£HEE) (ZE-NF 1 80%) (ZE-NF100%)  ARE107,200007 il
Xinglong Coal (i) The PRC 80% - 100% RMB100,000,000/ Coal mining and
(2019 80%) (2019; 100%) RMB100,000,000  operation in the PRC
BERL() HE 80% = 100% AR %100,000,0007,/ BrARREE
(Z2-NF : 80%) (ZE-NF100%  ARS100,0000007 hE
Hongyuan Coal (i) The PRC 100% - 100% RMB100,000,000/ Coal mining and
(2019: 100%) (2019 100%) RMB100,000000  operation in the PRC
TRE() HE 100% = 100% AR 100,000,0007,/ BRARREE
(ZE-NF 1 100%) (ZZ-NE100%)  AEE100,0000007C RE

—E-ZHF3 ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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20.

198

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 20.

KRB AR ZERE @)

Proportion of ownership interest

FRERTILA
Place of Issuedand  Principal activities
establishment/ Group’s Held by Held by fully paid-up/ and place of
Name of company incorporation effective interest The Company subsidiaries registered capital operation
R/ A%H HEAT i) A BRR IEXBR
ARER R ERER 2} 52} BR/EREs EERY
Super Grace Enterprises Limited British Virgin 100% - 100% USD50,000/  Goods transport and
(“Super Grace”) Islands (2019: 100%) (2019: 100%) USD50,000  logistics, and charter
hire in worldwide
Super Grace Enterprises Limited RERAES 100% = 100% 5000057/ ERESRMT
(Super Grace)) (ZB-NE < 100%) (ZB-NE < 100%) 5000070 HREMTEE
g3
Oriental Wise Group Limited British Virgin 100% - 100% USD1/ Goods transport and
(“Oriental Wise") Islands (2019:100%) (2019:100%) USD50,000  logistics, and charter
hire in worldwide
Oriental Wise Group Limited ABRAES 100% = 100% %1/ HRERRIR
([Oriental Wise]) (ZB-NE + 100%) (22N £ 100%) 50000%7C HREMHES
S
Qinfa Shipping Group Limited British Virgin 100% - 100% USD1/ Goods transport and
Islands (2019: 100%) (2019: 100%) USD50,000  logistics, and charter
hire in worldwide
Qinfa Shipping Group Limited EBRAEE 100% = 100% 1%/ ARERRIR
(25N 100%) (Z5-N%F 1 100%) 50,000% HRERHE
g4
Hong Kong Qinfa Shipping Limited Hong Kong 100% 100% HKD10,000/  Goods transport and
(2019: 100%) (2019: 100%) N/A~ logistics, and charter
hire in worldwide
BERLMERRAR &% 100% - 100% 10,0007,/ BnEH IR
(22N < 100%) (ZB-NE < 100%) 0l HREHEE
2
Perpetual Goodluck Limited Hong Kong 100% - 100% HKD1,000/  Goods transport and
(2019: 100%) (2019: 100%) N/A~ logistics, and charter
hire in the PRC
Perpetual Goodluck Limited &% 100% = 100% 1,007,/ BRESRIR
(ZZ-NE : 100%) (ZZ-NE - 100%) oy ili NREMEE
G
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mEMBHRRNE
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 20. AMBARZERE®

Proportion of ownership interest

FRERRILA
Place of Issuedand  Principal activities
establishment/ Group’s Held by Held by fully paid-up/ and place of
Name of company incorporation effective interest The Company subsidiaries registered capital operation
R/ KEE HEAT HNELT BRR IEXBR
ARER R ERER 2] 2] MR/HEREs EEHE
Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping Co., Ltd.(i) The PRC 100% - 100% RMBS5,000,000/  Goods transport and
(2019:100%) (2019: 100%) RMB100,000,000  logistics, and charter
hire in the PRC
FEREMEARAR() e 100% - 100%  AR5,000,0007,/ BRES RN
(ZB-NE < 100%) (Z2-NE:100%)  ARH1000000007 HREMHTEE
HE
Ordos City Lianhang Trading The PRC 100% - 100% RMB1,000,000/ Sales of coal
Co., Ltd. (i) (2019: 100%) (2019: 100%) RMB1,000,000 in the PRC
IREETERTESERAA) # 100% - 100%  ARH#1,000,0007,/ FiRiE
(22N < 100%) (ZB-NE:100%)  ARH10000007T hEl
Qingdao Qinfa Energy Ltd. (i) The PRC 100% - 100% RMB100,000,000/ Sales of coal
(2019: 100%) (2019: 100%) RMB100,000,000 in the PRC
ERRRHRARLA() HE 100% = 100%  AK%100,000,0007/ Eras
(ZT-NF : 100%) (ZT-NF:100%)  AR1000000007 hEl
Qingdao Qinfa Material Supply Ltd. (i) The PRC 100% - 100% NIA/ Sales of machine
(2019: 100%) (2019: 100%) RMB50,000,000  materials in the PRC
BEEREMALERRAA) hEl 100% - 100% AaR/ HERMH
(ZB-NE < 100%) (ZB-NE:100%)  ARHS500000007 hEl
Qingdao Qinfa Changsheng Equipment The PRC 100% - 100% N/A/ Machine Repairing
Maintenance Ltd. (i) (2019: 100%) (2019: 100%) RMBS5,000,000 in the PRC
EERUEHFBRERRAA() hEl 100% - 100% TER/ BhsE
(Z5-NF 1 100%) (ZE-NE00%  ARES000000T hE
Qinfa Overseas Investment Limited Hong Kong 100% - 100% HKD10,000/  Investment holding
(2019: 100%) (2019: 100%) N/A in Indonesia
RUBIMERRAR &% 100% a 100% 10,0007,/ REZRK
(ZB-NE < 100%) (ZB-NE < 100%) il i
PT. Qinfa Mining Industri Indonesia 100% - 100% NA/ Coal mining and
(2019: 100%) (2019: 100%) USD1,000,000  operation in Indonesia
PT. Qinfa Mining Industri ol 100% = 100% NaR/ FrARkEE
(22N < 100%) (ZZ-NE £ 100%) 1,000,000 e
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HiE —Z —

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

ZE+-_A=+—HILFE

20.

KRB AR ZERE @)

Proportion of ownership interest

FRERTILA
Place of Issuedand  Principal activities
establishment/ Group’s Held by Held by fully paid-up/ and place of
Name of company incorporation effective interest The Company subsidiaries registered capital operation
R/ A58 HAAR HNELT BRR IERBR
ARER R EREL oL oL #R/aMEx EEHE
Shanxi Qinfa Changsheng Equipment The PRC 100% - 100% RMB5,000,000/ Sales of machine
Maintenance Co., Ltd. (2019: 100%) (2019: 100%) RMBS5,000,000 Inthe PRC
LBREEEREAERRAT hEl 100% - 100%  ARH5,000,000T/ RIEE
(ZE-NE 100%) (ZB-NE:100%  ARE50000007 i

(i) These entities were established in the PRC as domestic
companies.

(ii) These entities were established in the PRC as wholly foreign-
owned enterprises.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group’s
borrowings are secured by the Group’s equity interest
in Huameiao Energy, Xingtao Coal, Fengxi Coal,
Chongsheng Coal, Xinglong Coal, Hongyuan Coal,
Shuozhou Guangfa, Super Grace and Oriental Wise
(note 28). As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
borrowings of Tongmei Qinfa, an associate of the
Group, are secured by the Group’s equity interest in
Yangyuan Guotong Coal Trading and Transportation
Co., Ltd (Yangyuan Guotong, which is a subsidiary
within the Group). As at 31 December 2020, the
carrying amount of net assets of Yangyuan Guotong
before any inter-company elimination amounted to
approximately RMB21,827,000 (2019: RMB21,719,000).

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERAF

(i) ZEEBANT B EBERE

ERIHEER B N EBFREEEK
EAFEIBRASEEEFEEERD
MARFINBAR - EFERA - WHIHE

B ARMNEN  BEERBERTT
£ o
R-B_ZTFER-_F-NAF+A=1—

ShE $;‘%l2%1§&ﬂ$%lﬁé$%£&ﬁa
R EfREE - OFEE  RAEE
FEE R - RREE - WINEZ - Super
Grace&OnentaI Wise B i% A 25 1E L 3
(FizF28) e RZZEZEFR_Z—NEF+
:HE+—E AEE—EBE NG RE
EENEERAEERAEERBR
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EZEREEHARK21827,000T (=T —
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 20. AMBARZERE®
None of the subsidiaries has issued any debt securities R B A RN FARD BITEMES ©
at the end of the year.
The following tables list out the financial information TR EPHEE  EHENETIEE
relating to Xingtao Coal, Fengxi Coal and Chongsheng (RRTEHEBERIEERER ([FEERE
Coal, subsidiaries of the Company which have material w=DHWBRRDEENMBEER - L2
non-controlling interest (“NCI”). The summarised B AR EREHEMNARIMERIS
financial information presented below represents the ATHY £ 58 o
amounts before any inter-company elimination.
Xingtao Coal o [ 4 2
2020 2019
—EC2H —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBTT
As at 31 December R+=-—A=+-—H
NCI percentage FEZE e i 2 b 151 20% 20%
Non-current assets FRBEE 3,140,861 4,029,104
Current assets RBEE 2,742,114 2,691,666
Current liabilities mENBE (3,749,582) (3,688,418)
Non-current liabilities EmEaE (630,910) (618,731)
Net assets BEFHE 1,502,483 2,413,621
Carrying amount of NCI IR R EE 300,497 482 724
During the year ended 31 December BE+T-A=+—HLEFE
Revenue U %5 373,597 471,652
Impairment loss on property, plant and W - BB REERE
equipment 18 229,214 =
Impairment loss on coal mining rights IR IRTERE 2 B R R 514,747 =
Impairment loss on CIP ERIRZAEER 1,236 -
Loss and total comprehensive expense FABEREZEMAS 25
for the year (911,135) (51,939)
Loss and total comprehensive expenses DBl & FEIEARAE R A E 1B I
allocated to NCI 2EBAZEE (182,227) (10,388)
Cash flows (used in)/generated from e R (FTA) SR &
operating activities mE (11,519) 95,025
Cash flows used in investing activities "EESFARERE (22,595) (48,151)
Cash flows from/(used in) mEFBAE (FTRA)BRE
financing activities mE 35,470 (47,871)

—E-TEEH
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 20. PAHMEARZRE®
Fengxi Coal BT EE
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTT
As at 31 December R+=—B=+—8
NCI percentage FEVE AR 25t 151 20% 20%
Non-current assets FEMBEE 1,430,283 1,892,405
Current assets MENEE 168,682 180,408
Current liabilities mENBE (658,965) (798,481)
Non-current liabilities EmEaE (241,824) (258,751)
Net assets BEFE 698,176 1,015,581
Carrying amount of NCI JEIERR A S BRI (E 139,635 203,116
During the year ended 31 December BE+=-A=+—HLEE
Revenue Was 331,148 432,759
Impairment loss on property, plant and WE - BB R RE
equipment 518 185,687 =
Impairment loss on coal mining rights B ERIERE 2 BB &R 121,469 =
Loss/profit and total comprehensive FAREEwHEEE
(expenses)/income or the year (FAX) WAL (317,406) 7,067
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive DELE IR E R
(expenses)/income allocated to NCI (BB, &H &kEH
(FX),/ WA LE#E (63,481) 1,413
Cash flows (used in)/ generated from e E e (FTA) /TSR &
operating activities mE (7,705) 16,898
Cash flows used in investing activities KREEFARESRE (7,746) (16,862)

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERAF
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 20. RHMBATZHRE®
Chongsheng Coal RAKE
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBT ARBTIT
As at 31 December R+t=A=+—H
NCI percentage FEFE MR AE AR L 1A 20% 20%
Non-current assets FERBEE 1,094,493 1,930,939
Current assets MENBEE 150,274 120,512
Current liabilities mENBE (567,649) (641,245)
Non-current liabilities EmEatE (237,690) (255,577)
Net assets BEFE 439,428 1,154,629
Carrying amount of NCI R REE 87,886 230,926
During the year ended 31 December BE+=-A=+—HLEE
Revenue Was 305,448 409,341
Impairment loss on property, plant and YIE - BB R RE
equipment =gz 437,314 =
Impairment loss on coal mining rights B ERIERE 2 BB &R 1,762 =
Impairment loss on CIP EREIRZRBAERBRE 265,554 =
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive EW(E?TE)/%T&%'J&%@
(expenses)/income for the year G L N (715,201) 38,913
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive DAL E IR E R
(expenses)/income allocated to NCI (&18) /4 7 &EE
GELON (143,040) 7,783
Cash flows generated from operating KETHFBSHESME
activities 5,424 54,526
Cash flows used in investing activities KHEEFARESRE (4,421) (55,026)

During the year, there were no dividend paid to the non-

controlling shareholders (2019: nil).

(ZF—NE: 8\ -

RER - IR IR AR R KBRS
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INVENTORIES 21. FE
2020 2019
—ECEF —T-NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARBFIT
Finished goods B 49,497 56,823
Fuel PR 6,138 2,697
55,635 59,520

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s inventories
with carrying amount of approximately RMB1,023,000
(2019: RMB1,015,000) were pledged for the Group’s
borrowings (note 28).

R-Z-TF+-_A=+—8 K"&EBE
HELHARE1,023,000T(ZE—NEF
AR®1,015,00070) 2 FEERASEEH
BEEHRR (FF5E28) -

TRADE RECEIVABLES 22. BEWESEXR
2020 2019
—E-FF —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARBTIT
Trade receivables U E 5 BR R 485,800 261,423
Less: allowance for credit loss B EEEEEE (55,657) (132,295)
430,143 129,128

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERAF
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 22, EWEZRIEG
Ageing analysis BRER 20 AT
The Group’s exposure to credit risk related to trade and AEEFMEGEE S REMERKIES SR
other receivables are disclosed in note 34(b)(i). K= ERBR A M E34(b) (1) HEEE o
An ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of AEENERKEZER(NGKREEHRER
allowance for credit losses) of the Group is as follows: BB
2020 2019
— 7 — qi :ﬁ_ﬂﬁ
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R AREFTT
Within 2 months M 1E A A 363,580 14,149
Over 2 months but within 6 months M{E A DA _E B ER A SR A = 27,891
Over 6 months but within 1 year NEAK EBRER—F 93 1,253
Over 1 year but within 2 years —F M ETBARMSE 10 1,297
Over 2 years (note) BB () 66,460 84,538
430,143 129,128
The ageing is counted from the date when trade AREC BB E SR FUETRE B AES

receivables are recognised.

Note:

As at 31 December 2020, trade receivables aged over 2 years
amounting to approximately RMB66,460,000 (2019: RMB84,538,000)
were due from customers which the Group has trade and other payable
balances with amounts not less than the respective trade receivables
as at the end of the reporting period. Based on past experience and
repayment history of the trade debtors, the directors of the Company
believe that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances.

Credit terms granted to customers mainly range from 0 to 60 days (2019:
0 to 60 days) depending on customers relationship with the Group, their
creditworthiness and past settlement record.

Details of credit policy impairment assessment of trade receivable for
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are set out in note 34.

—E-ZHF3 ANNUAL REPORT 2020

B -

RZZZZTF+-A=+—H0 BREBMNFNES
e R IB A AR #66,460,000C(Z T —NF : AR
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23.

206

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23.

FEAS FRIR I E At FE R IE

2020 2019
—E-EF —E—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREET T
Included in non-current assets STAERBEE
Other deposit (note (iv)) Hhize (HEEv)) 34,264 =
Included in current assets SFTARBEE
Other deposits and prepayments (note (i)) HAbi& & & IBA FI8 (B FEG)) 282,198 303,685
Amounts due from non-controlling JRE L I 22 AR AR SR R TR
shareholders (note (ii)) (B & (i) 322,703 322,703
Other non-trade receivables E b IEE 5 KNG IE 86,693 46,851
691,594 673,239
Less: Allowance for credit losses (note (iii)) & : 1= & &8 848 (BT 5% (i) (392,722) (380,005)
298,872 293,234

Notes:

(i) Prepayments for purchase of coal and transportation (i)
fee amounting to approximately RMB104,115,000
(2019: RMB188,803,000) and RMB31,420,000 (2019:
RMB12,645,000) respectively are included in other deposits
and prepayments. The remaining amount of RMB146,663,000
(2019: RMB102,237,000) are mainly prepayments for the
supplier services to support the Group’s ordinary business.

(ii) Amounts due from non-controlling shareholders of Huameiao (ii)
Energy are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed term of
repayment. As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of
approximately RMB322,703,000 (2019: RMB322,703,000) were

fully impaired in prior years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Allowance for losses of prepayments and other receivables are
as follows:

FEATRRIE R H b E W IE (@)

iz ()

(iii)

BN FORR AR SRERBEFNT

2020 2019

e A

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREFTT

Other deposits and prepayments Hihiz$ RIEN KA 47,954 36,880
Amounts due from non-controlling FE T SR AR AR BR 3K IE

shareholders 322,703 322,703

Other non-trade receivables Eh3EE 5 rUGRIE 22,065 20,422

392,722 380,005

Details of impairment assessment of prepayments and other
receivables for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019
are set out in note 34.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 3
January 2020 and 7 August 2020, a series of agreements,
including heads of agreement (“HOA”) dated 31 December
2019, addendum of HOA dated 11 March 2020 and conditional
sale and purchase agreement dated 6 August 2020
(collectively, the “Proposed Acquisition Agreements”) were
entered by the Group for proposed acquisition of 70% equity
shareholding of PT Sumber Daya Energi (“SDE”), a company
duly established under the laws of Republic of Indonesia
that is engaged in coal mining and trading in Indonesia, from
two independent third parties (the “Sellers”) at an aggregate
consideration of IDR385,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB190,000). Pursuant to the Proposed Acquisition
Agreements, the Sellers (as non-controlling shareholders of
SDE after completion of the proposed acquisition) would be
entitled to 15% of the total saleable coal production of SDE as
profit distributions and such Sellers’ entittements are secured
by the deposits of aggregate USD5,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB34,264,000) paid by the Group. The aforesaid deposits
paid by the Group are secured by Sellers’ approximately 75%
equity interest in SDE until the completion of the proposed
acquisition.

(iv)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HiE —Z —

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(iv) In the event the proposed acquisition could not be completed
on or before 31 December 2020 for any reasons, Sellers must
return the deposits to the Group within 14 days from the date
of notification from the Group. As disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 13 December 2020 and 31 March 2021,
the board of the Group noticed that more time is required
on the approval by the relevant government authorities of
the Republic of Indonesia. In view that additional time is
required for the satisfaction of certain conditions precedent
for the proposed acquisition, the Group and the Sellers are
agreed in writing to extend the completion date until 30 June
2021 instead of 31 December 2020. Up to the date when the
consolidated financial statements are authorised for issue, the
acquisition has not been completed.

PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2020, bank deposits of
approximately RMB nil (2019: RMB333,000) were
pledged to secure general credit facilities.

As at 31 December 2020, bank deposits of
approximately RMB403,000 (2019: RMB723,000) were
restricted for use in relation to the litigation proceedings
as disclosed in note 38(a)(iv).

As at 31 December 2020, bank deposits of
approximately RMB nil (2019: RMB14,173,000) were
restricted for use in relation to the trading of coal
business of respective entities located in the respective
regions in order to support the economic development
of the regions.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
the Group performed impairment assessment on
bank balances and concluded that the probability of
defaults of the counterparty banks are insignificant and
accordingly, no allowance for credit losses is provided.

Details of impairment assessment of pledged and
restricted bank deposits for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019 are set out in note 34.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

The table below details change in the Group’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash
flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities.

25.
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED) 25, BERBESZEY®

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities (continued)

REMETENEENEHR®

Lease
Borrowings liabilities Total
BE HESE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®T AR®T R
At 1 January 2019 RZZF—-—hLF—HA—H 4,493,392 7,238 4,500,630
Changes from financing cash FBEREHREZEH :
flows:
Proceeds from borrowings B BB A 579,901 = 579,901
Repayments of borrowings/lease & & & E\/ﬂ"ﬂ
liabilities (908,261) (4,172) (912,433)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (328,360)  (4172) (382,582)
Non-cash changes: FESEE :
Interest charge on unwinding of #T &858 2 | B
discounts (note 9) (F45%9) 171,092 = 171,092
New leases entered into AR = 2,248 2,248
171,092 2,248 173,340
At 31 December 2019 RZE—N%F
+=-—A=+—~” 4,336,124 5,314 4,341,438
Changes from financing cash FEEESREZ B !
flows:
Proceeds from borrowings BEMSRIE 855,100 = 855,100
Repayments of borrowings/lease fE3i& & & REaE
liabilities (1,244,837) (4,335) (1,249,172)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (389.737) (4335 (394072)
Non-cash changes: FESEE :
Settlement of amount due to an 45 & & { — & B = 1A &)
associate IR 273,709 = 273,709
Loss on non-substantial BEFEKXNEFT CEE
modification of borrowing 194,351 - 194,351
Interest charge on unwinding of #Fr&EBLIR 2 M B FL
discounts (note 9) (P 5E9) 181,907 - 181,907
New leases entered into HIVE kS = 2,752 2,752
649,967 2,752 652,719
At 31 December 2020 R_E_TF
+=—A=+—H 4,596,354 3,731 4,600,085
Note:  In March 2020, the amount due to an associate was settled fizx: R-BE-_ZTE=H1 - Fgﬁ ik EANGIE
by increase of other borrowing from an asset management hkE —HEES qug\{mﬁgiiq],ﬂﬁﬁ
company. =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

TRADE PAYABLES 26. ENEZERX

AEBERBEZARNEMNE ZERKOK

An ageing analysis of trade payables of the Group

based on invoice date is as follows: BRI -
2020 2019
—B-%F —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBFIT
Within 1 year —F R 484,063 149,380
Over 1 year but within 2 years —F L ETBAMSE 76,307 15,084
Over 2 years ES- 110,003 169,483
670,373 333,947
OTHER PAYABLES 27. HbESFRIE
2020 2019
—B-BHF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBET T
Current ENEA
Accrued expenses fEETF X 510,706 441,379
Contract liabilities (note (i)) &R a &) 94,746 44,850
Amount due to ultimate controlling &1 Ax AR 3% IS A% 3R 7k 18
shareholder 161 161
Amount due to ultimate holding FET R A AZE IR A RIS/ IE
company 10,673 988
Amount due to an associate FEA — B & A B 5RIE 215,275 624,480
Amounts due to directors of the ERANABESEKIE
Company 1,565 1,457
Amount due to a related party FEfT — R BEE T 5RIE 141 141
Amount due to a related company BT —FRE#E QR FIE 100 100
Other payables (note (ii)) oAt A SR I (B 3 (i) 1,462,238 1,463,140
2,295,605 2,576,696
Non-current JEBNER
Other payables (note (ii)) L Ath R < SR I (B 3 i) = 20,550
2,295,605 2,597,246

—E-ZHF3 ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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27.
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OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 27. HENARE®
Notes: B 5E
(i) (i)
2020 2019
—E-%F —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBEFTT
Contract liabilities EHaE
Sale of coal RS 94,746 44,850

All contract liabilities are expected to be recognised as income within
one year from dates of receipts.

The Group typically received 100% payment from customers for sales
of coal before the customers obtain the control of coal products which
give rise to contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the revenue
recognised upon the pass of controls.

AEAHNBEERNN —FREERLEA

REEBENE PG RIRE @RI 6 A 2 R R
ERBEF100%0 5 - BMRNAORBBEESH
BfE  BEERENERIREE RN ERR

Movements in contract liabilities are as follows: AREEZENAT -
2020 2019
e St 33 —ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFR ARBTFIT
At 1 January wn—A—8 44,850 91,865
Revenue recognised that was included inthe REVEFASHEERN
contract liabilities at the beginning of the B R
year (44,850) (91,865)
Forward sale deposits and instalments FARBMHBRRARERE R
received during the year 7 BT 94,746 44,850
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—H 94,746 44,850
(i) Construction payables of approximately RMB848,073,000 (if) HthENHRESEENEERENAR

(2019: RMB867,977,000) and payables related to
mineral exploration and mining rights of approximately
RMB292,428,000 (2019: RMB346,755,000) are included in
other payables.

The amounts due to ultimate holding company of
the Company, ultimate controlling shareholder of the
Company, an associate, directors of the Company, a
related company and a related party are unsecured,
interest free and have no fixed term of repayment.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

BORROWINGS B8
2020 2019
—ECEF ZE-NEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M5 ARET T ARBFIT

Bank loans IRITER

- Secured - BEH (i) = 296,033
- Unsecured - | (ii) 910,640 932,640
910,640 1,228,673

Other borrowings HtEE (iii)
- Secured - BEH 3,634,844 3,056,581
- Unsecured - | 50,870 50,870
3,685,714 3,107,451
Total borrowings EEBE 4,596,354 4,336,124

Notes: fEE -
(i) As at 31 December 2019, secured bank loans bore interest at (i) RZZE-—NEFE+ZA=+—8 ' BEHRRT

rates from 4.75% to 6.72% per annum.

(i) Unsecured bank loans bear interest at rates ranging from
5.7% to 8.80% (2019: 4.75% to 8.00%) per annum as at 31
December 2020.

(iif) Other borrowings bear interest at rates ranging from 3.90% to
7.28% (2019: 4.86% to 7.28%) per annum as at 31 December
2020.

ERIRERRAL75%%E6.72%:T 2 °

(ii) AT -_TF+-A=+—8 ' EEKPIET
BERREFNENT5.7%%28.80%(=ZF—AN

&F : 475%%8.00%)5 8 °

(iii) RZZE-_ZEF+A=+—RH  Hi{gE
BEFMENT3.90%E7.28%(ZF—NF :

4.86%ZE7.28%)F B ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H{ 2 —Z —_TF+_A=+—HILtFE

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2020, borrowings of the Group were
repayable as follows:

B8 @

RZZE_ZEF+-_A=+—H  x&EERE
EMERBRAT

2020 2019

. —F-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETTT

Within 1 year or on demand —FRHIZRERK 1,970,990 2,163,276
Over 1 year but within 2 years —F L ETBAMSE 362,679 560,332
Over 2 years but within 5 years A FETBBERF 2,262,685 1,612,516
2,625,364 2,172,848

4,596,354 4,336,124

Due to breach of loan covenants and/or occurrence
of default events (including the breach of cross
default clauses), certain bank and other borrowings
with the aggregate carrying amount of approximately
RMB1,808,207,000 (2019: RMB1,830,501,000), in which
the aggregate amount of RMB1,144,567,000 (2019:
RMB1,005,361,000) was past due, and aggregate
amounts of RMB663,640,000 (2019: RMB758,700,000)
and nil (2019: RMB66,440,000) were repayable within
one year and after one year respectively from the end
of reporting date based on the agreed scheduled
repayments set out in the respective loan agreements
had been due for immediate payment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 28.

Borrowings due for repayment, based on the scheduled
repayment terms set out in the loan agreements and
without taking into account the effect of any immediate
repayment on cross default clause are as follows:

B8 @

R & 7K W % P 8L 1 O At 8B
Z BAEMAE R XE DR
& FEMEENEEWT

M unn}

2020 2019

RMB’ ooo RMB’000

ARET T ARBFIT

Within 1 year or on demand —FRAHIZERK 1,970,990 2,096,836
Over 1 year but within 2 years —FLLEETNBBMRT 362,679 626,772
Over 2 years but within 5 years LA FETBBERF 2,262,685 1,612,516
4,596,354 4,336,124

The interest payables of borrowings not yet past due
but due for immediate payment due to occurrence
of default events (including the breach of cross
default clauses) and borrowings that have become
past due amounting to approximately RMB3,188,000
(2019: RMB16,127,000) and RMB355,983,000 (2019:
RMB264,318,000) respectively were included in the
other payables.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H{ 2 —Z —_TF+_A=+—HILtFE

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2020, a secured bank loan, an
unsecured bank loan, secured other borrowings
and unsecured other borrowings of approximately
RMB nil (2019: RMB148,534,000), RMB247,000,000
(2019: RMB254,999,000), RMB846,697,000 (2019:
RMB550,958,000) and RMB50,870,000 (2019:
RMB50,870,000) respectively, that have been past due
and due for immediate payment. These borrowings
carried interest at rates ranging from 3.9% to 8.80%
(2019: 4.86% to 7.28%) per annum and also carried
additional penalty interest at rate ranging from 1.95%
to 4.40% (2019: 2.43% to 3.64%) per annum after past
due. These secured borrowings are secured by coal
mining rights and property, plant and equipment with a
carrying amount of approximately RMB305,406,000 and
RMB103,687,000 as at 31 December 2020 respectively
(2019: Coal mining rights and property, plant and
equipment with RMB528,104,000 and RMB 119,563,000
respectively).

Of the above-mentioned secured other borrowings,
RMB58,514,000 are also secured by the Group’s
equity interest in Super Grace and Oriental Wise and
guaranteed by the Company, certain subsidiaries of the
Company, related parties and Mr. Xu, the controlling
shareholder.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERAF

28.

B8 @

R-B-ZTHFE+-_A=+—H HAEAE
TER - EEFERTER  BEREME
ERERFEMERESNNARBEE T
(ZZ—N%F : AR®148,534,0007T) * A
R#247,000,0007c(ZFE—NF : ARK
254,999,0007T) * A K #846,697,0007T
(ZZ—h%F : AR¥550,958,0007T) K& A
R#50,870,000c(ZF—1F : ARK
50,870,0007T) B #8 HA N BB (E I8 © %%
EERFMENT3.9%E8.80% (T —
JLEF : 4.86%%7.28%):T 8 - BEIE IR
NF1.95%F4.40%(ZF—NF : 2.43%
£3.64%) M FF|RETEREINEB - % E
EHEEAR - ZE-_ZBFE+-A=+—8
ERHEE 2 Bl % A R 305,406,0007T & A
R #103,687,0007T 0 & ok SRR HE LA K W)
¥ BEERREBEBCE-NF : 2RAEAR
#528,104,0007T & A R #119,563,0007T
MR R IRTERE LA R -~ W= KRR ) R IR
o

Pt B E R E M EE AR ¥58,514,0007T
i AN 82 E 7 Super Grace N Oriental Wise
MRRE(EIR - WAARQR « AARAE
THEBAR - BER RIERRRIRTEE
ER -



28.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
entered into the Settlement Agreement with an asset
management company in the PRC, to reduce the
amounts of outstanding bank loans assigned by two
banks and the relevant interest and penalty interest
amounting to approximately RMB4,027,188,000 and
RMB582,028,000 in total respectively. The management
of the Group considers that the terms of the Settlement
Agreement are substantially different as the discounted
present value of the cash flows under the new terms
discounted using the original effective interest rate
is different from the discounted present value of the
remaining cash flows of the original financial liability by
more than 10 per cent. Accordingly, such modification
of terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the
original financial liability and the recognition of a new
financial liability. Therefore, the Group derecognised
the original borrowings outstanding and recognised
new borrowings measured at fair value as at the date
of extinguishment. The difference between the carrying
amount of the borrowings derecognised and the fair
value of the new borrowings recognised amounting to
approximately RMB1,904,853,000 is recognised in profit
or loss for the year ended 31 December 2018.

28.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H{ 2 —Z —_TF+_A=+—HILtFE

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

In March 2020, in respect of the above-mentioned
borrowings, the Group further entered into a legally
binding supplemental agreement (“Supplemental
Settlement Agreement”) with the asset management
company to revise and extend the repayment schedule
for year of 2020 and 2021. The repayment schedule for
year of 2022 remained unchanged. The management of
the Group considers that the terms of the Supplemental
Settlement Agreement are not substantially different
from the Settlement Agreement as the discounted
present value of the cash flows under the revised terms
discounted using the original effective interest rate
is different from the discounted present value of the
remaining cash flows of the original financial liability by
less than 10 per cent. Accordingly, such modification
of terms was accounted for as non-substantial
modification, and the adjustment of approximately
RMB10,700,000 to the carrying amount of the financial
liability was recognised as other losses as set out in
note 8 at the date of modification.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

In December 2020, the Group further entered into a
legally binding supplemental agreement (“Supplemental
Settlement Agreement 11”) with the asset management
company to revise and extend the repayment schedule
for December 2020 and year of 2021. The repayment
schedule for December 2020 has been changed to
2023. The management of the Group considers that
the terms of the Supplemental Settlement Agreement
Il are not substantially different from the Supplemental
Settlement Agreement as the discounted present value
of the cash flows under the revised terms discounted
using the original effective interest rate is different from
the discounted present value of the remaining cash
flows of the original financial liability by less than 10
per cent. Accordingly, such maodification of terms was
accounted for as non-substantial modification, and the
adjustment of approximately RMB183,651,000 to the
carrying amount of the financial liability was recognised
as other losses as set out in note 8 at the date of
modification. As at 31 December 2020, the carrying
amount of the Group’s borrowings from the asset
management was approximately RMB2,788,147,000 (31
December 2019: RMB2,505,623,000).

The Settlement Agreement contained a default
clause which the Group will be required to repay the
outstanding balance of the original borrowings and
interest payable of approximately RMB4,027,188,000
and RMB582,028,000 respectively if the Group fails to
repay the new borrowings by instalments in accordance
with the respective repayment schedule. The directors
of the Company are of the opinion that there is no event
of default as at the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H{ 2 —Z —_TF+_A=+—HILtFE

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Of the Group’s borrowings, aggregate principal
amounts of RMB691,848,000 (2019: RMB691,848,000)
as at 31 December 2020 had been defaulted with
lawsuits filed by banks against the Group to demand
immediate repayment. Pursuant to the final court
judgements in prior years, the Group was ordered to
make immediate repayment of the aforesaid balances.
In respect of the aforesaid balances with lawsuit, certain
banks assigned their bank loans and interests (including
penalty interests) due from the Group with aggregate
amounts of RMB543,314,000 and RMB112,032,000
respectively, which had been past due, to certain
asset management companies in the PRC during the
year ended 31 December 2018. Also, in 2017 a bank
assigned its bank loan and interest (including penalty
interests) of RMB148,952,000 and RMB6,925,000
respectively, which had been past due but without any
lawsuit, to an asset management company in the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain
banks assigned their bank loans and interests (including
penalty interests) due from the Group with aggregate
amounts of RMB295,739,000 and RMB101,313,000
respectively, which had been past due and with lawsuit
for one of the loans, to an asset management company
in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2020, the terms of the above
assigned loans remained unchanged. The Group is still
in the process of negotiating with the banks and asset
management companies to renew the terms (including
the repayment schedule) of the outstanding loans and
loans assigned.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The Group’s total borrowings are secured by the
following assets of the Group:

B8 @

AEBZEERFRAKREN N IIEER
R

2020 2019

. i

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

i AR¥T T ARBTIT

Property, plant and equipment 1% - = MR E 15 590,361 1,017,438
Coal mining rights B IR 16 1,942,800 4,017,884
Inventories 78 21 1,023 1,015

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group’s total
borrowings are also secured by other receivables of a
related company of which Mr. Xu is the shareholder,
a property held by Mr. Xu, Fortune Pearls equity
interest in the Company and the Group’s equity interest
in Huameiao Energy, Xingtao Coal, Fengxi Coal,
Chongsheng Coal, Xinglong Coal, Hongyuan Coal,
Shuozhou Guangfa, Super Grace and Oriental Wise. As
at 31 December 2020, total borrowings of approximately
RMB4,596,354,000 (2019: RMB4,336,124,000) were
guaranteed by the Company, certain subsidiaries of the
Company, related parties and/or Mr. Xu (note 37(b)).

RZEBE_EFR_FT-—NF+_A=+
—B AKBEZEEREIIH—HHS
P EE AR R A B8 A B Y E Ath E UK ER
H BRAERBEN—EBEME BERA
NAMRERAEEREZRER - &
PR % BHEE  SHEE - @ERK
¥ - RERMBE - WMNEE - Super Grace
K Oriental WisefI R #EEHEM - R =—F =
TE+-_A=+—0 BEEEHAR
#54,596,354,0007L (ZE—NF : ARK
4,336,124,00070) AR A * RAAEZH
THBAR - BER KR,k EEEEF
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29.

30.

b E R
For the year ended 31 December 2020 H{ 2 —Z —_TF+_A=+—HILtFE
ACCRUED RECLAMATION OBLIGATIONS 29. FHIREEREHN
2020 2019
—E_TH —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBFIT
At 1 January w—HA—H 124,010 114,465
Interest charge on unwinding of WERR 2 FBHAX
discounts (note 9(ii)) (B & 9(ii)) 9,910 9,545
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 133,920 124,010
LEASE LIABILITIES 30. HEAE
2020 2019
—E_TH —E-NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Within 1 year —FR 2,805 3,819
Over 1 year but within 2 years —F LA ETBBRS 926 1,495
3,731 5314
Less: Amount due for settlement B OREBBEEE TR
within 12 months shown 1218 A AR HILEE R
under current liabilities IR (2,805) (3,819)
Amount due for settlement after EMBBEIE TYIRA
12 months shown under 128 A& 2 HALER
non-current liabilities B 926 1,495
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(a)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

31.

(a)

BX - RAERKRE

EEEHs 2
AEBEE DA RN T R RS
RETINGEEDZEER -

Share capital (b) BE
Amount
ok
No. of share RMB’000
[ AR%T T
Ordinary shares of HKD0.10 each & IR {50.105% JT §93 & %
Authorised EE
At 1 January 2019, 31 December R=ZZE—hFE—A—H"
2019 and 31 December 2020 —E-hF+ZA=t+—H
EZ_TE_Z2F
+=—A=+—H 20,000,000,000 1,763,000
Ordinary shares, issued and EER CBRITRAR
fully paid
At 1 January 2019, 31 December RZE—-hF—H—H-
2019 and 31 December 2020 —E-NAFE+=ZA=+—H
kZZTZF
+=—A=+—~” 2,493,413,985 211,224
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H{ 2 —Z —_TF+_A=+—HILtFE

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

Perpetual subordinated convertible securities

On 31 December 2012, the Company issued
convertible securities to Fortune Pearl with a principal
value of HKD194,700,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB157,872,000). The direct transaction costs
attributable to the convertible securities amounted to
approximately RMB941,000.

The convertible securities are convertible at the option
of the holder of convertible securities into ordinary
shares of the Company at any time after 31 December
2012 at the initial conversion price of HKD1.65 per
ordinary share of the Company (subject to anti-dilutive
adjustments). While the convertible securities confer
a right to receive distributions at 3% per annum, the
Company may, at its sole discretion, elect to defer a
distribution pursuant to the terms of the convertible
securities.

The convertible securities have no maturity date and
are redeemable at the option of the Company at 100%
or 50% of the principal amount of the convertible
securities each time, on any distribution payment date
at the face value of the outstanding principal amount of
the convertible securities to be redeemed plus 100% or
50% (as the case may be) of distributions accrued to
such date.

As the convertible securities have no contractual
obligation to repay its principal nor to pay any
distributions, they do not meet the definition for
classification of a financial liabilities under IAS 32. As
a result, the whole instrument is classified as equity,
and respective distributions if and when declared are
treated as equity dividends.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

Perpetual subordinated convertible securities

(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
elected to distribute approximately HKD23,364,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB21,166,000) in respect
of current year (which amounted to HKD5,841,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB4,942,000)) and
prior years (which amounted to HKD17,523,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB16,224,000)) (year
ended 31 December 2019: elected to defer distribution
of HKD5,841,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB5,208,000) in respect of the period). As at 31
December 2020, the accumulated deferred distribution
of nil (31 December 2019: HKD17,523,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB15,624,000)) are included in the
reserves of the Company available for distribution.

Deficit
(i) Share premium

The share premium account of the Group
includes: (i) the premium arising from the issue
of new shares in prior years; (ii) the expense
incurred in connection with issuance of new
shares in prior years; (iii) dividends declared and
paid in prior years; and (iv) amount transferred
from share-based compensation reserve upon
exercise of share options.

On 6 January 2016, 215,000,000 shares
were allotted and issued to the Creditor by
capitalisation of part of the Payables. The
excess of the fair value of shares issued totalling
HKD33,325,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB27,822,000) over the nominal value of the
total number of ordinary shares issued was
credited to the share premium account, after
deducting the issuing expenses.

31.

(c)

(d)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HiE —Z —

31.

(d)

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

Deficit (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Merger reserve

Merger reserve represents the difference
between the aggregate amount of paid-in
capital of the subsidiaries of the Company and
the amount of share capital of the Company
transferred and issued to Fortune Pearl in
exchange for the entire equity interests in all
members of the Group as part of a reorganisation
on 12 June 2009.

Reserves
Statutory reserve fund

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations
applicable to wholly-foreign-owned companies,
certain entities within the Group are required to
allocate certain portion (not less than 10%), as
determined by their Board of Directors, of their
profit after tax in accordance with PRC GAAP to
the statutory reserve fund (the SRF) until such
reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital.

The SRF is non-distributable other than
in the event of liquidation and, subject to
certain restrictions set out in the relevant PRC
regulations, can be used to offset accumulated
losses or be capitalised as issued capital.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERAF

ZE+-_A=+—HILFE

31.

(d)

EX - BERRE @G
B At @)
(i) BOHEE

(iii)

EREEERRARNNERARINE
HMEARREEHEAN_ZEZTNEN
ATZHEAEN—HS - AZ]A
SEMAEKBERRINZEAREMR
PREERZBTHNARAINREZ
IR ZEEE o

#f
AL

RIBINEEE R RER AR E
BB NREEETHETERAR
EXeRERTEAREA RS
BB TRBEEN (TPR10%) =
ZzEfREE(DEEFERD B2
& RE R B AR H50% /3 LE

FEERBBERTADIK  HEHERE
RIS MREAARE H BEAR OIS

TR AR EHE R BRI ET

BARBERITIRARIERS -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

31. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 31. EX - #EERRE®
(CONTINUED)

(d)  Deficit (continued) d) Eae
(iii)  Reserves (continued) (i)  FE )

Specific reserve maintenance and production EHHEREREER S
funds
According to relevant PRC regulations, the Group RIBEFEEERTE  AEEERE
is required to transfer an amount to specific HIREE ' B THREBASZEFE
reserve for the maintenance and production HEREREEREEESUREME
funds and other related expenditures based BRx - ZIEREZFEHOT

on coal production volume. The movement of
specific reserve is as follows:

RMB’000

AR®T

At 1 January 2019 A\_E—-NF—H—H 121,742

Provision for the year FREE 239,112

Utilisation for the year FREA (184,297)

At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RZZE-NFT+ZA=1+—HRK

R-_ZE_ZTF—H—H 176,557

Provision for the year FREE 175,296

Utilisation for the year FREA (112,817)

At 31 December 2020 R-E-_TF+-_A=+—H 239,036

(iv)  Exchange reserve (iv) EZ#E

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign PN R ERIERE G INETS R B

exchange differences arising from the translation WEMEENDIINEZERE ©

of the financial statements of foreign operations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H{ 2 —Z —_TF+_A=+—HILtFE

31. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 31. EX - -RFEERRE®
(CONTINUED)

(d)  Deficit (continued) d) Eae

(v)  Share-based compensation reserve v) URGREEZHE@EE

Share-based compensation reserve represents
the value of directors and employee services in
respect of share options granted under a Pre-
IPO share option scheme and a share option
scheme as set out in note 32.

Distributability of reserves

The application of the share premium account
is governed by the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands. Under the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands, the funds in share
premium account and contributed surplus are
distributable to shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

As at 31 December 2019, the reserves
of the Company available for distribution
comprise share premium, contributed surplus
and accumulated losses of approximately
RMB102,538,000. As at 31 December 2020,
the Company did not have any distributable
reserves.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products and services commensurately with
the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from that of prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
net debt, which included net of cash and cash
equivalents, borrowings, as disclosed in notes 25
and 28 respectively, and equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company, comprising share capital,
perpetual subordinated convertible securities and
deficit, as disclosed in note 30.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

Dividends
The directors of the Company do not recommend the

payment of any dividends to its ordinary shareholders
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H{ 2 —Z —_TF+_A=+—HILtFE

32. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 32. REZZHEUROGAEBRZMAR
(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (a) BRAMBERBRESTS
Pursuant to the sole shareholders written resolutions BRIBE—RENR_ZEZTNFAAT=AB
passed on 12 June 2009, the Company adopted a Pre- BHEMRZR  AAREMFT IR
IPO Share Option Scheme (the Pre-IPO Share Option) BEERETE((HRAREENBER
whereby the grantees were granted the rights to D) Bl ABRABETRERRARK
subscribe for shares of the Company. M EIREF o
The total number of shares which may be issued upon BREBRAARAEEERER L OER
the exercise of all options granted under the Pre-IPO REREETEER TRITHNRMDES A
Share Option is 8,400,000 shares which were granted 8,400,0008% ' HERZTZTNF A+
on 12 June 2009 with the subscription price of HKD2.52 REE REERER252BTT °
per share.
Each option granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option BHORBERARBEEAEREN KD
has a vesting period of one to three years commencing EhEFBEHAE LMABRT —E=
from the Listing Date and the options are exercisable F - MBERERTRI10FBEARITE - XA
for a period of 10 years. The Company has no legal A A TE Sk i E B AR S BRI ERT
or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the REARE -
option in cash.
(0 The terms and conditions of the grants are as (i) EEREREN R REEDT
follows:
Number of Contractual
Date of Grant options Vesting conditions life of options
BREN
g =R BREZSE BEBEHRY EHER
12 June 2009 8,400,000 30% on both of the first and second 10 years
anniversary of the Listing Date, 40% on
the third anniversary of the Listing Date
—ETNF 8,400,000 tMHHIEE —NE BEFHR30% - 104
NATZH B EEE=EFR/40%
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 32. RERFZEUBROAER 2N @®
(CONTINUED)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued) (@) BARLAHREIBRESTE®
(i)~ The number and weighted average exercise (i) BEBRAABEAERENSE RN
prices of Pre-IPO Share Options are as follows: EFHITERENT -
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-_Z-_ZEF+-A=t+—HL
FE
Outstanding number of options
GESHEEE B 4
Balance at Lapsed Balance at
1 January during 31 December
Type of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period Exercise price 2020 the year 2020
R-R-%F
R-R-%F tZA=t-AN
REAEH RiAH i %8 -A-BHER ER%N &8
HKD ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
A7 Th T Th
Employees
fE&
In aggregate 12 June 2009 12 June 2009 o 1.26 - - -
11 June 2019
5 “ZENFRATCA “EENFRATIRE 1.26 - - -
“E-WERRT-H
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT-NF+=ZA=+—HL
FE
Qutstanding number of options
HATTRERES B
Balance at Lapsed Balance at
1 January during 31 December
Type of grantes Date of grant Exercisable period Exercise price 2019 the year 2019
RZE-hE
RZ2-NF TZA=T-Rf
HRAER RiAH i e —-A-AnER EREM £
HKD 000 000 000
A T T T
Employees
fE&
In aggregate 12 June 2009 12 June 2009 o 1.26 4,800 (4.800) 1
11 June 2019
g ZEENEAATZA “EENEAATZRE 16 4800 (4,800) -
ZE-WERRT-H
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H{ 2 —Z —_TF+_A=+—HILtFE

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

(ii) The number and weighted average exercise
prices of Pre-IPO Share Options are as follows:
(continued)

During the year, no share option (2019: nil) under
the Pre-IPO Share Option was exercised.

As a result of the bonus issue of one share
for every one existing share held by the
shareholders whose names are on the register
of members on 10 October 2011, the exercise
price of the Pre-IPO Share Options was adjusted
from HKD2.52 to HKD1.26, and the number of
the outstanding Pre-IPO Share Options as at 10
October 2011 was adjusted from 7,800,000 to
15,600,000 thereupon.

The Pre-IPO Share Options outstanding at
31 December 2019 had a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 0.5 year. The
weighted average exercise price for the
outstanding Pre-IPO Share Options as at 31
December 2019 was HKD1.26 per share.

Share option scheme
The Company has also adopted a Share Option
Scheme (the Share Option Scheme) pursuant to the

sole shareholders written resolutions passed on 12 June
2009.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERAF

32.

(a)

(b)

RESEEURDHBER 2@

BRARBENERESE @

(i) BRAFRBEEAERENSE &N
BFHTEENT - (&

REAR - BEBRAHABEIER
BETHEIMERERTECCS
—NEF ) o

HRER-_E—F+A+H%7
KREZMAOBRRSFE —RIREMK
MEZ—RAREBITAR  BAA
MEERERENITEER2.528
TCAER1.268TL  MR_ZE——
FHATHBRITENTRAFRE
E R BB AR 2B A 7,800,00017 5
15,600,00017 °

R-ZE—HE+_A=+—8 4
RITEE R AFEER RN
B FBREHHR AT - B
E-AE+_A=+—8 &Kk
TEERAFARERERELN ME
FHITEERFTR.26ETT °

BRETE
REKE-—BERR_ZTAF AT AR

BONEERER  ARFTCRAN—IRB
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(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of shares that may be issued
upon exercise of all options which then has been
granted and have yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company shall not, in the absence of the
shareholders approval, in aggregate exceed 30% of
the shares in issue from time to time. Unless approved
by the shareholders, no option may be granted to any
person which if exercised in full would result in the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the share options already granted or to be
granted to such person (including exercised, cancelled,
and outstanding share option) in the 12-month period
up to and including the date of such new grant
exceeding 1% of the total number of shares in issue as
at the date of such new grant.

An option under the Share Option Scheme may
be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as
determined by the board of directors of the Company,
which must not be more than 10 years from the date of
the grant.

32.

(b)

RESGEURDBER 2K

X (&)

B ETE @

RITER IR B IR &) R AN A B E AL
BREGFSERERDBERRITENRA
BRI A] e ﬁmaéﬁﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁ
ERSRRILEBRLT e TE@BEET
R E BT B2 A30% © BRIFLRR L
o BA HEBTEEERARXAZTER
HEEkESE R (BEZR)A12EASBEE
A A THE DS FREZEBREBER
17E - EEERRITERERE)R - 8%
BERTAETRITORNDEZEBEBEZHE
HEREE AMERTROEE1% - BIT
BRZA TR LB -

FEARMEET EITE T MM AR BE RT AR IR BB AR A 5T
EERRARRESSE TN AR AR
1fF - MBBHEBERL B R TSHE
B0 -

(i) The terms and conditions of the grants are as (i) BHEERREEDT
follows:
Number of Contractual
Date of grant options Vesting conditions life of options
BRREN
REBH BREHE SBEGHG BRHR
17 January 2012 20,751,196 40% on the grant date, 30% on both of the 10 years
first and second anniversary of the
grant date
—E-=F 20,751,196 REEB#R40% @ REHBHREE R 104
—A++tH £ IAFHR30%
30 April 2015 157,500,000 40% on the grant date, 30% on both of the 10 years
first and second anniversary of the
grant date
—hfF 157,500,000 R B EIR40% @ RIREH B BEE — K& 106
MA=+H TIAFHR30%

==

ZZFF®R ANNUAL REPORT 2020

233



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H{ 2 —Z —_TF+_A=+—HILtFE

32. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 32. REZZHEUROGHRERZAR@E®
(CONTINUED)
(b)  Share option scheme (continued) (b) ERESE@®
(i)~ The number and weighted average exercise (i)  FERETEINEE KNETFHITE
prices of share options scheme are as follows: BT :
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-Z-_ZEF+=-HA=+—HL
FE
Outstanding number of options
GESHES By 4
Balance at Lapsed Balance at
1 January during 31 December
Type of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period Exercise price 2020 the year 2020
R-B-RE
RZ8-%8F TZB=t-HK
ERAEH RiLAH i ik -A-ANER EREN &8
HKD ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
A7 T T T
Executive director
HrEs
Mr. Fung Wai Shing 30 April 2015 30 April 2015t 0.485 20,000 - 20,000
29 April 2025
R “3-1fMA=+A -E-RFMA=TRZ
R REMAZTAR
Independent non-executive director
BukunEs
Mr. Lau Sikyuen 30 April 2015 30 April 2015 to 0.485 500 - 500
29 April 2025
HERLE “E-1fMA=TE -E-RFRA=1AHE
“R-REMAZTAR
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, agw D A
Employees
fE&
In aggregate 17 January 2012 17 January 2012 to 150 2,594 (1,112) 1,482
16 January 2022
% “E-—E-f+4R  F--F-fttAE
ZRCCE-A15H
In aggregate 30 April 2015 30 April 2015 to 0485 56,000 (10,000) 46,000
29 April 2025
g g - “Z-hEMA=TAZ
F_ =
S = T
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, o904 (1112 44%
79,09 (11,112) 67,982
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(i)

32. RESEEUROAERZMA

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

X (&)

Share option scheme (continued) (b) BREFE®G
The number and weighted average exercise (i) EERERTEIAER RNEFEHITE
prices of share options scheme are as follows: BT : (&)
(continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-_Z-NF+TA=+—HL
FE
Qutstanding number of options
HATTRERES A
Balance at Lapsed Balance at
1 January during 31 December
Type of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period Exercise price 2019 the year 2019
RZ2-NF
| ) ] ) R=2-NE - tzA=t-an
AR RiiAH i 18 —A-Afes ERER e
HKD 000 000 000
BT T T T
Executive director
yrEs
Mr. Fung Wai Shing* 30 April 2015 30 April 2015t 0485 20,000 - 20,000
\ 29 April 2025
BRIEE “5-RFNA=TR ZE-RFMA=THZ
“2_RFMACTAR
Independent non-executive directors
BuFufEs
Mr.Huang Guosheng* 30 April 2015 30 April 2015t 0.485 500 (500) -
29 April 2025
BEEE “E2-1F@A=+A  ZE-RFRA=tRE
Z2CREMAZTAR
Mr. Lau Sikyuen 30 April 2015 30 April 2015t 0485 500 - 500
\ 29 April 2025
L) i Z3-1EMA=+A  ZE-RFMA=TRZ
“Z_REMACTAR
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, L
Employees
8
In aggregate 17 January 2012 17 January 2012 to 150 4,076 (1,482) 2,59%
16 January 2022
% ZE-ZE-ATtH = Z§-A+tAE
—% ——¢ ﬂ +/\ H
In aggregate 30 April 2015 30 April 2015 0485 76,000 (20,000) 56,000
29 Aprl 2025
% = - “E-14MA=TRE
F_ =
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 80076 (1482 985
101,076 (21,982) 79,04
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HiE —Z —

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(CONTINUED)

Share option scheme (continued)

(ii) The number and weighted average exercise
prices of share options scheme are as follows:

(continued)

Mr. Fung Wai Shing and Mr. Huang Guosheng
resigned as executive director and independent non-
executive director of the Company on 5 March 2021

and 3 April 2019 respectively.

At 31 December 2020, the number of the
exercisable shares under the Share Option
Scheme was approximately 67,982,000 (2019:

79,094,000) shares.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no
share option under the Share Option Scheme

were granted and exercised (2019: nil).

The share options outstanding at 31 December
2020 had a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 5.2 years (31 December 2019:
5.2 years). The weighted average exercise
price for the outstanding share options as at 31
December 2020 was HKDO0.52 (2019: HKDO0.52)

per share.
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RESEEURDHBER 2@

BRAES 8 ()

(ii)

B BB B R INEFHTE
BT : (B

HEREERERABLEED IR
T F=-RARAEHEE=ZZT—NFHN
A=ABERRRRNTEZTREL
IEITES

RZEZZEF+=_A=+—H "
BERR AT B IE T AT 1T AR 1D B0 81
B #67,982,000 (= — L4 :
79,094,0000%) °

BE_T-_ZHF+_-_A=t—HL
FE - BREFSRTHERRE
ERARITE(CE-NE 8 -

RZEZZEF+A=+—HHERK
TTEMBIRENMETESRGE LD
H;ﬁﬁﬁz%szi(:ffn¢+*ﬁz
+—H :52%) c RZZTE_TF+
ZA=T—HHRTENEREN
InEFHITEERER0S2EIIL(Z
T—N4F : 05287T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS 33. HMBEREYN
As at 31 December 2020, the Company has executed 75’:‘_ Z_TFE+_A=+—H XRAR
corporate guarantee to certain banks and other aTARAIMNE R AERN —RIRITE
borrowing creditors with respect to general banking fé\f&htz?féfZ’]}\Eﬁf%z5,936,820,0007_1(:%F;i
facilities and borrowings granted to certain subsidiaries — N : AR#%5,936,820,0007T) A& T
of the Company of approximately RMB5,936,820,000 RITREMEEERATIARER - It
(2019: RMB5,936,820,000). In addition, as at O BRIAMT ST ()T EE - RZEZE
31 December 2020, the Company and certain FH+ZA=+—8 ' AR ERARAET
subsidiaries of the Company have executed corporate MEARM— e AR EENEENA
guarantee to certain banks and an other borrowing R#270,000,0007c(ZE—NF : ARK
creditor with respect to borrowings granted to an 619,090,000 T) M & THRITR —BEME
associate of approximately RMB270,000,000 (2019: EEEABZYRARER -
RMB619,090,000) as disclosed in note 37 (c).
The Group has not recognised any financial liability REBWRGEE A —RBITEERE
(2019: nil) in respect of the guarantees granted for ROERERTWNeMEBE CE—NEF :
general banking facilities of the associate as the ) BRARFIEEZRAERERBERN
directors of the Company considered that the amounts SRV TEKX -
of financial guarantee liabilities are immaterial.
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 34. TEEAKREERESBMIAZAAE
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Categories of financial instruments (A S®EIEER
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBTFTT
Financial assets THEE
At amortised cost REHK AT E 702,792 330,481
Financial liabilities AN
At amortised cost R AG 8 7,601,506 7,346,477
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

Exposure to credit risk, liquidity risk, interest risk and
currency risk arises in the normal course of the Group’s
businesses. The Group’s exposure to these risks and
the financial risk management policies and practices
used by the Group to manage these risks are described

below.

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s credit
risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables
and other receivables. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposure to credit
risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit
evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. In view
of the history of business dealings with the
customers and the sound collection history of
the receivables due from them, management
believes that there is no material credit risk
inherent in the Group’s outstanding receivable
balance due from the customers and other
debtors. Management makes periodic
assessment on the recoverability of the trade
receivables and other receivables based on
historical payment records, the length of the
overdue period, the financial strength of the
debtors and whether there is any dispute with
the debtors. In addition, the Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL on trade
receivables individually or based on provision
matrix. In this regard, the management considers
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risks on bank balances are limited
because the counterparties are banks/financial
institutions with high credit rating assigned by
internal credit-rating agencies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 34, SREREERESRMIEZARE®
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HEERKREBEEERIKR®

(continued)

(i) Credit risk and impairment assessment (i) 1= B /7 B K 3 (B 7712 (%)
(continued)
The Group’s concentration of credit risk by AEEMEERRTHWE LXE
geographical locations is mainly in the PRC, RRAFRE - Eﬁﬁ_f_$¢+_ﬂ
which accounted for 99.9% (2019: 99.8%) of the =T —BERKEZRIBERD
total trade receivables as at 31 December 2020. 99.9%(=ZF— L : 99.8%) °
The Group's concentration of credit risk by RZEZTF+_A=+—8 "
customers is 93.3% (2019: 77.1%) as at 31 AEEETREFPNEERRA
December 2020. In addition, 59.26% (2019: 93.3%(ZZE—NF : 77.1%) °
44.72%) of the net other receivables was due Bt AN - FB A SRIE K H i fE W EIR
from the five largest other debtors as at 31 FEPR59.26%(=ZF— NF ¢
December 2020. These five largest other debtors 44.72%) REWEZE T T F +
include state-owned enterprise in the PRC and — A=t HRKREMEBL AN
companies with good past credit records with B ZERARNHEMEBABRTEF
the Group. Other than these, the Group does not EEACERBTHASENEE
have any other significant concentration of credit RERRIFHIAT o BRIt 2N - AE
risk. li?ﬁfﬂﬂﬁ%ik%ﬂiﬂ MiEER
Financial asset with credit risk exposure EFE s BR R 2 EE
Trade receivables FEWE 5508
The Group measures loss allowance for trade REBREWE ZHHEZEERE
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, BEBEEBENSHETEHER
which is calculated using a provision matrix. o WERBEEREE - BRA
As the Group’s historical credit loss experience SEMNESREEBBELRTERT
does not indicate significant different loss RTEAFEFPHBEFEERTRBNE
patterns for different customer segments, the BRA - RiafiEnBREE
loss allowance based on past due status is TRE—TPEHIEAEETRNER
not further distinguished between the Group’s Hg o

different customer bases.

—®—ZHF3 ANNUAL REPORT 2020 239



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H{ 2 —Z —_TF+_A=+—HILtFE

34.

(b)

240

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 34.

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (b)

(continued)

(i) Credit risk and impairment assessment (i)

(continued)

Financial asset with credit risk exposure

(continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The following table provides information about
the Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for

BEEREEEERBRE®)

1= B 7 B2 R 5 (B 5715 (@)

FEURE 5 5RI8 (48)

THAREERERMTIAZARE®

H g (= Bm R a2 A 2 ()

TREH®RABASEEKE SR
HEREEERR MIEREEERN

trade receivables as follow: E¥
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
RHERE HREAE FERE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR
As at 31 December 2020 R-B-BF+-A=t+-H
Type 1: Customers within the Group FRI - EERERF T 5t
expected that they will pay on time: FEEEF
Neither past due nor impaired REEIRKIERE 0% 74,460 =
Past due for less than 60 days LGN IZN 3.35% 367,902 12,311
Past due for more than 60 days but BHBOARLA EEDR180K
less than 180 days - - -
Past due for more than 180 days but BEBORNLEBLR—5
less than one year 3.35% 96 3
s s 2R
Type 2: Credit impaired customer: B2 RAEER
Past due more than one year BEH-FNE 100% 43,342 43,342
485,800 55,656
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(b)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 34.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z =

=

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (b)

(continued)

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (i)

(continued)

Financial asset with credit risk exposure

(continued)

e MEmRME
BE+-A=+—HIEE

THEAREERERMIAZARE®

BEREMREERERKE®

1= B 7 B & 5 (B 7715 (@)

H gz B R a2 & 2 ()

Trade receivables (continued) JEE 5 7R I8 (48)
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
BHEEE REAE EBERE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR
As at 31 December 2019 RZZB-AE+=A=+-H
Type 1: Customers within the Group HH1 - FER R T 54
expected that they will pay on FTEBEF -
time:
Neither past due nor impaired ABHRTARIERE 0% 86,017 =
Past due for less than 60 days BED 0K 6.96% 15,205 1,058
Past due for more than 60 days but BHB0R A LB LR 180K
less than 180 days 6.93% 29,753 2,062
Past due for more than 180 days but BHE180RIA LEDR—F
less than one year 51.87% 2,536 1,263
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 1ol 498
Type 2: Credit impaired customer: Bhlo ERAEES -
Past due more than one year BE—FN T 100% 127,912 127,912
261,423 132,295
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H{ 2 —Z —_TF+_A=+—HILtFE

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 34. cREREENREBRIEZARE®
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HERREEEERBE®

(continued)
(i) Credit risk and impairment assessment (i) 15 B /7 iz 2 5L 18 5P 12 (%)
(continued)
Financial asset with credit risk exposure EIFE (5 BR R A £ B & E ()
(continued)
Trade receivables (continued) FEUE S 5RIE ()
The estimated loss rates are estimated based on BETEEXDIBRERSHRENEK
historical observed default rate and are adjusted E T WHRBANETHUER
for forward-looking information that is available N3 45 1 1T Al 45 89 AT IE 1 & RHE
without undue cost or effort. The grouping is HE - EEETHASEHE@ESAE -
regularly reviewed by management to ensure LATEIR B B e B A BB &R
relevant information about specific debtor is TEFH -
updated.
Movement in the loss allowance account in RERNTEKE 5 FRIBH EERE
respect of trade receivables during the year is as REHHMT -
follows:
RMB’000
AR¥T T
As at 1 January 2019 under IFRS 9 RZE—NF—A—BRBEBRHB
HMEEAFERT 253,734
Impairment loss recognised EERAEBE 40,522
Reversal during the year FREE (48,523)
Write-off i sH (114,155)
Exchange realignment M H B 717
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+ZA=+—H 132,295
Impairment loss recognised EERREERE 11,855
Reversal during the year F AR (43,591)
Write-off i sH (44,042)
Exchange realignment EHEE (860)
At 31 December 2020 R-B-BHF+=-A=+—-8 55,657
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)
Other receivables

The Group measures the loss allowance equal
to 12m ECL of other receivables. For those
balances expected to have significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
apply lifetime ECL based on aging for classes
with different credit risk characteristics and
exposures.

As at 31 December 2020, included in other
receivables of the Group are amounts due
from non-controlling shareholders of aggregate
gross carrying amounts of RMB322,703,000
(2019: RMB322,703,000). Loss allowance of
RMB322,703,000 (2019: RMB322,703,000) was
provided for these amounts as at 31 December
2020 since the management of the Group
considers the probability of default is significant
in view that these amounts have been overdue
for a long period of time.

For the remaining other non-trade receivables
of the Group, the management of the Group
considers the probability of default by assessing
the counterparties financial background and
creditability and accordingly, loss allowance
of approximately RMB22,065,000 (2019:
RMB20,422,000) was provided as at 31
December 2020.

34.

(b)
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mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H{ 2 —Z —_TF+_A=+—HILtFE

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 34.
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b)

(continued)

(i) Credit risk and impairment assessment (i)

(continued)
Other receivables (continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in
respect of other receivables during the year is as

THAREERERMTIAZARE®

BERREEREREE®

1= B 7 B R 5B 7715 (@)

H At FEY IR ()

POGF At L At P LA R IR ) RS 1R B A
FREBIT

follows:
RMB’000
AR®T T
As at 31 December 2018 under IAS 39 and RZZE—\F+ZA=+—HREE
1 January 2019 under IFRS9 ERIERFEIFR T RN _E—NF
— A — BB B % 5 22 Al
EHE T 364,598
Impairment loss recognised ERERREERE 332
Reversal during the year FREE (21,876)
Exchange realignment M H B 71
At 31 December 2019 R-E-AF+-A=+—H 343,125
Impairment loss recognised BRI ERR 2,414
Reversal during the year FREE (500)
Exchange realignment EHEE (271)
At 31 December 2020 R-B-FEF+-A=t+—8 344,768

Financial guarantee contract

At the end of the reporting period, the directors
of the Company have performed impairment
assessment, and concluded that there has been
no significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition of the financial guarantee contract.
Accordingly, any loss allowance for financial
guarantee contracts issued by the Group is
measured at an amount equal to 12m ECL.
No loss allowance was recognised as at 31
December 2020 in accordance with IFRS 9 as
the amount is immaterial. Details of the financial
guarantee contract are set out in note 32.
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34.

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

(i)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
but the borrowings are subject to approval
by the parent company’s management. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with any
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities at the reporting date of the
Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities and
lease liabilities which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or,
if floating, based on rates current at the reporting
date) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay.

THEAREERERMIAZARE®

BREEREEEERBRE®)

(i)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H{ 2 —Z —_TF+_A=+—HILtFE

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 34. TREKEEREBMIAZAARE®R
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HERREEEERBE®
(continued)
(i) Liquidity risk(continued) (i) HEELERE
As at 31 December 2020
R-ZE-_BF+=-HA=+—H
More than
one year
Within and Total
one year or less than undiscounted Carrying
on demand five years cash flow amount
—FR —F#% AFBERE
REX BRER MEAE BREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®TR ARETR ARETR
Current b
Trade payables BB S8 670,373 = 670,373 670,373
Other payables HibEAA 2,201,433 = 2,201,433 2,200,859
Lease liabilities HERE 3,169 = 3,169 2,805
Borrowings BE 2,242,030 = 2,242,030 1,970,990
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, S117.005 T 8117005 4845027
Non-current JEENE
Other payables Hit (TR - - - -
Lease liabilities HERE - 949 949 926
Borrowings BE = 2,916,392 2,916,392 2,625,364
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, T eamse  2917sdl | 2626290
5,117,005 2,917,341 8,034,346 7471317
Maximum exposure of financial I ERA KIS AR
guarantee contracts (note 33)  (}i#£33) 270,000 = 270,000 270,000
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34.

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

(i) Liquidity risk (continued)

34, SREREERESRMIEZARE®

(b) HHBEREEBEZERBEK®

(i) HEELERE

As at 31 December 2019
R-ZE-hE+=-A=1+—-8

More than
one year
Within and Total
one year or less than undiscounted Carrying
on demand five years cash flow amount
—FR —F#% AFBERE
REX BREFR MEAE BREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Current BN
Trade payables BB S7E 333,947 = 333,947 333,947
Other payables HioEAA 2,533,691 = 2,533,691 2,531,846
Lease liabilities HERE 4,032 = 4,032 3,819
Borrowings BE 2,403,028 - 2,403,028 2,163,276
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 5274698 7. .. 52746%8 5032888
Non-current FERE
Other payables H AR 508 = 23,055 23,055 20,550
Lease liabilities HEBE - 1,525 1,525 1,495
Borrowings BE = 2,319,111 2,319,111 2,172,848
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, T, 2843691 2343691 2194893
5,274,698 2,343,691 7,618,389 7,227,781
Maximum exposure of financial B BIERA HHRARER
guarantee contracts (note 33)  (Fi#33) 335,895 297,090 632,985 619,090

—®—ZHF3 ANNUAL REPORT 2020 247
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H{ 2 —Z —_TF+_A=+—HILtFE

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

(i)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The amounts included above for financial
guarantee contracts are the maximum amounts
the Group could be required to settle under the
arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if
that amount is claimed by the counterparty to
the guarantee. Based on expectations at the
end of the reporting period, the Group considers
that it is more likely than not that no amount will
be payable under the arrangement. However,
this estimate is subject to change depending
on the probability of the counterparty claiming
under the guarantee which is a function of the
likelihood that the financial receivables held by
the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer
credit losses.

The table below summarises the maturity
analysis of borrowings and financial guarantee
with respect to borrowings granted to an
associate with a repayment on cross demand
clause based on agreed scheduled repayments
set out in the loan agreements. The amounts
include interest payments computed using
contractual rates. As a result, these amounts
were greater than the amounts disclosed in the
on demand time band in the maturity analysis
contained in the above table.

The directors of the Company do not consider
that it is probable that the bank and other
borrowing creditors will exercise their discretion
to demand immediate repayment. The directors
of the Company believe that such borrowings
of the Group and an associate will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates
set out in the loan agreements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 34, SREREERESRMIEZARE®
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HEEKEEEERIE®

(continued)
(i) Liquidity risk (continued) (i) HEELEMREE
Maturity analysis Borrowings and financial
guarantee with respect to borrowings granted to
an associate subject to a repayment on cross
default clause based on scheduled repayments
S BEAMBREH AR I RINENRTERARNEER
R -BHEARGENHBRERED
More than
one year
Within and Total
one year or less than  undiscounted Carrying
on demand five years cash flow amount
—FRH —F#% ARRE
REXR BRFR MEMAE REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR AR®TR ARET T ARET T
At 31 December 2020 R-ZB-2F
+=A=+-H
Borrowings fE& 2,242,030 2,916,392 5,158,422 4,596,354
Maximum exposure of financial Bt BERA NS AEKR
guarantee contracts 270,000 - 270,000 270,000
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NF
+=A=+-H
Borrowings BE 2,403,028 2,319,111 4,722,139 4,336,124
Maximum exposure of financial B HIERA HF AR R
guarantee contracts 335,895 297,090 632,985 619,090
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had RZBZZTF+-_HA=+—H XK
net current liabilities of approximately SENRBAEBREFEAOARE
RMB4,204,749,000. As disclosed in 4,204,749,0007T ° 40Kt 5 28F7
note 28, certain borrowings amounted to 5= - AR®1,144,567,000TH & T
RMB1,144,567,000 have yet been renewed or FtE?é'JHH{érﬁﬂiiﬁt‘%ﬁf iz
rolled over upon maturity and carried interest at 3.90%Z%E8.80%MEFFEET B o &
3.90% to 8.80% per annum. The liquidity of the SENESME M KBE NI THN
Group is dependent on its ability to implement B 5 2 BT 4t B9 15 B B0 2 7K & B B B
the measures to improve the Group’s immediate BEeRBUERBE S MEMNEES o

liquidity and cash flows as described in note 2.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —Z —_TF+_-_A=+—H

34.

(b)

250

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

LEEFE

34, cRERMREEREMIBECARE®

(b) HEEKREEBZERBE®

(continued)
(iii)  Interest rate risk (i)  FIFE
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily $§H’Uﬂ§}§t ﬁI%&E/@\EE&ﬁ
from pledged and restricted deposits, cash and &y\ﬁ@%uﬁ'ﬂ;ﬁﬁ%&ﬁfﬁgﬁ
cash equivalents and borrowings. Borrowings &15% ° &ﬂiﬂiﬁéﬂ’*‘g
issued at variable rates and at fixed rates expose ;\E’ﬂ;%ﬁiﬁ$?n Eljiy\%@g
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair E*'J;@EER&;/L@@"‘\@&% ° B
value interest rate risk respectively. The Group’s EEEE;HE’\JZIKKEWL.-\M,R%WIJ an
interest rate profile as monitored by management L
is set out as below:
Interest rate profile FIF#E R
The following table details the interest rate profile T%EZJ$% HfE BF RS
of the Group’s net borrowings at the reporting SRS v
date:
2020 2019
b g 23 —E-NF
Effective Effective
interest rate Carrying interest rate Carrying
per annum value per annum value
ERFRE BEE BIRFRIR FHEE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFT
Fixed rate borrowings BEFEREE
Borrowings BE 4.91%-8.80% 4,034,195  4.75%-7.28% 4,012,800
Variable rate net AERNEEEFE
borrowings:
Borrowings BE 3.90%-5.7% 562,159  4.35%-5.70% 323,324
Pledged and restricted BHEARZBRHER
deposits 0.00%-0.35% (403)  0.00%-0.35% (15,229)
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEM 0.00%-0.35% (154,904)  0.00%-0.35% (159,695)
Total net borrowings BEEFE 4,441,047 4,161,200
Net fixed rate borrowings EERREEFEE
as a percentage of total HEEFENEIL
net borrowings 90.84% 96.4%
CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED A EZEZEEERAT
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(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

(iii)

Interest rate risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

It is estimated that a general increase/decrease
of 100 basis points in the interest rates of variable
rate net borrowings prevailing at the reporting
date, with all other variables held constant,
would decrease/increase the Group’s profit after
tax and accumulated losses by approximately
RMB4,080,000 (2019: RMB1,626,000) for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit after
tax and consolidated equity that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the reporting date and had been
applied to re-measure those floating rate non-
derivative instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk at the reporting date. The impact on the
Group’s profit after tax and consolidated equity
is estimated as an annualised impact on interest
expense of such a change in interest rates. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for
2019.

34.

(b)

tREREEREMIAZAARE®

BREEREEEERBRE®)

(i)  FIEEB
IR T
BREFTBEHMEERFTIE - Rk
EHAENEEEFENONERE
B2 FH TR 100MEI AR - (Bt e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H{ 2 —Z —_TF+_A=+—HILtFE

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

(iv)  Foreign currency risk

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign
currencies. All foreign exchange transactions
involving RMB must take place through the
Peoples Bank of China or other institutions
authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange. The
exchange rate adopted for the foreign exchange
transactions are the rates of exchange quoted by
the Peoples Bank of China that are determined
largely by supply and demand. The Group
is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily
through purchases giving rise to cash balances
that are denominated in USD, while all the other
operations of the Group are mainly transacted in
RMB. Changes in exchange rate affect the RMB
value of purchase costs of commodities that are
denominated in foreign currencies.

The following table demonstrates the Group’s
exposure at the reporting date to currency risk

THAREERERMTIAZARE®

BERMREEREREE®

(iv)

S

ARBIABHZBRBING - IA
BRARENINER 5B BB BT
BARRITREMBERERNEEI
BEEEETT - INER ZFTERAH
EXRSHEARBITARAER
ZEEXTEHRFKEE - A&H
MMNERBREERBBEELIASE
THENR e &S MAKERA
HMEBETEAARBETRS

EREHR BN ERRRE
RAMARKEEIE -

TRETASERRE ARAERE
ESBE MEAGEXZERD
SNy

arising from recognised assets or liabilities M B AN BB EHE -
denominated in a currency other than the EREERR o
functional currency of the entity to which they
relate.
2020 2019
—ECEF —T-hEF
Denominated Denominated
in USD in USD
NETEHE AETTEHA
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBTT
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBeEEY 480 514

No sensitivity analysis has been presented as,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the foreign exchange risk associated with the
Group's financial assets and liabilities will not be
significant.
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34.

(c)

35.

36.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Fair values of financial instruments

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at amortised cost are not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December 2020
and 2019.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At each reporting date, capital commitments

34.

(c)

35.

THEAREERERMIAZARE®

ERMIANAARE
AREFRBEKAAEREN SR T ANER
B BER T _TFR_FT—NF+=
A=+—HHAREDRITK -
BRI

RERER - WARNERS P ERRIELE

outstanding not provided for in the consolidated EHRBITEARENAT :
financial statements are as follows:
2020 2019
—g-®F —T-NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
Property, plant and equipment YIZ - BB R 34,966 9,653
OPERATING LEASES 36. REHE
Leases as lessor EEEABEANEE

The future minimum lease payments receivable under
non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

TR EEER THARRKEREN
AT

2020 2019

—ETEF —T-hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBTT

Within 1 year —FR 2,427 8,397

The Group leases vessels under various agreements
which typically run for an initial period of 20 to 30 days
(2019: 13 to 105 days). The agreements do not include
an extension option.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H{ 2 —Z —_TF+_A=+—HILtFE

37.

(a)

254

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group has conducted certain transactions with
related parties of the Group, including (i) Mr. Xu, the
controlling shareholder of the Company, and his close
family members; (ii) Mr. Xu Da, an executive director
and his close family members; (iii) Qinhuangdao Qinfa
Industry Group Co., Ltd. (“Qinfa Industry”), a company
controlled by Mr. Xu; (iv) Yuanfan Technology Co.,
Ltd. (*Yuanfan Technology”), a company controlled
by Mr. Xu Da and Qinfa Industry; (v) Tongmei Qinfa,
an associate; (vi) Bo Hai Investment Limited (Bo Hai
Investment), a company controlled by Mr. Xu; and (vii)
Fortune Pearl, the ultimate holding company of the
Company.

Particulars of transactions between the Group and the
above related parties for the year are as follows:

Recurring transactions

37.

(a)

RELSXRS

AEBEAEENBEFETETRS
BREOARAZERBREGEENEERS
B (W TESHRELAEREEREE
(IR EEEFN AR R EEEE
BRABI(RBEE]D  (VREXERER
BEERVINAFARNBRIEAERAG ([&R
MEHRD - (VB QR EERE (ViR
RGN AREEREFRAR(HEE
B RVINVEARRIREIERARIEE

AEBMFRNEFABETNRSFBEDR
T
REERS

Transaction amount for

the years ended
31 December

Payable outstanding
as at 31 December

BE+=-A=+—-HI1 R+=—BA=+-—H
FENRZSHE i R 32 A 9 FE 4 TR IE
2020 2019 2020 2019
—EDRF —_T-NF ZEZEF —_T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT AR®TR ARETT
Sales of coal to SHE KX T
- Tongmei Qinfa - AR = 83,253 = 29,753
Chartering HET
- Tongmei Qinfa - REERE - = 1,141 1,220
Purchase of coal from S d=
- Tongmei Qinfa - AR 47,304 = 176,335 149,031
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37.

(b)

(c)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRM T
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 37. BEAIRZ®
Guarantees provided by related parties (b) PBIEFRERHAER
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBTIT
Guarantees of borrowings provided RAEREBERRBERMEN
by Mr. Xu and his close family EEER
members 7,069,620 6,934,130
Guarantees of borrowings provided REEERABRABRED
by Mr. Xu Da and his close family BEER
members 5,859,830 5,662,830
Guarantees of borrowings provided FREERHNEEER
by Qinfa Industry 2,756,250 2,756,250
Guarantees of borrowings provided RNEHRIRHOEERER
by Yuanfan Technology 152,000 152,000
Guarantees of borrowings provided B ERHNEEER
by Bo Hai Investment 2,035,000 2,035,000
Guarantees of borrowings provided DREEHNEEER
by Fortune Pearl 2,800,000 2,035,000
Guarantees provided to an associate (c) REHFHZELTINER
2020 2019
—B-RF —FNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBTFTT
Guarantees given by the Group for AEEGRRHEREESH
borrowings obtained by Tongmei BEERHEMER
Qinfa 270,000 619,090
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H{ 2 —Z —_TF+_A=+—HILtFE

37.

(d)

256

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 37.

Key management personnel remuneration (d)

Key management personnel are those persons holding
positions with authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Group,
directly or indirectly, including the directors of the
Company. Key management personnel remuneration
are as follows:

BELRS &
BREEBALTHS

HREEBALEEESMEEREERE -
EEREHAEBEHNENREANA
T(BREARRAES) - BAREEEALH
BT -

2020 2019
—g-8F —B-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETTT

Directors fee EEWE 4,347 4,823
Salaries, allowances and benefits in e EMEREYEF
kind 17,129 15,767
Contributions to retirement benefit RIRTEFIFT B3R
schemes 477 358
Share-based payments AR 1D B EERE 2 43K - -
21,953 20,948

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERAF
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(a)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Outstanding litigations

(i)

Litigation claims relating to repayment to
non-controlling shareholders of Xingtao Coal
Mine, Fengxi Coal Mine and Chongsheng Coal
Mine

During the year ended 31 December 2018,
there were litigation claims initiated by the
non-controlling shareholders of Xingtao Coal
Mine, Fengxi Coal Mine and Chongsheng Coal
Mine against the Group to demand immediate
repayment of funds provided to the Group in
2011 with an aggregate amount of approximately
RMB134,414,000 before the acquisition of
these coal mines by the Group. The amount of
approximately RMB134,414,000 had already
been recognised and offset with the amounts
due from respective non-controlling shareholders
in the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2020. The directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group has
a valid ground to defend against those claims.
Up to the date when the consolidated financial
statements are authorised for issue, these
litigation claims are still in progress.

On 17 July 2020, in an arbitration initiated by the
Group against the non-controlling shareholders,
non-controlling shareholders counterclaimed
against the Group for refunds of construction
payments of RMB40,723,000 previously paid
by non-controlling shareholders for Fengxi
Coal Mine and claim for related interest of
RMB18,175,000. The directors of the Company
are of the opinion that the Group has a valid
ground to defend against those claims, and
no provision for the litigation claims has been
provided in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2020. Up
to the date when the consolidated financial
statements are authorised for issue, the
arbitration is still in progress.
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38.

(a)

258

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Outstanding litigations (continued)

()

(i)

Litigation claims relating to repayment to
non-controlling shareholders of Xingtao Coal
Mine, Fengxi Coal Mine and Chongsheng Coal
Mine (continued)

On 1 September 2020, there was an arbitration
initiated by the non-controlling shareholders
against the Group to claim for 20% of coal
production of Xingtao Coal Mine, Fengxi Coal
Mine and Chongsheng Coal Mine from the year
of 2013 to 2019 as the distributions entitled to
non-controlling shareholders of Xingtao Coal
Mine, Fengxi Coal Mine and Chongsheng
Coal Mine for the aforesaid period, which
were equivalent to aggregate amount of
approximately RMB584,410,000. The directors of
the Company are of the opinion that the Group
has a valid ground to defend against the claim,
and no provision for the litigation claims has
been provided in the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2020.
Up to the date when the consolidated financial
statements are authorised for issue, the
arbitration is still in progress.

As at 31 December 2020, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the provision
for the above litigation is sufficient in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2020.

Litigation claims relating to repayment to a
former shareholder of Xinglong Coal Mine and
Hongyuan Coal Mine

In February 2021, the Group received notice
from the Shuozhou City Intermediate People’s
Court that a lawsuit was filed by one of the
former shareholders of Xinglong Coal Mine and
Hongyuan Coal Mine against the Group to claim
for unsettled consideration payment amounting
to RMB30,469,000 for acquisition of Xinglong
Coal Mine and Hongyuan Coal Mine and related
compensation amounting to RMB3,000,000.
Up to the date when the consolidated financial
statements are authorised for issue, the litigation
claim is still in progress. The directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the provision
for the above litigation is sufficient in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2020.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Outstanding litigations (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Litigation claims relating to repayment to
default of repayment of bank borrowing

Subsequently to the end of the reporting period,
on 5 February 2021, a bank filed lawsuit against
the Group to demand immediate repayment
of the bank borrowing with carrying amount of
approximately RMB247,200,000 and accrued
interest of approximately RMB2,940,000 up to 5
February 2021. The principal of approximately
RMB247,200,000 and respective interest
charges of approximately RMB1,799,000 had
already been recognised as borrowings and
accrued expenses included in other payables
respectively in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2020. Up
to the date when the consolidated financial
statements are authorised for issue, these
litigation claims are still in progress.

Litigation claims relating to the performance
of the contract execution between Yu Lin
Zhong Kuang Wan Tong Construction Limited
Company (“Yu Lin Zhong Kuang”) and
Hongyuan Coal

During the year ended 31 December 2019,
Yu Lin Zhong Kuang initiated a litigation claim
against the Group to demand for economic
losses in relation to the suspension of
construction project of coal mining infrastructure,
of which amount are related to compensation
to the staff costs and equipment costs incurred
during the implementation of the project. The
claim amount is approximately RMB19,899,000.
The directors of the Company are of the
opinion that the Group has a valid ground to
defend against the claim, and no provision for
the litigation claims has been provided in the
consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2020. Up to the date when the
consolidated financial statements are authorised
for issue, these litigation claims are still in
progress.
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(a)

260

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
Outstanding litigations (continued)

(v) Litigation claims relating to the performance
of the purchase contract execution between
Shanxi Yunxin International Trade Co., Ltd
(“Shanxi Yunxin”) and Huameiao Energy,
Xingtao Coal, Fengxi Coal and Chongsheng
Coal

During the year ended 31 December 2019,
there was a litigation claim initiated by Shanxi
Yunxin against the Group to demand immediate
repayment of overdue payable in relation to
purchases of consumables and equipment
by the Group. The overall claim amount of
approximately RMB71,862,000, which including
the aforesaid payable to this supplier of
approximately RMB54,124,000 and late penalty
interest of approximately RMB17,738,000. Up
to the date when the consolidated financial
statements are authorised for issue, the litigation
claim is still in progress. The directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the provision
for the above litigation is sufficient in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2020.

Other than the disclosure of above, as at 31 December
2020, the Group was not involved in any other material
litigation or arbitration. As far as the directors of the
Company were aware, the Group had no other material
litigation or claim which was pending or threatened
against the Group. As at 31 December 2020, the Group
was the defendant of certain non-material litigations,
and also a party to certain litigations arising from the
ordinary course of business. The likely outcome of
these contingent liabilities, litigations or other legal
proceedings cannot be ascertained at present, but
the directors of the Company believe that any possible
legal liability which may be incurred from the aforesaid
cases will not have any material impact on the financial
position of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
Financial guarantees issued

As at the end of each reporting period, the Group has
issued the guarantees to certain banks and an other
borrowing creditor in respect of borrowings made by
Tongmei Qinfa, an associate of the Group. Under the
guarantee, the Group that is a party to the guarantee
are jointly and severally liable for any of the borrowings
of Tongmei Qinfa from those banks and an other
borrowing creditor.

The maximum liability of the Group at 31 December
2020 under the guarantees issued is a portion of the
outstanding amount of the borrowings of Tongmei Qinfa
amounting to approximately RMB270,000,000 (2019:
RMB619,090,000).

Borrowing default clause

The Settlement Agreement entered into between the
Group and an asset management company contained a
default clause which the Group will be required to repay
the outstanding balance of the original borrowings
and interest payable if the Group fails to repay the
new borrowings by instalments in accordance with
the respective repayment schedule. Particulars of the
Settlement Agreement are disclosed in noted 28.
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39.

262

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  39.

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of

AR HY RIS AR R

BRAARRARERNPHINRERERN

the Company at the end of the year is as follows: ™
2020 2019
—E-FF —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR ZIEE = 322,895
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables and prepayments e Wk I R TR 3R 421 =
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE UK B B A B FRIE = 138,437
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEFEY 37 52
458 138,489
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables H At fE T R (13,009) (3,314)
Net current (liabilities)/assets REQWFR AEFE (12581) 135,175
Net (liabilities)/assets (BEFH) EETE (12,551) 458,070
Capital and reserves B @S
Share capital & A 211,224 211,224
Perpetual subordinated convertible KR AR AT R 7B
securities 156,931 156,931
(Deficit)/surplus (B4 Btk (380,706) 89,915
Total (deficit)/equity (B5#4t), RSB (12,551) 458,070

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors of China Qinfa Group Limited on 31 March

2021.

Xu Da
Director

EF

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERAF

RZE_—F=A=+—BEHEZTESE
BERARESTSIAE MBI -

Bai Tao
BHE
Director
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z T4+ _A=+—HILFE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Details of the changes in the Company’s individual
components of equity between the beginning and the
end of the year are set out below:

AN

$’A5HI%UT%E

B9 B B AR 5 R ()

SO RFINRFROES

Perpetual
subordinated Share-hased
Share Share  convertible  Contributed Exchange compensation  Accumulated Total
capital premium securities surplus® reserve reserve losses equity
R
XARR 14
e ROEE  TRRES N Eif% Rt ZiEE RRAE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR  ARMTn  ARMTn  ARMTR  AR¥TR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Note 30(b)  Note 30(d)(l) Note 30(c) Note 30(d)(iv)
Wi KEd)  KEM) H£30(d)v)
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NF-F-H 211,224 344,186 156,931 658,719* (31,786) 16,677* (898,793)* 457,158
Loss for the year EmgE - - - - - = (8.174) (8.174)
Other comprehensive income ~ E#2FHA
Foreign currency translation 7\\%&%@5
differences - - - - 9,086 - - 9,086
Total comprehensive income 2 EM A5 - - - - 9,086 - (8,174) 912
Transactions with equity HERREAZRS
shareholders, recorded RERERIE
directly in equity
Share options lapsed BANERE - - - - - (6,600) 6,600 =
Total transactions with equity ~~ EERREAZR S
shareholders &8 - - - - - (6,600) 6,600 =
M31December 2019and1  RZZ-hE
January 2020 tZA=+-Bk
“3-%%-f-H 211,224 344,186 156,931 658,719* (22,700) 10,077 (900,367)* 458,070
Loss for the year EmEE - = = = (13) = (421,874) (421887)
Other comprehensive loss A2EER
Foreign currency franslaion MR EEE
differences - - - - (27,568) o - (27,568)
Total comprehensive loss 2EERLEE - = = = (27,581) = (421,874) (449,455)
Transactions with equity HERREAZRS
shareholders, recorded RERERIE
directly in equity
Distribution relating to perpetual AR AR AR
subordinated convertible BRI
securities - (21,166) - - - - - (21,166)
Totel transections with equity ~ EERREAZR S
shareholders g - (21,166) - > - - 3 (21,166)
At 31 December 2020 RZZT=%%
TZR=1-A 211,224 323,020 156,931 658,719* (50,281)* 10077 (1,322,241) (12,551)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H{ 2 —Z —_TF+_A=+—HILtFE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

* These reserves accounts comprise the deficit of

RMB380,706,000 (2019: surplus of RMB89,915,000) in the
statement of financial position of the Company.

Contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference
between the net asset value of Qinfa Investment Limited
acquired pursuant to the reorganisation and the nominal value
of the share issued by the Company in exchange.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Major transaction in relation to the disposal of a
vessel

On 10 March 2021, the Group entered into a
memorandum of agreement with an independent
third party to dispose the vessel owned by an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, at cash
consideration of approximately USD14,900,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB96,951,000). Up to
the date when the consolidated financial statements
are authorised for issue, the disposal has not been
completed.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERAF
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